
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Tuesday, January 26, 2016 
7:30 p.m. 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
680 Park Avenue 
Idaho Falls, Id  83402 
Thank you for your interest in City Government. If you wish to express your thoughts on a matter listed below, it is best to contact 
Councilmembers by email or personally before the meeting. Be aware that an amendment to this Agenda may be made upon passage of 
a motion that states the reason for the amendment and the good faith reason that the Agenda item was not included in the original 
Agenda posting. City Council Meetings are live streamed at www.idahofallsidaho.gov, then archived on the city website. If you need 
communication aids or services or other physical accommodations to participate or access this meeting or program of the City of Idaho 
Falls, you may contact City Clerk Kathy Hampton at 612-8414 or the ADA Coordinator Lisa Farris at 612-8323 as soon as possible and 
they will make every effort to adequately meet your needs. 
  
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Public Comment.  Members of the public are invited to address the City Council regarding matters 
that are not on the Agenda or already noticed for a public hearing. When you address the Council, please state 
your name and address for the record and please limit your remarks to three (3) minutes. The Mayor may 
exercise discretion to decide if and when to allow public comment on an Agenda Item that does not include a 
public hearing. The Mayor and/or staff may also use this time to respond to comments from a previous 
meeting. If the Mayor determines that your comments may be made later in the meeting, she will let you know 
when you may make your comments. Please note that matters currently pending before the Planning 
Commission or Board of Adjustment, which may be the subject of a pending enforcement action, or which are 
relative to a City personnel matter are not suitable for public comment. 
 
4. Presentation.  Energy Efficiency Rebate Checks to Idaho Steel Products and Conrad and Bischoff. 
 
5. Consent Agenda.  Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any 

member of the Council for separate consideration.  
 

A. Item from Mayor’s Office: 
 
1) Appointments/Reappointments to City Boards, Committees and Commissions. 

 
B. Items from the City Clerk: 
 
 1) Approval of Minutes from the December 7, 2015, Work Session; December 10, 2015, Idaho 

Falls Power Board Meeting; December 10, 2015, Council Meeting; December 11, 2015, Council 
Training Orientation; December 14, 2015, Work Session; December 17, 2015, Council Meeting; and 
December 30, 2015, Special Council Meeting.  

 
 2) Approval of License Applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
 3) Request for Council ratification for the publication of legal notices calling for public hearings on 

January 26, 2016.  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve all items on the Consent Agenda according to the 
recommendations presented. 

 

http://www.idahofallsidaho.gov/


 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

6. Regular Agenda. 
 
A. Idaho Falls Power 

 
1) Master Confirmation Agreement:  Attached is a Master Confirmation Agreement with Shell 
Energy North America. This contract has been reviewed by the legal department. Idaho Falls Power 
respectfully requests that City Council approve the agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute 
the document. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the Master Confirmation Agreement with Shell Energy 
North America and authorize the Mayor to execute the document (or take other action deemed 
appropriate). 

  
B. Public Works 

 
1) Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – Intersection of Holmes Avenue 
and Elva Street Project:  Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation 
Department and accompanying Resolution with respect to the Intersection of Holmes Avenue and 
Elva Street project. This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the 
City match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney. Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; and, 
authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To adopt the resolution and approve the State/Local Agreement for 
the Intersection of Holmes Avenue and Elva Street project, and give authorization for the Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
2) Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – 9th Street; SE Bonneville to St. 
Clair Road Project:  Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation 
Department and accompanying Resolution with respect to the 9th Street; SE Bonneville to St. Clair 
Road project. This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City 
match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney. Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; and, 
authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To adopt the resolution and approve the State/Local Agreement for 
the 9th Street; SE Bonneville to St. Clair Road project, and give authorization for the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the necessary documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
3) Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company:  The existing Franchise Ordinance 
with lntermountain Gas Company will expire on March 6, 2016. Therefore, attached for 
consideration is a Franchise Ordinance prepared by the City Attorney. The proposed Franchise 
Ordinance, if approved, would be for a 15-year period and provides the City access to 
lntermountain Gas mapping in formats compatible with our Geographic Information System. 
Public Works recommends approval of this ordinance; and, authorization for Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the necessary documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company 
under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

read by title and published by summary (or consider the Ordinance on the first reading and that it 
be read by title, or reject the Ordinance). 
 
4) Bid Award – Well 8 Electrical Upgrade:  On January 19, 2016, bids were received and opened 
for the Well 8 Electrical Upgrade project. A tabulation of bid results is attached. Public Works 
recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, Mountain West Electric, Inc., in an amount of $91,500.00 and, authorization for the Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign contract documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the plans and specifications for Well 8 Electrical 
Upgrade and award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, Mountain West Electric, Inc., an 
amount of $91,500.00 and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract 
documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
5) Bid Award – Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade:  On January 19, 2016, bids were received and 
opened for the Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade project. A tabulation of bid results is attached. 
Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder, CR Clark Construction, LLC, in an amount of $514,572.00 and, 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the plans and specifications for Well 9 & 10 Electrical 
Upgrade and award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, CR Clark Construction, LLC, an 
amount of $514,572.00 and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract 
documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 

C.    Police Department 
 
1) Purchase Requisition Approval:  The Police Department respectfully requests the approval to 
reimburse the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office for the consolidated Records Management 
System.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the purchase requisition to reimburse the Bonneville 
County Sheriff’s Office for the consolidated Records Management System in the amount of 
$291,206.73 (or take other action deemed appropriate).  
 

D. Community Development Services 
 
1) Resolution to approve FY2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Action 
Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan:  Attached is the resolution approving 
the FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the Resolution to approve FY2016 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year 
Consolidated Plan and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents (or 
take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
2) Public Hearing – Application for Rezoning from HC-1 to I&M-1, Zoning Ordinance, and 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, 
R 37E: Attached is the application for rezoning from HC-1 to I&M-1, Zoning Ordinance, and 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 
2N, R 37E. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this application at its November 3, 
2015 meeting and recommended denial by a 5-2 vote. The denial was due to concerns about I&M-
1 zoning so close to an entryway to the City. Staff concurs with the concerns and has discussed 
alternatives with the applicant. This item is now being submitted to the Mayor and City Council for 
consideration.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: The following recommendations in sequential order (or take other 
action deemed appropriate): 
 
 a. To approve the Ordinance for the rezoning of M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, 
 R 37E, from HC-1 to GC-1 under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and 
 separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary (or consider the 
 Ordinance on the first reading and that it be read by title, or reject the Ordinance). 
 
 b. To approve the Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the 
 rezoning of M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, R 37E, from HC-1 to GC-1, and give 
 authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. 
 
3) Public Hearing – Ordinance to modify Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, Chapter 8 to the City 
Code:   Attached is an ordinance modifying Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, Chapter 8 to the City 
Code. Title 2, Chapter 2 establishes residency requirements for service on the Planning 
Commission. Staff is proposing to change the requirement from five years to two years which is 
the requirement found in the Local Land Use Planning Act. Title 5, Chapter 8 deals with 
enforcement procedures for Code Enforcement. The current code does not match the methods 
and procedures Code Enforcement currently uses to enforce codes and ordinances. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the Ordinance to modify Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, 
Chapter 8 to the City Code under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and 
separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary (or consider the 
Ordinance on the first reading and that it be read by title, or reject the Ordinance). 
 

7. Motion to Adjourn. 
 





DECEMBER 7, 2015 
 

1 
 
 

 The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Work 
Session), Monday, December 7, 2015, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex 
Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 3:00 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Thomas Hally (arrived at 3:17 p.m.) 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
 
Absent: 
 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
Councilmember Sharon Parry 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Director 
Jackie Flowers, Idaho Falls Power Director 
Chris Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Kenny McOmber, Treasurer 
Lisa Farris, Grant Administrator 
John Radford 
Nathan Stubblefield 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 3:17 p.m. and requested two (2) changes to the 
Work Session agenda: add Receipt of Recommendations from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission; and, remove Alcohol Ordinance Revisions. After brief discussion it was decided to 
allow discussion of the alcohol ordinance revisions. It was moved by Councilmember Smith, 
seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to amend the agenda to add Receipt of 
Recommendations from the Planning and Zoning Commission with the good faith reason the 
agenda template has not been updated. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 



DECEMBER 7, 2015 
 

2 
 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Hally, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to accept the 
Recommendations from the Planning and Zoning Commission, December 1, 2015, meeting. 
Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Mayor and Council Reports:  
 
Mayor Casper informed the Councilmembers of the following events: the Association of Idaho 
Cities (AIC) will be hosting an Eastern Idaho Water Coalition meeting on December 9; the 
Citizen Review Committee (CRC) reception will be held on December 10, prior to the regular 
council meeting; and the Holiday Open House will be held on December 22. She stated City 
offices will be closed on December 25, 2015, and January 1, 2016, for the holidays 
 
Councilmember Hally reminded the Council of the Festival of Lights display at Freeman Park.  
Councilmember Marohn had no items to report. 
Councilmember Smith stated a Request for Qualification (RFQ) for a planning study will be 
forthcoming from the Airport.  
Councilmember Ehardt had no items to report.  
 
Items from Community Development Services Department: 
 
Discussion of Planning Technician Position: 
 
Director Cramer stated in December, 2014, the Building Division hired an intern, Isabella Liu, 
to assist with projects. At the end of the internship, Ms. Liu was moved to a temporary, full-
time position. Due to her education and on-the-job training, Director Cramer has proposed a 
full time position be offered to Ms. Liu. He described transfers of specific budgeted line items 
to provide the funding for the Planning Technician position. He stated if the position is 
approved, there will be cross training with the current GIS Analyst/Planner who expects to 
retire in the next few years. After brief discussion, it was decided this request will be placed on 
the December 10, 2015, council meeting as a consent agenda item.  
 
Discussion of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Schedule: 
 
Director Cramer stated the timeline for the CDBG is set by Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD). He indicated at the December 10, 2015, council meeting Ms. Farris will present the 
CDBG program and will summarize received requests. At that time all applicants will be given 
the opportunity to explain their requests during a public hearing. He stated the City is at the 
end of the HUD-required five (5)-year plan cycle and therefore updates and priorities will also 
be presented. General discussion followed. Director Cramer commented the software upgrade 
in the Community Development Services Department will allow tracking of CDBG projects.  
 



DECEMBER 7, 2015 
 

3 
 
 

Items from the Municipal Services: 
 
Discussion of New Fees: 
 
Director Alexander stated the public hearing for any updated proposed new fees/fee increases 
will be held at the December 17, 2015, council meeting. The fees will include increased fees as 
advised by the Golf Advisory Board as well as a clerical error regarding cemetery fees. Director 
Weitzel stated golf fees are generally updated in December of each year. He indicated all golf 
fee increases are below 5%.  
 
Renewal of Lease Agreement: 
 
Director Alexander stated the farm lease agreement allows Todd Jenkins to utilize city-owned 
land which is used for the Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP). She indicated the lease term 
is for fifty-nine (59) months, with a cost of $45,000.00, and includes a termination clause. The 
lease will require Council approval at the December 10, 2015, council meeting.  
 
Service Disruption for Non-Payment: 
 
Director Alexander stated the Municipal Services Department, Idaho Falls Power, and Public 
Works Department have been collaborating on a policy/procedure for winter disconnect of 
services to correspond with the recently approved Unified Utility Billing, Collection and 
Termination Policy Resolution. Mr. Fife offered general explanation of policies and procedures, 
Resolutions and Ordinances. Mr. McOmber stated the procedure indicates specific 
temperatures for possible remote disconnection of service for delinquent utility accounts. He 
indicated due to the delinquent accounts timeframe being reduced from 50 days to 30 days, 
the City collection rate has increased to 99.45%. Director Alexander stated the Treasurer’s 
Office will allow extended hours beginning December 7, 2015, to allow flexibility for payment 
of delinquent accounts.   
 
Item from the Parks and Recreation Department:  
 
Alcohol Ordinance Revisions: 
 
Mayor Casper expressed her concern with the proposed ordinance and believes there should 
be consistency regarding alcohol with variety of events in the City. Councilmember Hally 
believes this ordinance has been thoroughly discussed and addresses all concerns from the 
Council. Director Weitzel stated discussion of allowing alcohol at special events began 
approximately two (2) years ago and reiterated this ordinance is for special events only as 
requested from the community. Mr. Fife stated the ordinance was revised for clarification of 
food/vendor sales, boundaries, security, and hours but could be expanded as needed. He 
indicated this is not a comprehensive policy, this is for limited use in the parks only. After 
further general discussion it was decided the ordinance would be placed on the December 10, 
2015, council meeting agenda.  
 
There being no further business it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by 
Councilmember Smith, to move into Executive Session at 4:52 p.m., pursuant to the provision 
of Idaho Code Section 74-206A(1)(c) to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned 
by a public agency and not reconvene into Work Session. Roll call as follows: 
 



DECEMBER 7, 2015 
 

4 
 
 

Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried.  
 
The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Executive Session), 
Monday, December 7, 2015, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located 
at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 4:53 p.m., pursuant to the provision of Idaho 
Code Section 74-206A(1)(c) to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned by a 
public agency. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Parry, to move out of 
Executive Session and that the meeting adjourn at 5:20 p.m., which motion passed following a 
unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

1 

 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Regular Council Meeting, Thursday, 
December 10, 2015, in the Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park 
Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca Casper 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
Councilmember Sharon Parry 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
All available Department Directors 
 
Mayor Casper invited Spencer Benson, a student at Rocky Mountain Middle School and Boy 
Scout Troop #336, to come forward and lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comments not related to items on the agenda. No one 
appeared. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Community Development Services Department requested creation of a Planning Technician 
Position.  
 
The City Clerk requested approval of Minutes from the November 9, 2015, Council Work 
Session; November 12, 2015, Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting; November 12, 2015, Regular 
Council Meeting; and November 30, 2015, Area of Impact Meeting. 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of License Applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
The City Clerk requested Council ratification for the publication of legal notices calling for 
public hearings on December 10, 2015. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Parry, to approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda according to recommendations presented. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
   



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

2 

 

Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried.  
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
The Legal Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor Casper 
From:  Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Subject: Ordinance to Establish Salaries, Benefits, and other Compensation 

Because it appears that City Code sections 1-7-2; 1-8-3; and 3-1-9 may be unclear or not in 
conformance with Council expectations, the City Attorney’s office proposes changes to the City 
Code as they appear in the attached Ordinance. If the Ordinance is adopted, Council will 
continue to establish compensation of all employees, (including appointive officers) regarding 
salaries, benefits, and other compensation. The Mayor will continue to regulate, adjust, and 
administer salaries, benefits, and other compensations established by Council-approved 
ordinance (including the City’s annual amended appropriation ordinance), by Council 
resolution, by Council-approved written collective bargaining agreement (where applicable), or 
by other Council-approved agreement. The proposed Ordinance recognizes and complies with 
statutory duties of the Council and Mayor and follows Idaho case law. 
 
After brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember 
Ehardt, to approve the Salaries and Benefits Ordinance under the suspension of the rules 
requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by 
summary. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  Councilmember Parry 
 
Motion carried.  
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3041 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 1, CHAPTERS 7 
AND 8, AND TITLE 3, CHAPTER 1, TO CLARIFY ACTIONS BY COUNCIL AND MAYOR 
RELATIVE TO SALARIES, BENEFITS, AND OTHER COMPENSATION FOR CITY EMPLOYEES; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

3 

 

The Municipal Services Department submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Bid IF-16-F, Ammunition 
 
It is the recommendation of the Police and the Municipal Services Departments to piggyback 
the State of Idaho Contract #SBP01390-02 with Salt Lake Wholesale Sports. The supplier will 
furnish the annual rifle and pistol ammunition for a lump sum amount of $51,883.92. Last 
fiscal year the Police Department expended a total of $58,949.66 for ammunition. 
 
Councilmember Marohn stated the State of Idaho Contract is a standard contract which 
allows all municipalities to purchase ammunition. Chief Mark McBride stated although the 
amount of ammunition has decreased the department is maintaining adequate training for 
Police Department personnel. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to piggyback 
the State of Idaho Contract with Salt Lake Wholesale Sports to furnish the annual rifle and 
pistol ammunition for lump sum amount of $51,883.92, and authorize the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 

Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried.  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Bid IF-16-G, Storage System for Data Backup 
 
It is the recommendation of the Municipal Services Department to piggyback the State of 
Idaho Contract #PADD16200012 with Advanced Systems Group to purchase hardware, 
licenses and support for additional data storage system for a lump sum amount of 
$60,385.22. This purchase is recommended by the Information Technology Division to ensure 
there is sufficient storage system capacity for all city technology data. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to piggyback 
the State of Idaho Contract with Advanced Systems Group to purchase hardware, licenses and 
support for additional data storage system for a lump sum amount of $60,385.22, and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

4 

 

 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Bid IF-16-04, Pressure Digger Truck for IF Power 
 
It is the recommendation of Idaho Falls Power and the Municipal Services Departments to 
piggyback the General Services Contract #GS-30F-1028G with Altec Industries, Inc. The 
supplier will furnish a Hydraulic Pressure Digger on a 2017 Freightliner Cab and Chassis for a 
lump sum amount of $314,064.00. This is to replace City of Idaho Falls Unit #323, 1986 
International Truck with a Digger Derrick Bed that has reached the end of its useful life.  This 
vehicle is budgeted in the Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF). 
 
Director Flowers stated this particular equipment is not used on a daily basis but due to the 
age and frequent maintenance of the vehicle it has become necessary to replace this vehicle.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to piggyback 
the General Services Contract with Altec Industries, Inc. to furnish a Hydraulic Pressure 
Digger on a 2017 Freightliner Cab and Chassis for a lump sum amount of $314,064.00, and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Waste Water Treatment Plant Farm Lease 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

5 

 

It is the recommendation of the Public Works and Municipal Services Department to approve 
the attached Farm Lease Agreement between the City of Idaho Falls and Todd Jenkins for 
City-owned property located at 4061 Glen Koster Lane, Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402.  The term of 
the lease begins February 1, 2016 and ends on January 31, 2020. The total rental amount of 
the lease is $45,000. Public Works and Municipal Services does not anticipate that the 
property will be needed for public purposes during the term of this agreement. The farm lease 
agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney and Public Works.     
 
Director Alexander stated there was only one proposal received following public notification for 
this lease. 
  
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the 
Farm Lease Agreement between the City of Idaho Falls and Todd Jenkins which begins 
February 1, 2016, and ends on January 31, 2020, for a total rental amount of $45,000, and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Idaho Falls Power submitted the following items for Council consideration:  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Approve a Non-Disclosure Agreement with Elster Solutions LLC 
 
Idaho Falls Power (IFP) has completed deployment of an upgrade to our meter system with 
Elster Solutions LLC.  As part of the city-wide software conversion to Cayenta, IFP will be 
working with Elster Solutions LLC to integrate the two systems.  In order to complete that 
integration, we are requiring an updated Non-Disclosure Agreement with Elster Solutions LLC.  
 
Idaho Falls Power respectfully requests City Council approve the Non-Disclosure Agreement 
with Elster Solutions LLC and authorize Mayor Casper to execute the document. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the 
Non-Disclosure Agreement between Elster Solutions LLC and the City of Idaho Falls, and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

6 

 

  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Approve Change Order #6 for the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and Rewind Project 
 
On June 19, City Council awarded the Old Lower Plant general contractor bid to Hydro 
Consulting and Maintenance Services (HCMS) in the amount of $4,858,776.46. This project is 
a subset of the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and Rewind Project in the Capital Improvement Plan 
and is in both FY15 and FY16 budgets.  
 
In the award memo addressed to Council, staff noted that the bid included some potential 
deducts that were to be explored as construction progressed. Exploration of those deducts 
resulted in the initial purchase order to HCMS being issued for $320,400.00 less than the 
HCMS bid and Council authorized award level.  
 
The contractor has recommended an alternative excitation system to ensure we can achieve 
the full rating of the generator. We have selected Option 1 of Change Order #6 which will 
retain our standardization of Basler equipment. Our engineer, Mooney Consulting, concurs 
that the change order is needed and that Option 1 is acceptable. Change Order #6 in the 
amount of $172,082.00 leads to a new contract price of $4,892,341.41.  
 
Idaho Falls Power respectfully requests City Council approve Change Order #6 based on 
Option 1 for $172,082.00, and authorize the Mayor to execute the document. 
 
Director Flowers stated not all change orders have been approved by the consulting firm.  
Change Order #6 is the third change order to be approved.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve 
Change Order #6 based on Option 1 for $172,082.00 for the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and 
Rewind Project, and authorize the Mayor to execute the documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

7 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Approve Change Order #8 for the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and Rewind Project 
 
On June 19, City Council awarded the Old Lower Plant general contractor bid to Hydro 
Consulting and Maintenance Services (HCMS) in the amount of $4,858,776.46. This project is 
a subset of the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and Rewind Project in the Capital Improvement Plan 
and is in both FY15 and FY16 budgets.  
 
Change Order #8 provides for necessary rebuild of the turbine guide bearings for both units. 
Our engineer, Mooney Consulting, concurs that the change order is needed. Change Order #8 
in the amount of $73,944.00 leads to a new contract price of $4,966,285.41.  
 
Idaho Falls Power respectfully requests City Council approve Change Order #8 for $73,944.00 
and authorize the Mayor to execute the document. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve 
Change Order #8 for $73,944.00 for the Old Lower Plant Upgrade and Rewind Project, and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Approve Asset Purchase Agreement between Rocky Mountain Power and City of 

Idaho Falls 
 
Attached is an Asset Purchase Agreement between Rocky Mountain Power and the City of 
Idaho Falls related to customer exchange of electrical service and assets at Fielding Cemetery.  
 
Fielding Cemetery, which is in the Idaho Falls City limits, has historically been served by 
Rocky Mountain Power. Approval of this agreement will authorize a customer and asset 
transfer to allow Idaho Falls Power to serve Fielding Cemetery. Rocky Mountain Power is 
preparing an application to the Public Utility Commission to seek approval, in accordance with 
Sections 4.02 and 12 of the agreement. The City Attorney has reviewed the agreement.  
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

8 

 

In accordance with Idaho Falls City Code section 8-5-33, the Parks & Recreation Department 
will pay one-half of the total transfer fee which is $49,321.61. The other one-half is paid by 
Idaho Falls Power.  
 
Staff respectfully requests City Council approve the Asset Purchase Agreement and authorize 
the Mayor to execute the document. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the 
Asset Purchase Agreement between Rocky Mountain Power and the City of Idaho Falls and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Lehto 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Approve Joint Memorandum of Understanding with CenturyLink and Declare a 

Sole Source 
 
Idaho Falls Power has a number of poles in our service territory that are joint use with 
CenturyLink, providing physical space for both Idaho Falls Power and CenturyLink. 
CenturyLink is performing an audit of their facilities and attachments within our service 
territory. Idaho Falls Power desires to update our pole attachment inventory in conjunction 
with their work as we prepare to enter into a formal joint use agreement.  
 
Idaho Falls Power will be required to contribute its share of costs for the overall audit. The cost 
estimate for this work is $35,000. Because Idaho Falls Power and CenturyLink occupy 
positions on the same power poles and CenturyLink has already engaged a company to 
conduct an audit of their facilities, it is highly impractical or impossible to separately bid each 
party's facilities attachments for audit. Additionally, Idaho Falls Power is not authorized to bid 
work on assets owned by CenturyLink. The City Attorney has reviewed this request and the 
associated Joint Memorandum of Understanding.  
 
In recognition of these circumstances, staff requests City Council recognize CenturyLink as 
the sole source vendor for this work and that associated bidding requirements be waived and 
that Mayor Casper be authorized to execute the Joint Memorandum of Understanding with 
CenturyLink for an amount not to exceed $35,000. 
 
Director Flowers stated this is maximizing efficiency by combining the audit with CenturyLink.  



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

9 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to recognize 
CenturyLink as the sole source vendor for this work and the associated bidding requirements 
be waived and authorize the Mayor to execute the Joint Memorandum of Understanding with 
CenturyLink for an amount not to exceed $35,000. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Public Works Department submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Cooperative Agreement for Sewage Treatment and Collection - Iona Bonneville 

Sewer District (IBSD) 
 
Attached for your consideration is a Cooperative Agreement for Sewage Treatment and 
Collection with the Iona Bonneville Sewer District (IBSD). The agreement is for a period of five 
(5) years and replaces the previous agreement that expired in 2014. The sewer service 
agreement also addresses an increase to the IBSD sewer service area.  
 
Public Works recommends approval of the cooperative agreement; and, authorization for 
Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated the previous agreement with IBSD was for a 40-year time frame 
and had been extended for one (1) year to allow thorough review prior to renewal.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Lehto, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the 
Cooperative Agreement for Sewage Treatment and Collection with the Iona Bonneville Sewer 
District and give authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
   
Nay:  None 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

10 

 

Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Easement Vacation – Westland Heights, Division 3 
 
As earlier authorized, the City Attorney has prepared the attached documents to vacate a 
power easement that runs through the subject development on the northwest corner of 
Broadway and Skyline Drive.  
 
Public Works recommends approval of this vacation; and, authorization for Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
easement vacation Ordinance for Westland Heights, Division 3, under the suspension of the 
rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published 
by summary. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3042 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO, PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF A POWER LINE EASEMENT IN 
LOT 27 AND LOT 28 OF BLOCK 4 OF THE WESTLAND HEIGHTS, DIVISION 3 FIRST 
AMENDED SUBDIVISION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AND LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT TITLE TO SAID 
VACATED POWER LINE EASEMENT SHALL VEST AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3 OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER PASSAGE, APPROVAL AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Greg A. Weitzel, Director, Parks and Recreation Department 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

11 

 

Subject: Alcohol in the Parks Ordinance Changes 
 
Attached for your consideration is a draft amended ordinance providing for the sale and 
consumption of beer and wine in park and recreation facilities during permitted events; 
establishing a permitting process for such permitted events and establishing requirements 
therefor, including insurance, catering license for alcohol vendors, site maps, restriction on 
sales and consumption, and provision of security. The changes have been reviewed and 
approved by the City Attorney.  
 
The Department of Parks and Recreation respectfully requests the authorization and approval 
of said changes by City Council. 
 
Councilmember Hally stated the Council’s practice is to thoroughly discuss issues and 
concerns regarding any alcohol considerations within City limits. He briefly explained 
provisions of the proposed ordinance. Councilmember Ehardt stated she prefers distinct, 
closed-off locations and is not in favor of Tautphaus Park or Freeman Park as approved 
locations. Councilmember Lehto believes this ordinance is reasonable with regard to 
community requests and the required security and insurance provisions will maintain civility. 
He believes this ordinance is a good first step but may need updated in the future. 
Councilmember Parry stated she agrees with Councilmember Ehardt by excluding Tautphaus 
Park and Freeman Park as approved locations. Director Weitzel believes this is ordinance a 
good start to fulfill community requests and does not oppose excluding Tautphaus Park and 
Freeman Park.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Hally, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Ordinance amending Title 8, Chapter 3, of the City Code with the recommendation that 
Tautphaus Park and Freeman Park be excluded, under the suspension of the rules requiring 
three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. 
Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
 
Nay:  Councilmember Smith 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3044 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 8, CHAPTER 3, 
OF THE IDAHO FALLS CITY CODE; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF 
BEER AND WINE IN PARK AND RECREATION FACILITIES DURING PERMITTED EVENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A PERMITTING PROCESS FOR SUCH PERMITTED EVENTS AND 
ESTABLISHING REQUIREMENTS THEREFOR, INCLUDING INSURANCE, CATERING 
LICENSES FOR ALCOHOL VENDORS, SITE MAPS, RESTRICTION ON SALES AND 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

12 

 

CONSUMPTION, AND PROVISION OF SECURITY; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
The Community Development Services Department submitted the following items for Council 
consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: Resolution to Modify Policy Regarding Work on Electrical Service Panels  
 
Attached is a resolution adopting a policy to prevent work on energized electrical panels.  In 
the past, the City has allowed work to be done on energized panels.  However, to be more 
consistent with Occupational Safety Health Administration (OSHA) recommendations, to 
reduce City liability, and in recognition that homeowners are permitted by Idaho Code to 
perform electrical work without training or licensure, the proposed policy restricts the City and 
Idaho Falls Power from energizing electrical service panels until all conductors are terminated. 
This policy has been discussed and developed by staff from Community Development Services, 
Idaho Falls Power, and the Legal Department. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Resolution to modify policy regarding work on electrical service panels, and authorize the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute said documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-32 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO, ADOPTING A POLICY TO NOT ENERGIZE ELECTRICAL SERVICE 
DISCONNECTS UNTIL ALL ELECTRICAL CONDUCTORS ARE TERMINATED, AND PROVIDING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION WILL BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL, EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW. 
 
WHEREAS, 29 CFR 1926.416(a)(1) requires that exposed energized electrical conductors and 
terminations be de-energized before an employee may work on or near them, in order to 
prevent electrical shocks or arc flash hazards; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the goal of the Occupational Safety Health Administration (OSHA) standard is to 
protect the employee from dangerous and preventable hazards; and, 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

13 

 

WHEREAS, a journeyman electrician who works on energized electrical panels is subjected to 
unnecessary electrical shocks or arc flash hazards which can cause property damage and 
bodily harm; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Code allows for homeowners to perform electrical work without 
licensure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to minimize hazards created by the energizing or re-
energizing of electrical panels prior to termination of all electrical conductors by adopting this 
Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City of Idaho Falls (including its Idaho Falls Power Department) will not energize an 
electrical service after a disconnect or following new construction until, as determined by the 
City electrical inspector or designee, all conductors are terminated. 
 
2. A call-out fee may be charged for energizing or re-energizing pursuant to the City’s Fee 
Resolution pursuant to other relevant City and IFP policy. 
 
3. This policy shall be in effect beginning at 7 a.m. local time on April 1, 2016. 
 
ADOPTED this 10th day of December, 2015. 
 
      CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 

 
s/ Rebecca L. Noah Casper 

      Rebecca L. Noah Casper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
s/ Kathy Hampton 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss: 
County of Bonneville ) 
 
I, KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY: 
 
That the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Resolution entitled, “A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, ADOPTING A POLICY TO NOT ENERGIZE ELECTRICAL SERVICE 
DISCONNECTS UNTIL ALL ELECTRICAL CONDUCTORS ARE TERMINATED, AND PROVIDING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION WILL BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL, EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW.” 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

14 

 

      s/ Kathy Hampton 
      Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: FY 2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan and FY 2016-2020 CDBG 5-Year 

Consolidated Plan 
 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program funded through the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is required to hold a public hearing to consider the 
FY2016 Annual Action Plan and the FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan.  
 
The FY2015 CDBG allocation was $342,928.00. Congress has not yet passed the HUD budget 
and the FY2016 allocation is not yet known.  However, allocations tend to be similar from year 
to year.  Attached is a list of projects and activities submitted for FY2016 funding. The total for 
all application requests is $476,795.00.  
 
Following the public hearing, a required 30-day public comment period will begin on 
December 11, 2015, and end on January 12, 2016. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all items presented by staff be entered 
into the record. She stated the public hearing was for requests only and there would be no 
action taken on behalf of the Council at this time.  
 
Lisa Farris, Grant Administrator, appeared to explain the CDBG program with the following 
presentation: 
 

Slide 1: Idaho Falls 2016-2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Five 
Year Consolidated Plan: 
 
-Identifies the City’s housing, community development, economic development, and public 
service priorities, goals, and strategies. 
-Stipulates how funds will be allocated to address the needs.  

 
Plan History 

2004  City applies/approved by HUD as an Entitlement City 
 Entitlement status allows the City to apply directly to HUD for annual CDBG funds.  

 
Five Year Plans  
2004-2009/10 Initial Five Year Plan 
2011-2015  Second Five Year Plan 
2016-2020  Third Five Year Plan  

  
 Slide 2: Idaho Falls 2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Plan: 
 
 Input for priorities provided by: 

• City officials/Directors 
• Service provider organizations/agencies  
• Region 6 Housing Coalition members  



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

15 

 

• Idaho Downtown Dev. Corp. (IFDDC)  
• Rotary-Idaho Falls Chapter 
 
Input gathered from Nov 2014 to mid-Dec 2015 by:  
• Interviews 
• Online surveys 
• Presentations Town Hall meetings 
Posted on City/CDBG website    

 
 Slide 3: (Survey Results)       

Priorities for 2016-2020   2011-15 Priorities 
  

1. Homeless & at risk of homeless-transitional housing, 
domestic violence victims, job training 

1. Housing 

2. Public service needs – transportation, employment 
training, handicapped services 

2. Public Facility 

3. Economic development – job creation, downtown 
revitalization, Infrastructure for job creation 

3. Transportation 

4. Infrastructure improvement – street and sidewalk 
improvements, flood or drainage 

4. Slum/Blight 

5. Housing needs – Fair housing activities, rental and 
owner property rehab  

5. Infrastructure improvements 

6. Youth programs – youth services, centers, child care 
services 

6. Public Service 

7. Public facilities – ADA accessibility, fire stations, 
neighborhood centers 

7. Economic Development 

8. Senior programs – senior services, centers, programs 8. Housing needs 
9. Anti-crime programs – crime awareness and anti-crime 
programs 

9. Anti-Crime Programs 
 

10. Code enforcement – increase clean up events in LMI 
areas 

 

  
 Slide 4: Draft FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan: 

HUD/CDBG Funds 
As an Entitlement City - Annual CDBG Action Plan is submitted to HUD for approval of Council 
approved projects/activities. 

 2004 to 2015 
$4,774,136 Total HUD/CDBG funds allocated to Idaho Falls                          
 
Currently for 2016  

        FY2016 CDBG Allocation pending approval of HUD  
14 applications - Totaling $476,795 

 
 Slide 5: City/CDBG Benefits: 
 

Providing Opportunities 
Assists City in funding projects/programs not funded with General Funds. 
Assists local service providers with filling a gap in service.  
Assists City and local service providers in leveraging additional funds.  

              
2016 Draft Plan starts our 13th year of participating in CDBG  

 FY2010 CDBG allocation   $441,000 
 FY2011 CDBG allocation   $369,546 
 FY2012 CDBG allocation   $314,082 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

16 

 

 FY2013 CDBG allocation   $361,453 
 FY2014 CDBG allocation   $342,373 
 FY2015 CDBG allocation   $342,928 
                  Total CDBG funds from 2010 to 2015   $2,171,382 
      
    FY2016 CDBG allocation to be determined - Plan year goes from April 1 to March 31st 
 
 Slide 6: CDBG Program and HUD Criteria: 

 
All Projects/Activities  

          Must meet 1 of 3 National Objectives (HUD) 
-Benefit Low/Moderate Income clients (LMI) 

   2015 - Bonneville County LMI = family of 4 with income < $48,250 
   FY2016 Income Limits not yet available 

-Prevent/Eliminate conditions of Slum and Blight 
-Meet an Urgent Need 

Must be a HUD Eligible Activity  
-Construction of Public Infrastructure 
-Handicapped Access to Public Facilities 
-Housing Rehab, Social Services, Business Rehab 
-Acquisition, Clearance, and Disposition of property 
-Relocation costs, Economic Development, Job Creation or Training 

Additional Criteria 
-Projects must meet the goals of City’s 2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated 
  Plan  

           -Projects must be approved for the FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan 
  
 Slide 7: LMI Neighborhoods (Census Tracks) 
    
   Census Tract/LMI % 
    

9707 66.53% 
9711 59.86% 
9712 65.26% 

 
Slide 8: CDBG Program and HUD Criteria:  

 
Projects/Activities must fit into 1 of 4 HUD Priorities 

Community Development Priority  
Neighborhood revitalization activities that promote public health, safety and  
welfare. 
Economic Development Priority  
Improve economic conditions throughout the community for primarily Low to  
Moderate Income (LMI) persons. 

  Housing Development Priority 
Encourage development of new, affordable single, multi-family, and special needs  
housing through private developers and non-profits. 

  Public Service Priority  
Encourage partnerships with social service providers, faith-based groups, private  
businesses, school districts, non-profit agencies, and community leaders to meet  
the needs of families in poverty. 

 
 Slide 9: Example - Construction of Public Infrastructure:  
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

17 

 

Saturn Sidewalk Project Redirected FY2013 CDBG TRPTA Bus Match Funds 
(Saturn/Mountain View/Dodson Streets) 

 Sidewalk linked, concrete pad added for bus bench with TRPTA Sign, ADA Intersection  
and Pedestrian Crosswalk added 

 
 Slide 10: 
 
 Bus Bench, TRPTA Sign and Pedestrian Sidewalk 
 
 Slide 11: 
 
 Code Enforcement in LMI Census Tract Neighborhoods 
 
 Slide 12: 
 

Economic Development  
Assisting Downtown through Façade Improvement Projects  
Farmers Merchant Bank Building (Inkley’s Bldg.) 
Phase 1 of 2 (replacement of 2nd floor windows) 

 
 Slide 13: 
 
 Housing Rehab LIFE, Inc. (Living Independently For Everyone) 
 Disabled senior citizen’s home made ADA Accessible 
 
 Slide 14: 
 
 Acquisition, clearance, and disposition of property 
 Habitat for Humanity Idaho Falls – Acquisition Project 
 
 Slide 15: 
 

FY2016 CDBG Applicants Amount 
Requested  

  
Project/Activity Description 

Partners for Prosperity (P4P) 10,000 Services to assist Idaho Falls clients with financial counseling, group 
financial classes and   
personal  development training 

Idaho Legal Aid Idaho Falls 10,000 Legal assistance for victims of domestic abuse 

Bonneville Metropolitan 
Planning Org. (BMBO)  

3670 Transportation Grant - Match requirement for $50,000 Safe Routes to 
School (SR2S) grant  
to provide evaluation, encouragement, and incentives for LMA schools 

CLUB, Inc.  18,000 Crisis  Intervention (CIT) - Case Management support for crisis housing 
related services 

East Idaho Community Action 
Partners (EICAP) 

8,000  Legal aid assistance for Grandparents who are raising their grandchildren 

Community Council of Idaho 
1349 South Holmes Ave 

10,400  Computer lab equipment upgrade: (1) Smart Board, (1) Portable 
Projector, (1) set of  
Bose Computer Speakers, (5) Surface Pro Computers, and Rosetta Stone 
Volumes 1-5 

Idaho  Falls Downtown  
Development Corp. (IFDDC) 

60,000  Façade Improvements, Code Corrections, Awnings, and Signs to the 
Downtown area 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

18 

 

Planning Dept.  71,500 Full time Code Enforcement for LMI neighborhoods (within 3 US Census 
Tracts) 

Public Works Dept.   50,000 Curb/gutter/sidewalk replacement in LMI neighborhoods 
Public Works Dept. 10,000  Water line replacement for LMI clients in LMI neighborhoods 
(LIFE, Inc.) Living 
Independently for Everyone 

50,000 Improve (ADA) access for 7 homeowners with ramps and bathroom 
remodels 

Idaho Falls Community 
Senior Citizen Center  

24,640  Replace (2) AC units. Replace Accordion curtains 

Idaho Falls Rescue Mission 
ADA Improvements to Ruth 
House and the ARK. 

52,000  Ruth House - Install ADA restroom off kitchen area, make (2) residential 
units ADA  
compliant with bathroom modifications and exterior ramp.  
 ARK - make ADA compliant with bathroom modifications. 

Habitat for Humanity  
Idaho Falls (H4HIF) 

30,000 Acquisition/rehab to purchase property in LMI area for homeownership 
for an LMI family 

Administration 
(20% of 2015 allocation) 

68,585 Administer CDBG Program: Includes salary, benefits, supplies, training, 
and resources  

Total  Applications $476,795 2015 Allocation was $342,928 

 
 Slide 16: Schedule for FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG 

Consolidated Plan (Announcements, Council Work Sessions, Council 
Meetings, and Public Hearings): 

 
 Oct 18, 2015 - Invitation to Apply in Post Register (Sunday) 

Nov 2, 2015 - Applications due to Grant Administrator  
Dec 7, 2015 - Council Work Session 3:00 pm in Council Chambers  

Grant Administrator provides brief summary of potential projects/activities/schedule to 
Mayor and City Council 

Dec 10, 2015 - Council Meeting - Public Hearing 7:30 pm - Council Chambers 
Drafts: 2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Yr. Consolidated 
Plan 

 Applicant invited to provide brief explanation of project/activity 
Dec 10, 2015  - 30-day public comment starts-Draft Plans on City website  

  Draft FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan  
  Draft FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan 
 30-Day Public Comment Period Starts Dec 10, 2015 thru Jan 11, 2016  
 
Ms. Farris invited all applicants to appear before Council and describe their requests. 
 
Shalyn Peirsol, Financial Program Manager, Partners for Prosperity, 625 West Pacific Suite 1 
Blackfoot, ID 83221, appeared. Ms. Peirsol stated the focus of the grant application is to assist 
high school juniors and seniors as well as assisting with those who are chronically 
unemployed.  
 
Joe Ernest, Attorney, Idaho Legal Aid, 482 Constitution Way Idaho Falls, ID 83402, appeared. 
Mr. Ernest is submitting a request for legal assistance for victims of domestic abuse. 
 
Dena Skinner, Operations Manager, CLUB, Inc., 620 South Woodruff Idaho Falls, ID 83401, 
appeared. Ms. Skinner stated the CDBG funds assist with housing and services regarding 
homelessness. 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

19 

 

Nick Burrows, Senior and Family Services Director, Eastern Idaho Community Action 
Partnership (EICAP), PO Box 51098 Idaho Falls, ID 83405, appeared. Mr. Burrows is 
requesting funds for legal assistance for grandparents raising grandchildren and relative 
caregivers of minor children.  
 
Laura Gramirez, Regional Employment and Training Specialist, Community Council of Idaho, 
appeared. Ms. Gramirez is requesting funds to update the computer lab. The lab is utilized for 
a variety of reasons to assist clients in the workforce as well as the general public.  
 
Krisi Staten, Executive Director for Idaho Falls Downtown Development Corporation (IFDDC), 
425 North Capital Idaho Falls, ID 83402, appeared. Ms. Staten is requesting funds to assist 
with the back log of downtown improvement applications.  
 
Brad Cramer, Director, Community Development Services Department, appeared. Director 
Cramer is requesting funds to cover salary and benefits of Code Enforcement Officer. Director 
Cramer stated code enforcement is supported by HUD.  
 
Chris Frederickson, Director, Public Works Division, appeared. Director Fredericksen stated 
two (2) requests are being submitted: 1) funds for curb, gutter, and sidewalk replacement and 
2) water line replacements in low to moderate income neighborhoods.  
 
Valisa Say, Executive Director, Idaho Falls Senior Citizen Community Center, 535 W 21st 
Street Idaho Falls, ID 83402, appeared. Ms. Say is requesting funds for replacement of two (2) 
air conditioning units as well as replacement of curtains to allow separation of programs.  
 
John Howze, Community Engagement Director, Idaho Falls Rescue Mission, 840 Park Ave 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402, appeared. Mr. Howze is requesting funds for ADA projects at the Ruth 
House and the ARK. 
 
Ms. Farris described the CDBG schedule for FY2016 Annual Action Plan.  
 
 Slide 17: FY2016 CDBG Schedule After 30 day Comment Period: 
 
 Jan 25, 2016 - Council Work Session 3:00 pm in Council Chambers 

If no comments; final table provided for consensus of projects/activities for Draft CDBG
 FY2016 Annual Action Plan AND Draft FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year 
Consolidated Plan 

Jan 28, 2016 - Council Meeting/Resolution 7:30 pm in Council Chambers  
  Council adopts Draft FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan 
  Council adopts Draft FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan 
  Jan 28, 2016 - Draft FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan HUD via (eCon)  
  Draft FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan to HUD via (eCon) 
   (Includes Forms 424 and Certifications) 
  Mid-May, 2016 - Allocation made available to City by HUD provided: 
  Federal budget is reached;  
  HUD approves FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan; 
  HUD approves FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan. 

May/June, 2016 - Funding committed to approved projects once the City completes: 
  Environmental review  
  Signed Agreement (with Scope of Work and regulatory requirements) between  
  City and responsible entity 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

20 

 

Note - Projects are not retroactive - Start date begins upon signed Agreement between City and responsible 
entity 
 
Mayor Casper expressed her appreciation to all applicants.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: Request to Rezone from RSC-1 to R-3A, Zoning Ordinance, Reasoned Statement 

of Relevant Criteria and Standards, West 80' of Lots 19 and 20, Block 1, Lorin C. 
Anderson, 2nd Amended and the West 173.10 feet of Lot 11, Block 1, Lorin C. 
Anderson, 1st Amended 

 
Attached is the application for rezoning from RSC-1 (Residential Shopping Center Zone) to R-
3A (Residence Zone), Zoning Ordinance, Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and 
Standards, West 80' of Lots 19 and 20, Block 1, Lorin C. Anderson, 2nd Amended and the West 
173.10 feet of Lot 11, Block  1, Lorin C. Anderson, 1st Amended.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission considered this change at its November 3, 2015, meeting and recommended 
approval.  Staff concurs with this recommendation. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff materials and presentation be 
entered into the record.  
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following: 
 
 Slide 1: Vicinity map  
 Slide 2: Aerial photo of property under consideration  
 Slide 3: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 
 Slide 4: Photo looking east across property 
 Slide 5: Photo looking south  
 Slide 6: Photo looking north  
Director Cramer stated typical concerns regarding re-zoning involve potential land use and 
this particular area would allow several uses. He indicated any development on the parcel 
would be expected to follow all requirements. 
 
Mayor Casper invited any public comment. 
 
Kim Leavitt, 985 N. Capital, Idaho Falls, appeared. Mr. Leavitt stated he was appearing on 
behalf of the owners who own portions of the parcel and are requesting all property be 
consistently zoned. 
 
Rolonda Bjornson, 2015 St. Clair, Idaho Falls, appeared. Ms. Bjornson stated she is a long-
time resident in that particular area. She is not opposed to the development but is not in favor 
of the re-zone until a specified use is determined.  
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

21 

 

Ken Krivanek, 2185 St. Clair, Idaho Falls, appeared. Mr. Krivanek stated he is also a long-time 
resident in that particular area and would like the opportunity to provide input for any future 
development.  
 
Paul Savidis, 2325 Craig Avenue, Idaho Falls, appeared. Mr. Savidis stated there is no access 
to St. Clair and therefore a previous project was not approved. He requested the traffic 
concerns be addressed. 
 
Michelle Franck, 955 E. 21st Street, Idaho Falls, appeared. Ms. Franck believes re-zoning 
would allow for larger complexes. She stated the traffic is currently an issue and is against any 
further traffic increase.  
 
Councilmember Parry expressed concern for St. Clair and the traffic signal. Director Cramer 
stated the re-zone request could possibly increase traffic during peak hours. He indicated any 
traffic studies would be performed once the land use is determined.   
 
Mr. Leavitt reappeared and stated a traffic study would be required for any specific use.  
 
Director Cramer stated any Planned Unit Development (PUD) will be enforced by ordinance 
requirements.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
After further brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by 
Councilmember Lehto, to approve the Ordinance rezoning West 80' of Lots 19 and 20, Block 1, 
Lorin C. Anderson, 2nd Amended and the West 173.10 feet of Lot 11, Block 1, Lorin C. 
Anderson, 1st Amended, under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and 
separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. Roll call as follows.  
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the Ordinance by title only: 
  

ORDINANCE NO. 3045 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE REZONING OF WEST 80 FEET OF LOTS 19 
AND 20, BLOCK 1, LORIN C. ANDERSON, 2ND AMENDED AND THE WEST 173.10 FEET OF 
LOT 11, BLOCK 1, LORIN C. ANDERSON, 1ST AMENDED AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF 
THIS ORDINANCE FROM RSC-1 ZONE TO R-3A ZONE; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

22 

 

 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the rezoning West 80' of Lots 19 
and 20, Block 1, Lorin C. Anderson, 2nd Amended and the West 173.10 feet of Lot 11, Block 1, 
Lorin C. Anderson, 1st Amended, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Lehto 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: Annexation with Initial Zoning of R-1, Development Agreement, Annexation 

Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, Final Plat, and Reasoned Statements of Relevant 
Criteria and Standards, Yorkside, Division No. 2:   

 
Attached is the application for Annexation with Initial Zoning of R-1, Annexation Agreement, 
Annexation Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, Final Plat, and Reasoned Statements, Yorkside, 
Division No. 2. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at its October 6, 
2015, meeting and recommended approval.  Staff concurs with the recommendation.  This 
item is now being submitted to the Mayor and City Council for consideration. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff materials and presentation be 
entered into the record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following: 
 
 Slide 1: Vicinity map  
 Slide 2: Aerial photo of property under consideration  
 Slide 3: Plat overlay on top of recently approved Preliminary Plat 

Slide 4: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 
 Slide 5: Final Plat 
 Slide 6: Preliminary Plat which was recently approved 
 Slide 7: Photo looking northeast and east from Casa Drive 
 Slide 8: Photo looking southeast and south from Casa Drive  
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comment. No one appeared.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

23 

 

After brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember 
Lehto, to approve the Development Agreement for Yorkside Division No. 2, and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as 
follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
  
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Ordinance annexing Yorkside Division No. 2, under the suspension of the rules requiring three 
complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3046 
 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN LANDS TO THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS LOCATED 
GENERALLY SOUTH OF TOWNSHIP ROAD, WEST OF HOLMES AVENUE, NORTH OF YORK 
ROAD, AND EAST OF PARK ROAD; AMENDING THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY 
WITH THE APPROPRIATE COUNTY AND STATE AUTHORITIES; AND PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the annexation for Yorkside 
Division No. 2, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Lehto 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

24 

 

  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Ordinance assigning a Comprehensive Plan Designation of Low Density and establishing the 
initial zoning for Yorkside Division No. 2 as R-1 Zone, under the suspension of the rules 
requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by 
summary, that the Comprehensive Plan be amended to include the area annexed herewith, 
and that the City Planner be instructed to reflect said annexation, zoning, and amendment to 
the Comprehensive Plan on the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps located in the Planning 
Office. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3047 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE INITIAL ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.127 
ACRES DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF THIS ORDINANCE AS R-1 ZONE; AND PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Initial Zoning of R-1 for 
Yorkside Division No. 2, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

25 

 

 
Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to accept the Final 
Plat for Yorkside Division No. 2, and give authorization for the Mayor, City Engineer, and City 
Clerk to sign said Final Plat. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Final Plat for Yorkside Division 
No. 2, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as 
follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: Zoning Ordinance Modification to Reduce Required Parking for Dwelling Units in 

the CC-1 Zone 
 
Attached is a proposed modification to the Zoning Ordinance to reduce the required number of 
parking stalls per dwelling unit in the CC-1 zone from two to one.  This change was 
recommended by the downtown housing study completed by Leland Consulting.  The request 
came from the Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency and has also been discussed with the Idaho 
Falls Downtown Development Corporation.  The Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
this change at its November 3, 2015, meeting and recommended approval. Staff concurs with 
the Commission and recommends approval of the ordinance. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing. 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 – Unapproved 

26 

 

 
Director Cramer indicated he had no formal presentation to be entered into the record. He 
stated the original request applied to the downtown area only, however the ordinance was 
modified to include any CC-1 zone. The CC-1 zone is applicable to pedestrian travel. Brief 
discussion followed.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the 
modifications to the Zoning Ordinance amending Title 10, Chapter 3, Section 5 as presented, 
under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it 
be read by title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Lehto 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3048 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 10, CHAPTER 3, 
SECTION 5, TO REDUCE PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR DWELLING UNITS IN THE CC-1 
ZONE; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Hally, seconded by 
Councilmember Ehardt, to adjourn at 10:30 p.m. which motion passed by unanimous vote. 
  
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 
 
 
 
 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 
 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Idaho Falls Power 
Board Meeting), Thursday, December 10, 2015, at the Idaho Falls Power Conference Room,      
located at 140 S. Capital Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:00 a.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper (by phone) 
Councilmember Sharon Parry  
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt  
Councilmember David Smith 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
 
Also present: 
 
Jackie Flowers, Idaho Falls Power Director 
Bear Prairie, Idaho Falls Power Assistant Director (by phone) 
Randy Fife, City Attorney  
John Radford 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Councilmember Lehto called the meeting to order at 7:00 a.m. and turned the meeting to 
Director Flowers with the following agenda items: 
 
Discussion of Proposed Financial Stability and Credit Worthiness Policy: 
 
Director Flowers stated due to the recent bond retirements, the Rate Stabilization Fund policy 
and the Risk Management Policy are being combined into one policy. This policy is intended to 
set provisions to maintain a strong fiscal position. Director Flowers reviewed the policy as 
follows with general discussion throughout: 
 

Section 1: Introductory naming assets and power supply contracts 
Section 2: Purpose of the policy 
Section 3: Setting policies and principles of the rating agency criteria  

-Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) will expanded from five (5) years to ten  
 (10) years 
-Insurance modification 
-Reinforcement of cost causation principles 
-Number of days cash on hand 
-Fund balances including Capital Fund, Rate Stabilization Fund,  
 Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF), Weatherization Fund,  
 In-kind transfers 

 
Mr. Prairie reviewed the Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) relative with rate funds. The PCA was 
designed to be a transparent mechanism to take into account the wholesale revenue risk the 
utility naturally has with our dependence on hydro conditions from year to year along with 
wholesale market prices.  The policy will allow consistency on transfers. General discussion 
followed.  
 
Discussion of Electric Vehicle Charging Stations: 



DECEMBER 10, 2015 
 

2 
 

 
Director Flowers stated a Spirae charger was installed at Idaho Falls Power (IFP) in June 2012, 
for a demonstration project. The charging station did not include point of sale and did not 
allow fast charge capability. IFP has been investigating universal charging stations allowing 
fast charge capability and point of sales payment options. Director Flowers stated there has 
been communication with Tesla regarding installation of four (4) supercharging pedestals 
capable of charging up to eight (8) Tesla vehicles located on private property in the Idaho Falls 
area. IFP would provide and install the infrastructure and Tesla would construct the charging 
stations. The charging stations would be for Tesla vehicles only and electric rates (including 
demand charges) will be paid. Mr. Prairie stated the charging stations will be good for public 
relations, will provide additional revenue for IFP, and could help identify the need for an 
additional customer class of EV charging. Director Flowers stated the supercharging stations 
would also provide information to IFP regarding grid demand, assistance with customer 
service, and infrastructure planning abilities. Director Flowers anticipates the agreement will 
be included on the December 17, 2015, Council Meeting agenda for Council approval.  
 
Discussion of Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Opt Out Provisions: 
 
Director Flowers stated preparations are being made to notify the 87 IFP customers of the 
additional charge for AMI opt out. Effective January 2016, opt out customers will see an 
increase of $6.50 on their monthly billing statement per Rate Resolution adopted with the 
FY16 Budget and Ordinance recently approved by City Council. She stated the fee will be 
evaluated on an annual basis with Municipal Services Department. Director Flowers stated 
fees may also be adjusted with Cayenta software capabilities.  
 
There being no further business, it moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by 
Councilmember Marohn, that the meeting adjourn at 8:17 a.m., which passed following a 
unanimous vote. 
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 
 
 
 



DECEMBER 11, 2015 
 

1 
 
 

 The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Training 
Orientation), Friday, December 11, 2015, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex 
Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 a.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Ida Hardcastle, former Councilmember 
John Radford, Councilmember Elect 
Michelle Ziel-Dingman, Councilmember Elect 
Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Director 
Dave Hanneman, Fire Chief 
Melanie Marsh, Human Resources Director 
Dana Briggs, Economic Development Coordinator 
Kami Morrison, Executive Assistant 
Robert Wright, Idaho Falls Library Director 
Jackie Flowers, Idaho Falls Power Director 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. with introductions of Councilmembers 
Elect and review of the outlined agenda. She stated cities received authority from the State 
and their City Code. The roles and responsibilities of the Council include passing a balanced 
budget on an annual basis, policy setting, and City management oversight. She stated 
teamwork is important to deliver good governance.  
 
Mayor Casper then turned the meeting to Ida Hardcastle and Councilmember Lehto for the 
following agenda item: 
 
Orientation for 2016 Council Responsibilities:  
 
Ms. Hardcastle believes the Council should be open to the learning process in order to be an 
effective Councilmember. She distributed information containing the suggested 
recommendations for the Council: 
 
 - Do your homework on council issues and utilize department directors. 
 - Know the duties of each department and their overlap. 
 - Arrive at meetings on time. If a meeting is missed follow up with discussion actions.  

- Listen to opinions of others and be respectful to their opinions, be sensitive to  
   monopolizing discussions.  

 - The mayor is the manager of the employees. The constituents are your boss. 
- Make no promises to constitutes but be respectful of them. 



DECEMBER 11, 2015 
 

2 
 
 

 - Understand the difference between revenue and enterprise funds. 
 - Treat employees with respect and appreciation. 
 - Consult the attorney regarding questionable issues (legality, conflicts, morality). 
 - Understand the open meeting laws. Be thoughtful when responding to the media. 
 - Don’t embarrass yourself or the City.  
 - Don’t push your individual values on someone else. 
 
Councilmember Lehto believes the Councilmembers should develop respected relationships 
with department directors while being sensitive to their time management. He encouraged the 
Councilmembers to be receptive of their other colleagues and vision(s) while realizing they 
represent one (1) voice of the six (6) Councilmembers. He recommended travel opportunities be 
balanced with community benefit based on added value, purpose, and/or educational 
opportunity. He distributed information to the Council regarding communication and problem-
solving, civility and councilmember behavior, and effective public engagement. 
 
Discussion of Council 2016 Meeting Schedules: 
 
Mayor Casper reviewed meeting schedules for the 2016 calendar year including strategic 
budget planning, work sessions, regular Council meetings, and any potential training 
sessions.   
 
Director Flowers stated all Councilmembers are designated members of the Idaho Falls Power 
Board. The 2016 Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting schedule was discussed and reviewed.   
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by 
Councilmember Hally, that the meeting adjourn at 9:38 a.m., which motion passed following a 
unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 
 



DECEMBER 14, 2015 
 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Work 
Session), Monday, December 14, 2015, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex 
Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 3:00 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Sharon Parry (arrived at 3:30 p.m.) 
 
Absent: 
 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kerry McCullough, Public Information Officer 
Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Renee Magee, Redevelopment Agency Executive Director 
Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Director 
Tim Reinke, Pinecrest Golf Course Operations Manager  
Dana Briggs, Economic Development Coordinator 
John Radford, Councilmember Elect 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. with Mayor and Council Reports. She 
reviewed the following calendar items:  
 
 -December 15-16, UAMPS located in Salt Lake City, Utah 
 -December 16, Rotary Luncheon 
 -December 17, City Council Meeting 
 -December 18, 2016-2017 Council Training 
 -December 18, Fire Station Groundbreaking 
 -December 18, Library Holiday Gathering 
 -December 18, City Hall Holiday Luncheon 
 -December 22, Mayor and Council Holiday Open House 
 -December 23, City Hall Annex Holiday Luncheon 
 -January 5, City Leadership Team New Year’s Dinner 
 -January 14, Community Open House  
 
Councilmember Hally announced that Pinecrest Golf Course is currently selling merchandise. 
Councilmember Marohn had no items to report. 
Councilmember Smith stated the Transportation Security Administration (TSA) has doubled 
their work force at the Idaho Falls Airport and has installed an additional security scanner. He 
indicated Delta is in current discussion with the Airport director regarding additional flights.  
Councilmember Ehardt had no items to report.  
 



DECEMBER 14, 2015 
 

2 
 

Idaho State Legislature Urban Renewal Interim Committee, Council Update and Response: 
 
Mayor Casper stated over the course of several years Urban Renewal has been on the State 
Legislatures agenda. A committee has recently been formed with recommended proposals 
which are not favorable to cities including the elections of board members, resetting the tax 
base, and amendments of urban renewal plans. Director Cramer believes the proposed 
changes will delay the current process of urban development. After general discussion, it was 
decided Mayor Casper, along with assistance from Director Cramer and Ms. Magee, will draft a 
written response on behalf of the Mayor and Councilmembers emphasizing the value of urban 
renewal in the surrounding community. Mayor Casper requested Council review the written 
response prior to submitting to the legislature.  
 
Parks and Recreation Department submitted the following item:  
 
2015 Golf Division Review:  
 
Mr. Reinke appeared and stated this is an annual golf review for Council. He indicated 
Pinecrest Golf Course has been in operation for 80 years.  His presentation included the 
following information: 
 

1-The 5-year plan, which concludes its 3rd year, continues to be a success. Online 
booking of tee times is used frequently and customers appreciate this new technology. 
2- The weather, which always plays a part in the yearly financial results, returned good 
results for 2015.  
3-Summary of financial data (2014 vs 2015 Fiscal Year) 

a) Green fee revenue – up 5%, $31,800 
b) Green fee punch pass revenue – down 10.3% 
c) Season pass revenue – up 4%, $26,300 
d) Surcharge revenue – up 6.3%, $5,129 
e) Driving range revenue – up 8.4% $8,572 
f) Cart revenue – up 8% $34,836 
g) Gross merchandise sales – up 7.6%, $34,293 
h) Gift card income – up 3.4%, $4,969 

4-Season pass sales increased 191 units in 2015, for a total number of passes sold at 
1,517. 
5-In 2015 there were a total of 120,664 rounds, up 9,566 rounds from 2014. This is an 
average of 40,000 rounds per course. 
6-Merchandise at golf shops increased an additional $18,688 in gross profit from 2014. 
7-The superintendents and professional staff stayed within their budgets with budget 
spending slightly less than 2014. 
8-Café concessionaire managed all three (3) courses with just over $15,000 in 
commissions from the vendor. The recently approved liquor license was welcomed by 
patrons with no problems created. 
9-Due to approximately $5,000 robbery at Sage Lakes Golf Shop, the City is 
investigating implementation of security system at all facilities.  
10-Email notification of 52-week marketing plan increased emails on file to 4,739 with 
goal of continual increase. 
11-$132,000 was collected in tournament entry fees which were all paid out in store gift 
certificates. There is continual support from loyal local sponsors with $17,500 directly 
added to tournament playoffs. Golf tournaments include approximately 50 local 



DECEMBER 14, 2015 
 

3 
 

corporate and company sponsored events. Customers purchased approximately 
$18,422 in gift certificates.  
12-Loyal community corporate and company sponsors, including Dave Smith of Teton 
Steel and Kelly Sayer of Ron Sayer, and tournament sponsors, tee sign sponsors, 
scorecard sponsors, and course guide sponsors continued financial support of 
approximately $60,000 toward the golf program. 
13-New programs designed to grow the game of golf in our community included; Men’s 
League, Family Golf Day, PGA Junior League, and Men’s State Amateur. A nonprofit 
youth development organization, First Tee of Idaho, will continue with the program 
being introduced to 3rd graders within School District 91. 
14-$148,000 was raised for local charities. The golf program provides free golf and golf 
lessons for the five (5) local high school golf team members during the high school golf 
season. The PGA professional staff continues to be very generous in donating their time. 
15-Three (3) GCSAA Certified Golf Course Superintendents on staff are all experts in the 
field of agronomy and ensure the best conditions for patrons and environmental quality. 
16-Several local golf associations along with well-participated golf leagues remain 
consistent with memberships.  
17-Golf Professionals and superintendents have an excellent relationship with the Parks 
and Recreation staff coordinating invoices, requisitions, and payroll.  
18-The Golf Advisory Board thoroughly reviews financial data and ensures the quality of 
facilities are maintained.  
19-The entire staff displays friendly and caring attitudes toward customers and will 
continue to attend new and existing training programs.  
 

Mr. Reinke expressed appreciation to the City leaders for their continual support. He stated 
the focus has always been to provide a public recreational opportunity that is affordable to 
residents and visitors while keeping it as self-sufficient as possible.  
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by 
Councilmember Hally, that the meeting adjourn at 4:53 p.m., which motion passed following a 
unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 
 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

1 

 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting, Thursday, 
December 17, 2015, in the Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park 
Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca Casper 
Councilmember Sharon Parry 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
 
Absent: 
 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
All available Department Directors 
 
Mayor Casper invited Tim Reinke, Manager of Golf Operations, to come forward and lead those 
present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comments not related to items on the agenda. No one 
appeared. 
 
After brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember 
Ehardt, to amend the Regular Agenda and add Item 5.E.3., to add discussion and consider 
approval and editing of the letter regarding Idaho’s Urban Renewal statutes with the good faith 
reason there was not adequate time to place the item on the agenda following discussion of the 
draft letter at the December 14, 2015, Work Session. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally  
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Community Development Services Department requested Reappointments for Board and 
Commissions: 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

2 

 

Name     Term End Date (all terms end Dec. 31) 
Board of Adjustment 
Richard Lee      2020 
Historic Preservation Commission 
Roxane Mitro      2018 
Hereschell Mynarcik    2018 
Kim Smith      2018 
Idaho Falls Redevelopment Agency 
Brent Thompson     2020 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
George Morrison     2021 
IFBAC 
Kirk Larsen      2017 
Bruce Turner     2018 

 
The City Clerk requested approval of Minutes from the November 23, 2015, Council Work 
Session, and November 24, 2015, Regular Council Meeting. 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of Monthly Expenditure Summary for the month of 
November, 2015. 
 
FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURE 
General Fund $1,109,445.25 
Street Fund 185,781.11 
Recreation Fund 31,255.97 
Library Fund 53,848.20 
Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF) 185,035.55 
Electric Light Public Purpose Fund 137,289.34 
Golf Fund 49,521.20 
Self-Insurance Fund 22,112.81 
Municipal Capital Improvement Fund 29,086.15 
Street Capital Improvement Fund 13,723.34 
Traffic Light Cap Imp Fund 48,177.35 
Airport Fund 38,100.12 
Water and Sewer Fund 246,687.11 
Sanitation Fund 1,834.94 
Ambulance Fund 27,637.99 
Electric Light Fund 3,022,686.53 
Payroll Liability Fund 2,264,266.44 
TOTAL $7,466,489.40 

 
The City Clerk requested approval of Monthly Treasurer’s Report for the month of November, 
2015. 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
Attached please find the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, Monthly Treasurer’s Report for the above 
referenced month, as required by Idaho Code Section 50-208. 
 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

3 

 

This report was filed in the City Clerk’s Office on or before the 10th day from the end of the 
month of the Report. 
  
OATH 
 
I, Kenneth McOmber, the City of Idaho Falls Treasurer, do hereby affirm that this City of Idaho 
Falls, Idaho, Monthly Treasurer’s Report is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and 
that it shows the state of the City Treasury as of the date of this Report and the balance of 
money in the City Treasury, all as required by Idaho Code Section 50-208.   
 
s/ Kenneth McOmber     December 9, 2015 
Kenneth McOmber      Date Signed 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Bonneville ) 
 
On this 9th day of December, 2015, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public for Idaho, 
personally appeared KENNETH MCOMBER known to me to be the Treasurer of the City of 
Idaho Falls, the municipal corporation that executed the foregoing document and 
acknowledged to that such City executed the same. 
 
      s/ Hollie Pettingill  
(SEAL)      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at Idaho Falls, Idaho 
      My Commission Expires:  03-26-2021 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of License Applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
The City Clerk requested for Council ratification for the publication of legal notices calling for 
public hearings on December 17, 2015. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Parry, to approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda according to recommendations presented. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
     
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried.  
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
The Municipal Services Department submitted the following items for Council consideration: 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

4 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Bid IF-16-07, Street LED Luminaires 
 
Attached is the tabulation for the above subject bid. It is the recommendation of Idaho Falls 
Power and Municipal Services Departments to accept the lowest responsive, responsible bid of 
Electrical Wholesale Company to furnish a LED Luminaires for a lump sum amount of 
$73,960.00. 
 
Councilmember Marohn stated this item falls under the Idaho Falls Power (IFP) Capital Plan to 
replace regular street lights with the LED conversion. He indicated the City receives rebates 
from Bonneville Power. Director Flowers stated the lighting is being converted on large blocks 
of roads to maintain consistent lighting. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to accept the 
lowest responsive, responsible bid of Electrical Wholesale Company to furnish a LED 
Luminaires for a lump sum amount of $73,960.00, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Marohn 

Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried.  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Bid IF-16-D, Police Vehicles 
 
It is the recommendation of the Police and Municipal Services Departments to piggyback the 
State of Idaho Contracts with Goode Motor and Silver Creek, LLC to furnish the following 
Police vehicles. The vehicles have been budgeted in the Municipal Equipment Replacement 
Fund (MERF). The replacement vehicles will be sold on Property Rooms.com.  The lump sum 
total for this purchase is $213,803.53. 
 

Item Quantity Make/Model Bidder Unit Price Extended Price 
1) 4 2016 SUV, Ford Interceptor 

With Options (Patrol) 
Goode Motor 
State SBPO 16200401 

$27,346.61 $109,386.44 

2) 1 2016 SUV, Ford Interceptor 
With Options (Detectives) 

Goode Motor 
State SBPO 16200401 

$27,933.86 $27,933.86 

3) 1 2016 Ram Pick-up ½ Ton, 
Police Package With Options 

Silver Creek, LLC 
State SBPO #16200408 

$27,063.11 $27,063.11 

4) 2 2016 Dodge Charger Sedan Silver Creek, LLC $24,710.06 $49,420.12 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

5 

 

With Options State SBPO #16200408 
   TOTAL  $213,803.53 

 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to piggyback 
the State of Idaho Contracts with Goode Motor and Silver Creek, LLC to furnish Police vehicles 
for a lump sum amount of $213,803.53, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any 
necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Subject: Adoption of 2015-16 Proposed Fees, Including New Fees and Fee Increases 
 
Municipal Services respectfully requests the Mayor and Council approval of the 2015-2016 
proposed fees including new fees and fee increases. The proposed new fees and fee increases 
were advertised December 6, 2015, and December 13, 2015, as required by Idaho Code.  
 
The Public Hearing is scheduled for Thursday, December 17, 2015, in the Council Chambers 
in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park Avenue, Idaho Falls, ID. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared. 
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the 
Resolution for the 2015-2016 proposed fees including new fees and fee increases, and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

6 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-33 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF REVISED FEES FOR SERVICES 
PROVIDED AND REGULARLY CHARGED AS SPECIFIED BY CITY CODE; AND PROVIDING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL, AND 
PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW. 

 
WHEREAS, City Council deems it advisable to adopt existing fees set by earlier ordinances and 
resolutions in one general fee resolution; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the fees associated with the City’s cemetery services do not cover the actual cost of 
the services being rendered; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that the revised fees included in this Resolution are 
appropriate and are reasonably related to the purpose for which such fees are charged; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to Idaho Code § 63-1311A after which the 
Council considered input given by the public; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Council, by this Resolution, desires to amend and update only those fees and 
charges contained in the Attachment to this Resolution, while continuing and approving of 
other fee lawfully charges by the City that are contained elsewhere and not within the 
Attachment to this Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
IDAHO FALLS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the fees set forth in Idaho Falls Fee Schedule – December 2015, Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, be in force and effect in matters relating to fees from 
and after the 18th day of December, 2015; 
 
2. That this Resolution amends all previous Resolutions and Ordinances regarding fees 
charged by the City concerning the fees that are contained in this Resolution; 
 
3. That any Resolution or provision thereof that is inconsistent with this Resolution is 
hereby repealed. 
 

ADOPTED and effective this 17th day of December, 2015. 
 
      CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 
 
      s/ Rebecca L. Noah Casper  
      Rebecca L. Noah Casper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
s/ Kathy Hampton  
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

7 

 

(SEAL) 
 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss: 
County of Bonneville ) 
 
I, KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY: 
 
That the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Resolution entitled, “A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF REVISED FEES FOR SERVICES PROVIDED 
AND REGULARLY CHARGED AS SPECIFIED BY CITY CODE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 
RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL, AND PUBLICATION 
ACCORDING TO LAW.” 
 
      s/ Kathy Hampton  
      Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
CITY OF IDAHO FALLS 

FEE SCHEDULE 
(December 2015) 

 
Police Department ..................................................................................................... 1  
Fire Department ...................................................................................................... 1 
Municipal Services Department ....................................................................................2  
 Licensing ........................................................................................................... 2  
 City Officer and Employee Bonds ....................................................................... 4  
Idaho Falls Power......................................................................................................... 5  
 Electric Service Fees .......................................................................................... 5  
 Public Fiber Optic Network Fees ........................................................................ 6  
Public Works Department ........................................................................................... 6  
 Sewer Service Fees............................................................................................. 6  
 Water Service Fees ............................................................................................ 7  
 Sanitation Service Fees ..................................................................................... 8  
 Street Division Replacement Fees ...................................................................... 10  
Park and Recreation Fees ............................................................................................ 10  
Airport Department .................................................................................................... 17  
Community Development Services  

Department....................................................................................................... 17  
Library ........................................................................................................................ 20 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
1.    Public Parking Fees:  
       a.  Downtown Resident Parking Permit $15 
       b.  Downtown Unlawful Parking Citation $5 
       c.  Second Unlawful Parking Citation within 30 days of Prior Citation $15 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

8 

 

       d.  Third or subsequent Unlawful Parking Citation within 30 days of Prior 
            Citation 

$30 

       e.  Unlawful Parking in a Spot Designated for Persons with Disabilities $50 
       f.   Any other Violation of the Public Parking Ordinance $10 
       g.  Violation of Snow Removal Ordinance $45 
2.    Abandoned Vehicle Reclamation – Processing Fee $15 
3.  Fingerprint Background Check Fee:  

a. Public Conveyance Operator $45 
b. Taxi Operator $45 
c.  Courtesy Vehicle Operator $45 
d. Child Care Worker Certification $45 
e. On-Site Non Provider Certification $45 
f. Door-To-Door Solicitors $45 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
1.    International Fire Code Permits and Fees:  
       a.  Operational Permit Fee $50 
       b.  Construction Permit Fee $50 
       c.  Fine for Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order $300 
       d.  Life Safety License $125 
       e.  Violation of License Requirement Fine $300 
       f.   Structural Plan Review Fees $50 per 5,000 square feet, or portion 

thereof, up to a maximum of $500 
       g.  Fire Alarm Plan Review Fee $50 per 100 devices, or a portion 

thereof, up to a maximum of $150 
       h.  Additional acceptance test field inspections $65 
       i.   Fire Sprinkler System Review Fees $100 
       j.   Additional Fire Sprinkler System Inspection Fees $25 
       k.  Fire Pump Review Fee $100 
       l.   Alarm Response Fee Maximum $150 
       m. Mitigation Reimbursement Fees Posted fee schedule 
2.    Other Inspection and Fees  

a. Inspections outside of normal business hours (minimum 2 hour charge) $70 per hour or hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

b. Re-inspection Fees $70 per hour or hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

c. General inspection fee (including, additional plan review required by changes, 
additions, or revisions to plan) (minimum one-half hour charge) 

$70 per hour or hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

3.    Firework Licensing:  
       a.  Consumer Fireworks Permit Application Fee $25 
       b.  Consumer Fireworks Inspection Fee $25 
       c.  Consumer Fireworks Wholesale Permit Fee $100 
4.    Ambulance Service:  
       a.  Advanced Life Support  
              i.    Non-Emergency $562.38  
             ii.    Resident $697.57  
            iii.    Non-Resident $892.24  
            iv.    BLS Non-Emergency $367.71  
             v.    BLS Emergency – In District $594.83  
            vi.    BLS Emergency – Out of District $784.09  
           vii.    ALS-2 $1,005.80  
          viii.    Critical Care  $1,189.65  
       b.  Mileage:  
            i.      BLS Mileage and ALS Mileage – Resident $12 
            ii.     BLS Mileage and ALS Mileage – Non-Resident $15 
       c.  Treat and Release:  
            i.      Insurance other than Medicare $150 
            ii.     Respond and Evaluate, no other service $100 
       d.  Ambulance Waiting Time $140 per hour 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
LICENSING 

 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

9 

 

1.    Liquor by the Drink:  
       a.  Liquor by the Drink Annual License Fee $562.50 
       b.  Transfer of Liquor by the Drink License $100 
       c.  Liquor Catering Permit $20 
2.    Beer:  
       a.  Beer Annual On or Off Premises Consumption License $200 
       b.  Annual Bottled or Canned Beer Off Premises Consumption License $50 
       c.  Transfer of Annual On or Off Premises Consumption License $100 
       d.  Transfer of Annual Bottled or Canned Beer Off Premises Consumption License $25 
       e.  License for Beer Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable, or Public Purposes $20 
       f.  Multiple-Event License for Beer Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable, or 
           Public Purposes 

$20 

       g.  License for Wine and Beer Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable, or Public 
            Public Purposes 

Not to Exceed $20 

3.    Building Contractors:  
       a.  Class A License $200 
       b.  Class B License $200 
       c.  Class C License $200 
       d.  Class D License $125 
       e.  Out of State Reciprocity License $50 
       f.   In-State Reciprocity License $0 
       g.  Late Renewal or Reinstatement of License Fee $75 
       h.  Inactive Contractor’s License Fee $100 
       i.   Employee of non-reciprocal contractor continuing education course costs $50 
       j.   Reciprocal contractor continuing education course cost $100 
4.    Public Right-of-Way Contractors:  
       a.  Public Right-of-Way Contractor’s License Fee $50 
       b.  Public Right-of-Way Work Bond $5,000 
5.    Wine:  
       a.  Annual Retail Wine License $200 
       b.  Annual Wine-By-The-Drink License $200 
       c.  License for Wine Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable, or Public Purposes $20 
       d.  Multiple-Event License for Wine Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable , or 
            Public Purposes 

$20 

       e.  License Transfer Fee $100 
       f.   License for Wine and Beer Sold or Donated for Benevolent, Charitable, or Public 
            Purposes 

Not to Exceed $20 

6.    Private Patrol Services:  
       a.  Private Patrol Person Bond $1,000 
       b.  Private Patrol Service Bond $2,000 
       c.  Private Patrol Service License $100 
       d.  Private Patrol Service License renewal  $50 
       e.  Private Patrol Person License $50 
       f.  Private Patrol Person License renewal $25 
7.    Lawn Sprinkler and Water Conditioner Installers   
       a.  Lawn Sprinkler Contractor License $100 
       b.  Water Conditioner/Water Softener Installer License $100 
       c.   Water Condition/Water Softener/Law Sprinkler License renewal  $35 
8.    Itinerant Merchants, Mobile Food Vendors, Door-to-Door Salesmen:  
       a.  Idaho Falls Resident Itinerant Merchant’s License $25 
       b.  Bonneville County Resident – Itinerant Merchant Investigation Fee $25 
       c.  Outside of Bonneville County, Idaho Resident – Itinerant Merchant Investigation 
            Fee 

$50 

       d.  Outside of the State of Idaho – Itinerant Merchant Investigation Fee $250 
       e.  Itinerant Merchant’s Bond $1,000 
       f.  Mobile Food Vender’s License $20 
       g.  Door-To-Door Solicitors $20 
9.  Pawnbroker’s License $50 
10.  Secondhand Precious Metals Dealer License $30 
11.  Secondhand Storekeeper License $30 
12.  Scrap Dealer License $50 
13.  Adult Businesses:  
       a.  Fine – Operating without a valid permit   $300 
       b.  Application Fee $100 
       c.  Annual Permit Fee $100 
       d.  Sexually Oriented Business Employee License $100 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

10 

 

       e.  License Renewal $25 
14.  Burglary and Robbery Alarms:  
       a.  Third False Alarm Public Nuisance Alarm System Permit $100 
       b.  Fourth False Alarm Public Nuisance Alarm System Permit $200 
       c.  Fifth False Alarm Public Nuisance Alarm System Permit $300 
       d.  Sixth False Alarm Public Nuisance Alarm System Permit $400 
       e.  Seventh and Subsequent False Alarm Public Nuisance Alarm System Permit $500 
15.  Dog Licensing and Control:  
       a.  Unneutered Dog and Cat License $12 
       b.  Neutered Dog License $6 
       c.  Duplicate Tag Fee $1 
       d.  Non-Commercial Kennel License $50 
       e.  Commercial Kennel License $50 
       f.   Impound Daily Fee $22 
       g.  Boarding Fee $19 
16.  Day Care Licensing:  
       a.  Family Child Care License $75 
       b.  Group Child Care License $150 
       c.  Child Care Center $225 
       d.  Child Care Worker Certification $20 
       e.  On-Site Non-Provider Certification $20 
17.  Sign Licensing:  
       a.  Sign Contractor’s License $25 
       b.  Sign Contractor’s Bond $1,000 
       c.  Sign Erection Fee $60 
       d.  Electric Sign Fee $30 
       e.  Structural Plan Review Fee $30 
18.  Bus Stop Bench Permit Fee $10 
19.  Bus Stop Bench Permit Extension Fee $5 
20.  Bus Stop Bench Renewal Fee $5 
21.  Trees and Shrubbery:  
       a.  Private Tree Service Company License Fee $25 
       b.  Fine for the Violation of the Provisions of Chapter 9 – Trees and Shrubbery $100 
22.  License Denial Appeal Filing Fee $50 
23.  Emergency Medical Services Licensing:  
       a.  EMS Class I Annual License $500 
       b.  EMS Class II Annual License $500 
       c.  EMS Class III Annual License $250 
       d.  EMS Class IV Annual License $250 
       e.  Attendant – Ambulance Driver License $25 
24. Identification Badges:  

a. Public Conveyance Operator $8.00 
b. Taxi Operator $8.00 
c. Courtesy Vehicle Operator $8.00 
d. Door-To-Door Solicitors $8.00 

25.  Civic Auditorium:  
Commercial:  
           Performance Using Touring Performers (Admission)  
                Main Performance Greater of 10% or $750.00 
                Each Matinee Greater of 10% or $300.00 

          Performance Using Touring Performers (No Admission)  
                Main Performance $300.00 
                Each Matinee $175.00 
           Performance Using Area Performers (Admission)  
                Main Performance Greater of 10% or $500.00 
                Each Matinee Greater of 10% or $200.00 
           Performance Using Area Performers (No Admission)  
                Main Performance $300.00 
                Each Matinee $175.00 
           Meetings  
                Main Session $750.00 
                Each Additional Session $300.00 
Non-Profit:  
           Performance Using Touring Performers (Admission)  
                Main Performance Greater of 10% or $500.00 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

11 

 

                Each Matinee Greater of 10% or $200.00 
            Performance Using Member as Performers (Admission)  
                 Main Performance $300.00 
                 Each Matinee $175.00 
           Performance Using Members as Performers (No Admission)  
                Main Performance $175.00 
                Each Matinee $100.00 
           Meetings for Organizations  
                Main Session $300.00 
                 Each Additional Session $150.00 
The Lessee is entitled to occupy eight (8) consecutive hours prior to performance at no 
additional charge on the day of performance.  Any additional time will be based on 
charges in Paragraph IV. 

 

Bookings/Reservations  
           When dates are reserved/booked, a deposit will be required as follows:  
                Bookings/Reservation Deposit Fees:  
                     1 Day $100.00 
                     2 Days $200.00 
                     3 or More Days $300.00 
Deposit will apply towards the facility rental fee.  Refunds will be made if performance 
dates are cancelled 90 days prior to date of first reservation. 

 

Additional Fees:  
           Additional Rehearsal Time and Setting Stage (First Three Hours) $90.00 
           Each Additional Hour $15.00 
A minimum charge of three hours wages is required for all personnel listed above. 
All personnel must have a fifteen (15) hour notice of cancellation of their services or lessee 
will be required to pay at least the minimum charge. 
The cost of labor in arranging the stage must be paid by the lessee.  The lessee may 
furnish its own labor for stage hands, box office manager, ticket takers, and ushers.  
Sound and lighting personnel will be furnished by the lessor but wages will be paid by 
lessee. 

 

 
CITY OFFICER AND EMPLOYEE BONDS 

 
1.    Building Inspectors (Blanket Bond): $5,000 
2.    City Engineer $1,000 
3.    Clerk $5,000 
4.    Controller $5,000 
5.    Deputy Treasurer $5,000 
6.    Director of Municipal Services $5,000 
7.    Fire Chief $1,000 
8.    Mayor and City Clerk Office Employees (Blanket Bond) $5,000 
9.    Police Chief $2,000 
10.  All other Police Officers or Employees $1,000 
11.  Purchasing Agent $1,000 
12.  Street Superintendent $1,000 
13.  Treasurer $5,000 
14.  Water Superintendent $2,000 
 

Idaho Falls Power 
 
 1.    Meter Service Installation Fee $50 
 2.    Meter Accuracy Test $50 
 3.    AMI Opt Out – Monthly Charge  $6.50 
 4.    Tampering Reconnection Fee $200 
 5.    First Electric Disconnect Fee $25 
 6.    Any Subsequent Disconnect Fee within 12 Months of Preceding Disconnect 
       Order 

$50 

 7.    Line Extension for Single Family Home (per lot) $1,100 
 8.    Line Extension for Multi-Family Housing (per family unit) $600 
 9.    Line Extension for Commercial Actual Cost 
10.   Secondary Service Connection (per Service) $100 
11.   Maximum Security Deposit for Non-12-Month-Consecutive Residential Customer $300 
12.   Maximum Security Deposit for Non-12-Month-Consecutive Commercial or $1,000 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

12 

 

       Industrial Customer 
13.   Security Light Installation Fee $150 
14.   Commercial Rate – Base Energy Charge $0.0350 per KWH 
15.   Commercial Rate – Power Cost Adjustment  $0.0042 per KWH 
16.   Commercial Rate – Demand Charge $6.25 per KW for all KW, but in 

no event less than $26.00 per 
month 

17.   Surge Arrestor $7 
18.   Net Metering Commercial Rate – Base Energy Charge $0.0350 per KWH 
19.   Net Metering Commercial Rate - Power Cost Adjustment $0.0042 per KWH 
20.   Net Metering Commercial Rate – Demand Charge $6.25 per KW for all KW, but in 

no event less than $26.00 per 
month 

21.   Small Industrial Rate – Energy Charge $0.0340 per KWH 
22.   Small Industrial Rate – Power Cost Adjustment 0.0041 per KWH 
23.   Small Industrial Rate – Demand Charge $6.50 per KW for all KW, but if 

less than 275 KW, $2,000 
24.   Large Industrial Rate – Energy Charge $0.0340 per KWH 
25.   Large Industrial Rate – Power Cost Adjustment $0.0042 per KWH 
26.   Large Industrial Rate – Demand Charge 0.0041 per KWH 
27.   Large Single Load Rate Negotiated Rate 
28.   Residential Energy Charges $0.0578 per KWH, plus a $15.00 

Monthly Charge 
29.   Power Cost Adjustment (per kWh) (0.0043) 
30.   Surge Arrestor $4 
31.   Net Metering Residential Rate – Monthly Charge $15 
32.   Net Metering Residential Rate – Base Energy Charge $0.0578 per KWH 
33.   Net Metering – Power Cost Adjustment  $0.0043 per KWH 
34.   Net Metering Rate – Energy Credit Average Mid-Columbia Day ahead 

index price per KWH 
35.   City Street Light Energy Charge $0.0725 per KWH 
36.   City-Owned Public Facilities Energy Charges $0.065 per KWH 
37.   Security Lighting Energy Charges – Monthly Rate – 100 W High Pressure Sodium $17.50 
38.   Security Lighting Energy Charges – Monthly Rate – 200 W High Pressure Sodium $20 
39.   Security Lighting Energy Charges – Monthly Rate – 400 W Metal Halide $26.50 
40.   Security Lighting Installation Fee $150 
41.   Temporary or Construction Electric Service – Residential Rate $0.0578 per KWH for all energy, 

plus a $15.00 Monthly Basic 
Charge 

42.   Temporary or Construction Electric Service – Non-Residential Rate $0.0425 per KWH for all energy, 
plus monthly demand charge of 
$5.75 per KW for all KW, but in 

no event less than $17.50 per 
month. 

43.  Temporary Service Installation Charge One time charge of $150.  The 
charge is $750 if a transformer is 

required. 
44.   Trailer Court Service – Energy Charge $0.0425 per KWH for all energy 
45.   Trailer Court Service – Demand Charge $5.75 per KW for all KW, but in 

no event less than $17.50 
 

PUBLIC FIBER OPTIC NETWORK FEES 
 
1.    Fiber Optic Disconnection Fee $100 
2.    Subsequent Disconnection Fee within 12 Months of Prior Disconnection $250 
3.    Maximum Security Deposit $4,000 
4.    Backbone Service Fee, per single pair fiber, per month $1,340 
5.    New Customer Connection Fee per Connection $100 
6.    Construction Costs Actual Costs 
7.    Distribution Engineering Fee per Drop $100 
8.    Monthly Distribution Access Fee $25 
9.    Cost Sharing Payments or Credits Actual Costs 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
SEWER FEES 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

13 

 

 
1.    Connection Fees:  
       a.  Single Family Dwelling Sewer Connection Fee $1,023 per connection 
       b.  Mobile Home Courts or Mobile Home Subdivision Connection Fee $1,023 per mobile home space 
       c.  Motel, Hotels, Boarding Houses, Travel Courts Connection Fee $1,023 per connection plus $60 

per room, or trailer space used 
independently for human 

habitation 
       d.  Apartment Houses, Duplexes, Condominiums and similar Living Units 
            Connection Fee 

$1,023 per connection plus $342 
per Living Unit in excess of 1 Unit 

       e.  Commercial Buildings Connection Fee $1,023 per connection plus 
$34.20 per plumbing fixture in 

excess of 4 fixtures 
       f.   Sewer Main Connection Charge $20 per front foot of property 

owned upon street or public 
right-of-way within which a sewer 

main is located 
2.    Monthly Domestic Rates:  
       a.  Single Family Dwellings, including condominium units and mobile homes $21.66 plus $16.27 for each 

functionally separate apartment 
located in such dwelling 

       b.  Large multi-family dwelling unit $16.27 for each functionally 
separate dwelling unit 

       c.  Small multi-family dwelling unit $21.66 for each functionally 
separate dwelling unit 

       d.  Mobile home court $21.66 plus $16.27 for each 
occupied space 

       e.  Commercial buildings and professional officers $6.49 per each 1,000 square feet 
of floor space 

       f.   Laundromats $10.82 per washing machine 
upon the premises 

       g.  Barber or beauty shop $3.46 for each sink 
       h.  Hotels, motels, boarding houses $6.92 for each room 
       i.   Restaurants and fast-food establishments $57.56 
       j.   Elementary schools $9.00 per each 50 enrolled 

students or fraction thereof 
       k.  Secondary schools, colleges, and universities $11.42 per each 50 enrolled 

students or fraction thereof 
       l.   All other non-metered customers $21.66 per each fully enclosed 

stricter connected to the publicly 
operated waste water treatment 

and collection works 
3.    Monthly Metered Commercial Rates:  
       a.  Commercial User $3.39 per month base charge, 

plus $2.10 per 1,000 gallons of 
metered water 

       b.  All domestic and commercial structures 110% of the domestic and 
commercial rates set forth above 

for City residents 
4.    Industrial Rates for Certain Users:  
       a.  Penford Products Company:  
            i.   Flow $0.6080 per 1,000 Gallons 
            ii.  BOD $0.5308 per Pound 
            iii. TSS $0.3570 per Pound 
       b.  BARI and Group Modelo:  
            i.   Flow $0.4280 per 1,000 Gallons 
            ii.  BOD $0.5308 per Pound 
            iii. TSS  $0.3570 Per Pound 
5.    County and City Rates:  
       a.  Iona Bonneville Sewer District $2.04 per 1,000 Gallons 
       b.  City of Ucon Rate $1.56 per 1,000 Gallons 
       c.  City of Ammon $2.04 per 1,000 Gallons 
6.    Violation Fees:  
       a.  Violation of Sewer Code Fee $1,000 
       b.  Civil Fine for Sewer Code Violation $1,000 
       c.  Misdemeanor Penalty – Criminal Fine for Willful or Negligent Violation of $1,000 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

14 

 

            Sewer Code 
       d.  Misdemeanor Penalty – Criminal Fine for Willful or Negligent Introduction of 
            any Substance into POTW, which causes Injury or Damage 

$1,000 

       e.  Misdemeanor Penalty – Criminal Fine for Knowingly Making False Statement 
            in Any Sewer Permit Application 

$1,000 

7.    Maximum Informant Reward $1,000 
8.    Septic Haulers Annual License: $100 
       Septic Hauler Dumping fees (based on truck tank capacity, not quantity hauled) 
       a.  0 ≥ 500 Gallons 

 
$41.25 

       b.  501 ≥ 1000 Gallons $82.50 
       c.  1001 ≥ 1500 Gallons $123.75 
       d.  1501 ≥ 2000 Gallons $165.00 
       e.  2001 ≥ 2500 Gallons $206.25 
       f.   2501 ≥ 3000 Gallons $247.50 
       g.  3001 ≥ 3500 Gallons $288.75 
       h.  3501 ≥ 4000 Gallons $330.00 
       i.   4001 ≥ 4500 Gallons $371.25 
       j.   4501 ≥ 5000 Gallons $412.50 
       k.  5001 ≥ 5500 Gallons $453.75 
       l.   5501 ≥ 6000 Gallons $495.00 
  9.  Maximum Fine for Violation of Sewer Code $1,000 
10.  Maximum Penalty for Violation of Sewer Code $1,000 
11.  Culvert/Pipe Clean Outs  Actual Costs 
12.  Jet-Vac Truck Usage  Actual Costs 
 

WATER SERVICE FEES 
 
1.    Water System Connection Fee for 1” Service Line $1,312 
2.    Water System Connection Fee for 1.5” Service Line $2,624 
3.    Water System Connection Fee for 2” Service Line $5,248 
4.    Water System Connection Fee for 4” Service Line $20,992 
5.    Water System Connection Fee for 6” Service Line $47,232 
6.    Water System Connection Fee for 8” Service Line $82,656 
7.    Water Main Connection Charge $35 per front foot of property 
8.    Service Call Charge Actual Cost 
9.    1” Service Line Installation Charge $1,100 
10.  1 ½” Service Line Installation Charge $1,200 
11.  2” Service Line Installation Charge $1,300 
12.  Water Disconnection/Reconnection Fee (charged per service call) $25 
13.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Single Family Dwellings and Mobile Homes 
       (excluding separate apartment units within such dwelling), per dwelling or unit 

$25.20 

14.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Apartment Unit per unit $18.94 
15.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Apartment Unit occupied by Landlord or 
       Manager 

$25.20 

16.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Office Buildings, Banks, Bowling Alleys, 
       Lodges, Markets per each 1,000 square feet of area or fraction thereof 

$7.55 

17.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Laundromat – per machine $12.56 
18.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Travel trailer court $25.20 plus $18.94 per occupied 

trailer space 
19.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Barber or Beauty Shop, each bowl $4.27 
20.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Hotel, motor hotel, motel, or rooming house, 
       per room 

$8.02 

21.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Restaurant and Fast-Food Establishment $66.96 
22.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Elementary Schools (Grades 1-6) – Per 50 
       Students or fraction thereof 

$10.54 

23.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – Secondary Schools (Grades 7-12) – per 50                                                       
Students or fraction thereof 

$13.28 

24.  Non-metered Monthly Water Rate – All other non-metered customers – per 
       Premises or building 

$25.20 

25.  Seasonal Irrigation Service, per customer, landlord, tenant or agent $20.95 Annually 
26.  Seasonal Irrigation Service , Non-metered, Non-residential property 
       With lawn or cultivated area measuring more than 1/20th an acre-per acre or  
       Fraction thereof 

$117.11 Annually 

27.  Metered Monthly Water Service Rate $Minimum monthly metered charge 
(as indicated below) plus $0.66 per 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

15 

 

each 1,000 gallons, or any fraction 
thereof, in excess of 12,000 gallons 
per month, subject to the minimum 

monthly charge 
28.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 5/8” Meter $25.20 
29.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – ¾” Meter $25.20 
30.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 1” Meter $25.20 
31.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 1 ¼” Meter $33.48 
32.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 1 ½” Meter $41.88 
33.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 2” Meter $50.15 
34.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 3” Meter $58.56 
35.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 4” Meter $83.63 
36.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 6” Meter $167.28 
37.  Minimum Monthly Metered Charge – 8” Meter $250.78 
38.  DEQ Water Quality Assessment Fee $3 
 

SANITATION SERVICE FEES 
 
1.    Residential Once-A-Week Pickup – Monthly Charge $9.45 
2.  Residential Once-A-Week Pickup – Monthly Charge per Additional Cart (3-Month 
Minimum Billing) 

$9.45 

3.    Additional Cart City Delivery Fee (Patron Pickup No Fee) $30.00 
4.    Commercial – Hand-load Container – Once-A-Week Pickup Charge $9.45 
5.    Commercial – Hand-load Container –Per Additional Pickup-A-Week Monthly 
Charge 

$9.45 

6.    Commercial – Small 1 ½ C. Y. Containers – Once-A-Week Pickup Monthly Charge $40.74 
7.    Commercial – Small 1 ½ C. Y. Containers –Per Additional Pickup-A-Week 
MonthlyCharge 

$10.08 

8.  Commercial – Small 3 C. Y. Containers – Once-A-Week Pickup Monthly Charge $49.67 
9.  Commercial – Small 3 C. Y. Containers –Per Additional Pickup-A-Week Monthly 
Charge 

$13.86 

10.  Commercial – Small 4 C. Y. Containers – Once-A-Week Pickup Monthly Charge $56.07 
11.  Commercial – Small 4 C. Y. Containers –Per Additional Pickup-A-Week Monthly 
Charge 

$17.64 

12.  Commercial – Large Uncompacted Containers – One Pickup-A Month Monthly 
       Charge 

$177.45 

13.  Commercial – Large Uncompacted Containers –Per Additional Pickups-A-Month 
Monthly Charge 

$141.75 

14.  Commercial – Large Compacted Containers – One Pickup-A-Month Monthly 
       Charge 

$129.15 

15.  Commercial – Large Compacted Containers –Per Additional Pickups-A-Month 
Monthly Charge 

$129.15 

16.  Multiple Single-Family Unit – Single Commercial Container – Individual User 
       Monthly Charge 

$9.45 

17.  Construction Debris Disposal – Any Container – Additional Charge $23.10 
18.  Minimum 30 C. Y. Uncompacted Container Monthly Charge (with NO pick-up) $52.50 
 

STREET DIVISION REPLACEMENT FEES 
 
1.    Candlesticks and Base $50 Each 
2.    A-Frame $65 Each 
3.    Cones $50 Each 
4.    Sign and Stand $300 Each 
5.   Emergency service/accident support (traffic control & sweeping) Actual Costs 
6.   Patching/surface repair Actual Costs 
 

UTILITY DELINQUENT ACCOUNT FEES 
 
1. Flat fee for delinquent accounts (applied monthly for 60 days past due) $3 
2. Monthly additional past due fee beyond 60 days based on total past due balance 1% of total utility balance due 
 

ENGINEERING DIVISION FEES 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

16 

 

 
1.  Subdivision Inspection Fees (Schedule based on the estimated total  public 
improvement costs) 

If improvement costs are equal to or 
less than $100,000, then 4% of 

improvement costs.  
If improvement costs are greater 
than $100,000 but less than or 

equal to $500,000 then $4,000 plus 
1% of improvement costs over 

$100,000. 
If improvement costs are greater 

than $500,000, then $8,000 plus 
.5% of improvement costs over 

$500,000. 
 

2. Right-of-Way Permit Fee $50 per permit 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION FEES 
 
1.    Sandy Downs – 2702  
       a.  Admission: $1 
            i.   Parking: $1 
            ii.  Parking (Event Holder) $1 
            iii. Parking (Events) $5 
            iv. RV Parking Monthly $150 
            v.  RV Parking Daily $10 
       b.  Rentals Daily:  
            i.   Grandstand Cleaning Deposit (Each Event $100 non-refundable) $500 
            ii.  Grandstand/Arena $700 
            iii. Fire Pit $20 
            iv. Arena $100 
            v.  Water Truck (with operator) $200 
            vi. Tractor (with operator) $200 
       c.  Rodeo Setup/Takedown $300 
       d.  Stall Arena:  
            i.   Stall Daily (24 Hour) $10 
            ii.  Stall Monthly $45 
            iii. Tack Room Monthly $20 
            iv.  Horse Walker Monthly $20 
            v.   Horseback Riding Permit Annual $20 
2.    Parks Rental – 2703  
       a.  Shelters/Decks Daily:  
            i.    Application Fee (Non-Refundable) $50 
            ii.   Small Shelter $75 
           iii.   6 Hour Blocks for Shelter Rental Full Day (Two Blocks) (8am to 2pm and 
2pm to 8am) 

$125 

            iv.   Band Shell $200 
            v.   Multi-Purpose Shelter (Per Event) $300 
            vi.  Sportsman’s Island Deck Area $75 

    vii.  Sportsman’s Park Reservations           $500 
          viii.  Jenson Overlook Deck Area $50 
           ix.  Memorial Drive Vendor Half-Pad $50 
            x.  Memorial Drive Vendor Full Pad $100 
           xi.  Taylors’ Rock Garden (Four Hour Block) $100 
       b.  Rentals:  
            i.   Picnic Table (6 Tables) $50 
           ii.   Additional Picnic Table $5 
          iii.   Trash Cans (Each) $4 
          iv.   Volleyball Set Deposit $10 
           v.   Water Spigot Deposit $75 
          vi.   Bleacher (per Unit) $40 
         vii.   Fencing (Up to 200 Feet) $100 
         viii.  Additional Fencing (Beyond 200 Feet) $$0.20 per foot 
          ix.   Canopy (15’ X 15’) $75 
          x.    Canopy (20’ X 40’) $250 
       c.  Banners (Set of 10) $150 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

17 

 

          i.     Additional Banner(s) (Each) $12 
       d.  Special Event/Cleaning Deposit (Over 100 People $100 non refundable) $500 
       e.  Memorials  
           i. Memorial Bench $600 
           ii. Remembrance Tree $400 
3.    Weed Control – 2705  
       a.  Tractor with Operator (Hour) $100 
       b.  Hand Work per Operator (Hour) $35 
       c.  Enforcement Administration Fee (Per Lien) $100 
       d.  Lien Placement Fee (Per Lien) $25 
4.    Idaho Falls Raceway – 2706  
       a.  Admission $1 
       b.  Parking  $5 
       c.  Parking (Event Holder) $1 
       d.  Parking (Events) $1 
       e.  Parking RV Daily $10 
       f.  Practice Rider/Driver $20 
       g.  Practice Rider 10 Punch Pass $150 
       h.   Practice Season Pass $250 
       i.  Event Rental $500 
       j.  Concession Booth Rental (Event) $100 
5.    Horticulture/Forestry – 2707  
       a.  Tree Trimming/Removal Permit $10 
       b.  Arborist (Hour) $50 
       c.  Lift Truck with Operator (Hour) $100 
       d.  Hand Work per Operator (Hour) $35 
       e.   Enforcement Administration Fee (Per Lien) $100 
       f.  Lien Placement Fee (Per Lien) $25 
6.    Activity Center – 2708  
       a.  Small Rental (East and West Rooms 2 Hour Minimum) $15 
       b.  Large Rental (South Room 2 Hour Minimum) $20 
       c.  Large Reception Rental (3 Hour Minimum or $175 a Day) $35 
       d.  Kitchen Rental (1/2 Day $50.00) $90 
       e.  Cleaning Deposit/Maintenance/Damage Fee For Large Rentals  $200 
7.    Cemetery – 2901  
       a.  Burial  
            i.   Saturday Burial $200 
            ii.  After 4:30 p.m. Burial $200 
            iii. Opening/Closing Adult/Child $325 
            iv. Opening/Closing Infant $200 
            v.  Opening/Closing Cremation $125 
       b.  Disinterment:  
            i.   Disinterment Adult/Child $800 
            ii.  Disinterment Infant $320 
            iii. Disinterment Cremation $125 
       c.  Burial Spaces:  
            i.   Adult/Child Up-Right Section $500 
            ii.  Adult/Child Fielding Flat Section $400 
            iii. Infant (Under 1 Year) $200 
       d.  Niche Wall  
            i.   Niche Wall Top $400 
            ii.  Niche Wall Middle $300 
            iii. Niche Wall Bottom $200 
       e.  Niche Wall Parkhurst  
            i.   Niche Wall Top $350 
            ii.  Niche Wall Middle $400 
            iii. Niche Wall Bottom $350 
            iv. Memorial Wall Per Line (East and West Side) $125 
             v. Perpetual Grave Space Fee $175 
            vii. Cemetery Plot Ownership Certificate Fee $10 
           viii. Deed Transfer Fee ($10 for one $40 max) $10 - $40 
8.    Tautphaus Park Zoo – 2704  
       a.  Admission  
            i.    Regular Admission – Adult $7.50 
            ii.   Regular Admission – Child (4-12 Years) $4.50 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

18 

 

            iii.  Regular Admission – Senior (62+) $6 
            iv.  Regular Admission – 3 and under  Free 
            v.   Educational/Group – Adult $6.50 
            vi.  Educational/Group – Child (4-12 Years) $4 
            vii.  Educational/Group – Senior (62+) $5 
            viii. Educational/Group – 3 and under Free 
            ix.  Non-Tax Group – Adult $6.17 
            x.    Non-Tax Group – Child (4-12 Years) $3.81 
            xi.   Non-Tax Group – Senior (62+) $4. 75 
            xii.  Non-Tax Group – 3 and under Free 
            xiii. City Rate – Adult $5.50 
            xiv. City Rate – Child (4-12 Years) $3.50 
            xv.  City Rate – Senior (62+) $5 
            xvi. City Rate – 3 and under Free 
            xvii. Local and Global Conservation Fund $0.50 per admission 
       b.  Teacher Summer Continuing Education Classes (2 day class, 16 hours 
program) 

$75 

       c.  Zumba in the Zoo and Yoga on the Green (Classes twice per week during open 
season) 

$5 

       d.  Program Fees:  
            i.    45 Minute Class – Tots $12 or $10 for member 
            ii.   60 Minute Class – K through 2nd $15 or $12 for member 
            iii.  90 Minute Class – 3rd through 5th $20 or $16 for members 
            iv.   3 Hour Class – 6th through 8th $25 or $20 for members 
            v.    3 Hour Class – Week-long (7-9 Years) $85 
            vi.   3 Hour Class – Week-long (7-9 Years) Members $70 
            vii.  7 Hour Class – Week-long (10-12 Years) $140 
            viii. 7 Hour Class – Week-long (10-12 Years) Members $115 
            ix.   Behind the Scenes Tours $30 
            x.    Behind the Scenes Tours Members $25 
            xi.   Overnight Safari $55 
            xii.  Overnight Safari Members $45 
            xiii. Group Overnight Safari $50 
            xiv. Group Overnight Safari Members $40 
            xv.  Junior Zoo Crew $105 
            xvi. Junior Zoo Crew Members $85 
            xvii. Late Pick-up Fee $5 every 15 minutes 
            xviii. Penguin Feeding Program (Fee for Fish to Feed Penguins) $3 
            xix.  Keeper for a Day $100 
       e.  Rental Fees  
            i.    Tent (2 Hour Minimum) $75 an hour 
            ii.   Tent (Additional Hours) $35 an hour 
            iii.  After Hours Fee (2 Hour Minimum) $150 an hour 
            iv.  Animal Encounter Show $35 
            v.   Animal Interaction (1 Person, 2 Animals, 30 Minutes) $35 
            vi.  Costume Character Appearance (1/2 Hour) $35 
            vii. Tent (10’ X 10’) $25 
            viii. Tent (20’ X 40’) $100 
            ix.  Wagon/Stroller Rental $5 
       f.  Parties and Gatherings:  
            i.    Birthday Package (only 10 a.m. or 2 p.m.) $88 
            ii.   Daytime Event $147 
            iii.  Private Evening Event $482 
            iv.  Off Season Birthday Party $70 
       g.  Penguin Interaction:  
            i.    Adult $20 
            ii.   Child (4-12) $10 
            iii.  Group Discount (6 or more people) 20% Discount 
       h.  Volunteer Led Programs:  
            i.    Onsite Tours (Max 25 People) $15 
            ii.   Offsite Outreach (40 people or more)  
                  1.  Within Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (Non-Profit) $20 
                  2.  Within Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (Profit) $30 
                  3.  Outside Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (30 Mile Radius) $35 
                  4.  Any Group Between 30 and 50 Mile Radius of Zoo $45 
                  5.  Any Second Program on the Same Day as First $20 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

19 

 

            iii.  Assembly Programs (40 – 100 People)  
                  1.  Within Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (Non-Profit) $65 
                  2.  Within Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (Profit) $80 
                  3.  Outside Districts No. 91 and No. 93 (50 Mile Radius) $80 
                  4.  Assembly Programs (Over 100 People) $100 
       i.  Staff Led Programs:  
            i.    50-100 Miles $100 
            ii.   101-150 Miles $150 
            iii.  151-200 Miles $200 
            iv.   Additional Programs Fees (Same Day up to 3) $50 
            v.    Per Mile Fee (Round Trip Mileage) $0.50 a Mile 
9.    Recreation – 4801, 4802, 4806  
       a.  Temporary Concession Permit (One Day Per Site/Per Stand) $15 
       b.  Ice Arena  
            i.    Ice Rental Fee  
           ii.    Ice Rental Fee (Practice) $85 
          iii.    Ice Rental Fee (Tournament) $130 
          iv.    Public Skate  
                  1.  Ages 4-12 $3.25 
                  2.  Ages 13 + $4 
                  3.  Senior $3.25 
           v.    Stick, Shoot, and Freestyle  
                  1.  Youth $4 
                  2.  Adult $5.25 
                  3.  Senior $4 
          vi.    10 Punch Pass  
                  1.  Ages 4-12 $25 
                  2.  Ages 13 + $33.50 
                  3.  Senior $25 
         vii.    30 Punch Pass  
                  1.  Ages 4-12 $70 
                  2.  Ages 13 + $95 
                  3.  Senior $70 
        viii.    Annual Pass  
                  1.  Ages 4-12 $245 
                  2.  Ages 13 + $310 
                  3.  Senior $245 
         ix.    Ski Rental for Youth $5 
       c.  Skate Rentals $3.25 
           i.    Skate Aide $1 
          ii.    Ice Skating Lessons $45 
         iii.    Ice Skating Lesson with Rentals $56 
         iv.    Adult Skating Lesson (Drop in) $12 
          v.    Adult Skating Lesson (Drop in with Rentals) $15 
         vi.    Powere Skating and edge control clinic $15 
       d.  Special Event Admission  
            i.    Laser Light Skate Night $5 
           ii.    Halloween Party $5 
       e.  Recreation Center  
            i.    Day use fee @ Rec Center – Youth/Senior $2 
           ii.    Day use fee @ Rec Center - Adult $3 
          iii.    10-punch pass @ Rec Center – Youth/Senior  $18 
          iv.    10-punch pass @ Rec Center – Adult  $25 
           v.    Year pass @ Rec Center – Youth/Senior $100 
          vi.    Year pass @ Rec Center - Adult $125 
         vii.    Yearly Businessmen’s Basketball Pass (Noon Ball) $50 
       f.  Fitness Class / 4801  
            i.    Youth/Seniors $3.75 
           ii.    Adult $4.50 
          iii.    10-punch – Youth/Seniors $28 
          iv.    10-punch – Adults  $38 
       g.  Basketball  
            i.    Basketball Skills $33 
            ii.   Summer Camp $63 
            iii.  Jr. League Summer $45 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

20 

 

            iv.  Jr. League Fall $45 
            v.   Jr. League Winter $45 
            vi.  Adult League Summer $380 Team 
            vii. Adult League Fall $425 Team 
            viii. Adult League Winter $425 Team 
            ix.  Alumni Tournament $225 Team 
            x.   Hispanic League $375 Team 
            xi.  Women’s League $375 Team 
       h.  Softball/Baseball  
            i.    Adult Men’s Slow-Pitch Fall $515 Team 
            ii.   Fast Pitch Girls $515 Team 
            iii.  Adult Softball Men’s League $790 Team 
            iv.  Adult Softball Comp Co-Ed Fall $600 Team 
            v.   Adult Softball Co-Ed $515 Team 
            vi.  Bobbie Sox Softball $40 
            vii. Knothole Baseball $40 
       i.   Flag Football  
            i.    Youth $40 
            ii.   Adult $450 
       j.  Soccer  
            i.    Men’s Soccer League $55 
           ii.    Clinics 12 U $50 
           iii.   Clinics 10 U $50 
           iv.   Clinics 8 U $35 
       k.  Tennis Lessons $20 
       l.  Tennis Camp $10 
       m.  Volleyball $30 
       n.  Co-ed Sand Volleyball $300 
       o.  Taiko Drumming  

i. Beginner $60 
ii. Advanced $72 

       p.  Dance Lessons $35 
       q.  Running Program $43 

r.    Preschool Gym  
i.    Single Child $1 
ii.   Family $2 

       s.  Lil’ Sports Programs  
            i.    Lil’ Sports Programs  $35 
           ii.    Science Workshops $125 
          iii.    Dirt Bike Clinic  
                  1.  Youth $75 
                  2.  Adult 100 
       t.  Cyclocross Bike Races  
            i.    Great Pumpkin Cross $20 
           ii.    Blue Goose $20 
       u.  Breakfast with Santa $8 
       v.  Daddy Daughter Date $50 
       w.   Dinner and a Movie $30 
       x.  Skateboard Programs  
       y.  Skateboard Competition $15 
       z.  Fishing Buddies Clinic $30 
       aa.  Fishing Clinic $38 
10.  Wes Deist Aquatic Center Fees – 4803  
       a.  Membership Fees  
            i.    1-Month Senior $40 
            ii.   3-Month Senior $105.50 
            iii. 6-Month Senior $189 
            iv.  1-Year Senior $280 
            v.   1-Month Adult $45 
            vi.  3-Month Adult $118 
            vii. 6-Month Adult $211 
            viii. 1-Year Adult $312 
            ix.   1-Month Couple (Couple is 2 People from the Same Household) $78.50 
            x.   3-Month Couple $213 
            xi.  6-Month Couple $312 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

21 

 

            xii. 1-Year Couple $400 
            xiii. 1-Month Family (Family is up to 5 people in the Same Household) $113 
            xiv. 3-Month Family $245 
            xv.  6-Month Family $400 
            xvi. 1-Year Family $668 
            xvii. 1-Month Family Add-On (Add 1 Extra Person to Family Pass, must live in 
                   Same Household) 

$17.50 

            xviii. 3-Month Family Add-On $23 
            xix.  6-Month Family Add-On $34 
            xx.   1-Year Family Add-On $56 
       b.  Punch Cards (10-Time Punch Cards for Lap and Public Swims and Fitness 
            Classes) 

 

            i.    Adult Everything Punch Card $38 
            ii.   Senior/Child (62 + and 12 and Under) Everything Punch Card $25 
       c.  Daily Fees   
            i.    Adult (13 +) $4 
           ii.    Senior/Child (62 + and 12 and Under) $3.50 
          iii.    Pre-School (3 & Under) – Swim Diaper Included $2 
       d.  Fitness Classes Daily  
            i.    Adult (13 +) $4.50 
            ii.   Senior/Child (62 + and 12 and Under) $3.75 
       e.  Birthday Parties $66 
       f.   Group Rates (Pre-Arranged Groups Only)  
            i.    10-19 in Group $3 
            ii.   20-29 $2.75 
            iii.  30 + $2.50 
       g.  Facility Rentals  
            i.    Up to 50 Swimmers (Per Hour) $120 
            ii.   Up to 100 Swimmers (Per Hour) $130 
            iii.  Up to 150 Swimmers (Per Hour) $180 
            iv.  Up to 200 Swimmers (Per Hour) $230 
            v.   Up to 250 Swimmers (Per Hour) $290 
            vi.  Up to 300 Swimmers (Per Hour) $360 
            vii. Up to 350 Swimmers (Per Hour) $420 
            viii. Up to 400 Swimmers (Per Hour) $480 
            ix.   Wading Pool Only (During Hours the Main Pool is Already Open) $50 
            x.    Wading Pool Only (During Hours the Main Pool is Not Open) $60 
            xi.   Room Rental $7.50 
       h.  Lessons  
            i.    Full Size Lessons (8 Days) $40 
            ii.   Half Size Lessons (8 Days) $74 
            iii.  Private (One ½ Hour Class) $18 
            iv.  Semi-Private (One ½ Hour Class) $24 
       i.   Schools  
            i.    School Group Lessons $3.50 
            ii.   High School PE Classes $1.50 
            iii.  High School PE Aerobics $3 
            iv.  Discount Nights (Monday and Junior High Night and Wading Pool and  
                  YMCA and Schools (Field Trips) 

$2 

       j.   Kayaking  
            i.    Open Boat $6.50 
            ii.   Group Instructor Fee $7.50 
       k.  Triathlons $20 
       l.   Late Fees for Programs (for those who register after the deadline) $5 
      m.  Daily Themed Programs $15 
       n.  Fitness Challenge $10 
       o.  Lane Rentals (USA/High School/Non-Profit) $11 
       p.  Swim Team Fees  
            i.    Rental (for a 4 Hour Session with set up and take down) per person, 
                  whichever is more 

$300 or $3 

       q.  High School Swim Team Fees  
            i.    High School Swim Team Dual Meets (Per Team Per Hour) $120 
            ii.   High School Regional Meets $3 
            iii.  Junior High Swim Team $130 
       r.  Swim Team Sessions (8 Weeks) 4 times a year New Format Sessions (8 Week 
            Sessions) 4 times a year 

 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

22 

 

            i.    3 Days per Week (Practices) $125 
            ii.   2 Days per Week $90 
            iii.  1 Day per Week $55 
            iv.  Add on an Additional Day Session $35 
       s.  Multi-Family Program Discounts  
            i.    (Discounts are for multi-family members living in the same household 
                  signing up for the same program – first person is regular price) 

 

            ii.   2nd Person 5% Discount 
            iii.  3rd or More 10% Discount 
       t.  Scouting $10 
            i.    Scout Classes  
           ii.    1st and 2nd Class & Cub Scout Aqua Badges $7.50 
          iii.    Snorkeling and Scuba 14.50 
          iv.    Lifesaving Merit Badge, First Aid Merit Badge $24.50 
11.  Golf Course(s) Fees – 6001, 6002, 6003, 6004, 6005, 6006  
       a.  Non-Resident Green Fees  
            i.    Weekday 9 Holes $18.50 
            ii.   Weekday 18 Holes $26.00 
            iii.  Weekend 9 Holes $19.50 
            iv.  Weekend 18 Holes $27.00 
            v.   Out-of-State 9 Holes $19.50 
            vi.  Out-of-State 18 Holes $35 
       b.  Resident Green Fees  
            i.    Weekday 9 Holes $15.50 
            ii.   Weekday 18 Holes $23.00 
            iii.  Weekend 9 Holes $16.50 
            iv.   Weekend 18 Holes $24.00 
       c.  Make-Up Green Fees  
            i.    Make-Up One $7.25 
            ii.   Make-Up Two $3 
            iii.  Make-Up Three $1 
       d.  Resident Season Pass*  
            i.    First Adult* $610 
            ii.   Second Adult* $493 
            iii.  First Senior 5-Day* $419.50 
            iv.  Second Senior 5-Day* $377.50 
            v.   First Senior 7-Day* $524.50 
            vi.  Second Senior 7-Day* $482.50 
            vii. Young Adult Pass* $388 
       e.  Non-Resident Season Passes*  
            i.    First Adult* $650 
            ii.   Second Adult* $530 
            iii.  First Senior 5-Day* $461.50 
            iv.  Second Senior 5-Day* $414.50 
            v.   First Senior 7-Day* $565 
            vi.   Second Senior 7 Day* $519.50 
       f.   Junior Season Pass*  
            i.    Full-Time Junior* $220 
            ii.   Part-Time Junior* $150 
       g.  Resident Punch Passes  
            i.    Punch 19-9 Hole $143.84 
            ii.   Punch 10-18 Hole $211.50 
            iii.  Punch 20-9 Hole $272 
           iv.   Punch 20-18 Hole $399.50 
       h.  Non-Resident Punch Passes  
            i.    Punch 10-9 Hole $171 
            ii.   Punch 10-18 Hole $238.50 
            iii.  Punch 20-9 Hole $323 
            iv.  Punch 20-18 Hole $450.50 
       i.   Locker   
            i.  Locker Fee Yearly $190.44 
            ii. Locker Fee $14.43 
       j.   Medical Cart Usage Fee Yearly $199.94 
       k.  Driving Range  
            i.    Small Bucket $4 
            ii.   Large Bucket $5.50 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

23 

 

            iii.  Small Bucket 10 Punch Pass $34 
            iv.  Large Bucket 10 Punch Pas $46.75 
       l.   Short Course  
            i.    Green Fees $4 
            ii.   Punch Pass $34 
            iii.  Yearly Pass (75) $84 
            iv.  Yearly Pass (115) $126 
       m. Golf Cart Rentals  
            i.    Golf Cart Per Rider 9 Holes $6.25 
            ii.   Golf Cart Per Rider 18 Holes $12.50 
            iii.  Private Cart Trail Fee per Rider 9 Holes $6 
            iv.  Private Cart Trail Fee per Rider 18 Holes $12 
            v.  11 Cart Punch Pass $62.50 
            vi. 22 Cart Punch Pass $120 
       n.  Single Rider Cart Pass Annual $862.50 
       o.  Two Rider (Family) Cart Pass Annual $1,068.50 
       p.  Cart Pass 1 Rider 1 Course Annual $724.43 
       q.  Club Rental 9 Holes  
            i.    High End Clubs $20 
            ii.   Standard Clubs $7.95 
            iii.  Push Cart $3 
       r.  Club Rental 18 Holes  
            i.    High End Clubs $30 
            ii.   Standard Clubs $10 
            iii.  Push Cart $5 
* All Season Pass Categories, are be subject to an additional $1 per round USER FEE.  
Pass Holders will have the option to avoid this per round USER FEE by paying an 
annual USER FEE of $60 per Pass Holder. 

 

 
AIRPORT DEPARTMENT 

 
1.    Landing Fee $1.30 per 1,000 pound gross weight 
2.    Fuel Flowage Fee $0.05 per each gallon of aviation fuel 

dispensed into any general aviation 
aircraft 

3.    Passenger Facility Charge $4.50 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
1.    Erosion Control  
       a.  Initial Erosion Control Contractors Certificate $50 
       b.  Erosion Control Contractors Certificate Renewal $25 
       c.  Erosion Control Plan Permit – Plans less than One Acre $50 
       d.  Erosion Control Plan Permit – Plans One Acre or More $100 
2.    Print and Digital Data Costs  
       a.  Paper  
            i.    Zoning Map – 36” X 50” $6 
            ii.   Street Map – 36” X 36” $5 
            iii.  Street Map – 24” X 24” $3 
            iv.  Subdivision Map – 42” X 36” $5 
            v.  Aerial Map – 36” X 48” $12 
            vi.   Aerial Map – 36” X 36” $9 
            vii.  Aerial Map – 24” X 36” $6 
            viii. Print (Per Print More than 5) – 8.5” X 11” or 8.5” X 14” $0.50 
            ix.  Print (Per Print More than 5) – 11” X 17” $1 
            x.   Custom Size Print $0.50 per Square Foot 
            xi.  Custom Size Aerial Print $1 per Square Foot 
       b.  Mylar  
            i.   Custom Size Print $1 per Square Foot 
            ii.  Custom Size Aerial Print $2 per Square Foot 
       c.  Digital Data  
            i.    CD $1 per Disk 
            ii.   DVD $2 per Disk 
       d.  Shipping and Handling (US Postal Service)  



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

24 

 

            i.    Envelope $2 
            ii.   CD-Mailer $2 
            iii.  Map Tube $10 
3.    Subdivision Fees  
       a.  Site plan review and processing (review of civil site plans other than single-
family residence) 

$300 

       b.  Site plan resubmittal (review of civil site plans not completed after 3 reviews)  $100 
       c.  Preliminary Plat Review and Processing Fee (review of preliminary plats) $500 
       d. Preliminary plat resubmittal (review of preliminary plats not completed after 3 
reviews) 

$150 

       e.  Final Plat Review and Processing (review of final plats) $500 + $15 per lot 
       f.  Final plat resubmittal (review of final plats not completed after 3 reviews) $150 + $5 per lot 
       g.  Zoning compliance report (researching historical land uses of properties)  $50 
       h.  Advertising fee (fee to cover cost of legal advertisement for public hearings) $50 
       i.  Improvement drawings review and processing (review of improvement drawings)  $350 
       j. Improvement drawings resubmittal (review of improvement drawings not  
completed after 3 reviews)  

$150 

       k.  Utility reviews – non-franchise (review of non-franchise utility improvement 
plans) 

$20 

       l.  Iona Bonneville Sewer District reviews (review of sewer improvement drawings 
with Sewer District) 

$50 

       m. Vacation (Review and processing of applications to vacate right-of-way, 
easements, and other public utilities)  

$350 

       n.  Appeals (Appeal decisions by Board or Adjustment or Planning Commission)  $150 
4.    Annexation Fees  
       a.  Bridge and Arterial Streets Fee $100 per required parking space 
       b.  Surface draining fee per square foot of assessable land  $0.0075 
5.    Application Fees  
       a.  Variance Application $350 
       b.  Rezoning Application $550 
       c.  Planned Transition Zone Application $550 
       d.  Comprehensive Plan Amendment $250 
       e.  Conditional Use Permit (Either Planning Commission or City Council) $225 
       f.   Conditional Use Permit (Both Planning Commission and City Council) $325 
       g.  RSC-1 Zone Site Plan Review $150 
       h.  Planned Unit Development $300 
6.    Residential Building Permit Fee Valuation Table  
       Valuation Range  
 $1 to $499 $27.44 
 $500 to $999 $61.19 
 $1,000 to $9,999 $120.38 
 $10,000 to $19,999 $149.97 
 $20,000 to $29,999 $179.57 
 $30,000 to $39,999 $209.17 
 $40,000 to 49,999 $238.77 
 $50,000 to $  59,999 $268.37  
 $60,000 to $69,999 $297.97  
 $70,000 to $79,000 $327.56  
 $80,000 to $89,999 $357.16  
 $90,000 to $99,999 $386.76 
 $100,000 to $104,999 $416.36 
 $105,000 to $109,999 $445.96 
 $110,000 to $114,999 $475.55 
 $115,000 to $119,999 $505.15 
 $120,000 to $124,999 $534.75 
 $125,000 to $129,999 $564.35 
 $130,000 to $134,999 $593.95 
 $135,000 to $139,999 $623.55 
 $140,000 to $144,999 $653.14 
 $145,000 to $149,999 $682.74 
 $150,000 to $154,999 $712.34 
 $155,000 to $159.999 $741.94 
 $160,000 to $164,999 $771.54 
 $165,000 to $169,999 $801.13 
 $170,000 to $174,999 $830.73 
 $175,000 to $179,999 $860.33 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

25 

 

 $180,000 to $184,999 $897.33 
 $185,000 to $189,999 $920.05 
 $190,000 to $194,999 $942.77 
 $195,000 to $199,999 $965.49 
 $200,000 to $204,999 $988.20 
 $205,000 to $209,999 $1,010.92 
 $210,000 to $214,999 $1,033.64 
 $215,000 to $219,999 $1,056.36 
 $220,000 to $224,999 $1,079.08 
 $225,000 to $229,999 $1,101.80 
 $230,000 to $234,999 $1,124.52 
 $235,000 to $239,999 $1,147.23 
 $240,000 to $244,999 $1,169.95 
 $245,000 to $249,999 $1,192.67 
 $250,000 to $254,999 $1,215.39 
 $255,000 to $259,999 $1,238.11 
 $260,000 to $264,999 $1,260.83 
 $265,000 to $269,999 $1,283.55 
 $270,000 to $274,999 $1,306.27 
 $275,000 to $279,999 $1,328.98 
 $280,000 to $284,999 $1,351.70 
 $285,000 to $289,999 $1,374.42 
 $290,000 to $294,999 $1,397.14 
 $295,000 to $299,999 $1,419.86 
 $300,000 to $304,999 $1,442.58 
 $305,000 to $309,999 $1,465.30 
 $310,000 to $314,999 $1,488.01 
 $315,000 to $319,999 $1,510.73 
 $320,000 to $324,999 $1,533.45 
 $325,000 to $329,999 $1,556.17 
 $330,000 to $334,999 $1,578.89 
 $335,000 to $339,999 $1,601.61 
 $340,000 to $344,999 $1,624.33 
 $345,000 to $349,999 $1,647.04 
 $350,000 to $354,999 $1,669.76 
 $355,000 to $359,999 $1,692.48 
 $360,000 to $364,999 $1,715.20 
 $365,000 to $369,999 $1,737.92 
 $370,000 to $374,999 $1,760.64 
 $375,000 to $379,999 $1,783.36 
 $380,000 to $384,999 $1,806.07 
 $385,000 to $389,999 $1,828.79 
 $390,000 to $394,999 $1,851.51 
 $395,000 to $399,999 $1,874.23 
 $400,000 to $404,999 $1,896.95 
 $405,000 to $409,999 $1,919.67 
 $410,000 to $414,999 $1,942.39 
 $415,000 to $419,999 $1,965.10 
 $420,000 to $424,999 $1,987.82 
 $425,000 to $429,999 $2,010.54 
 $430,000 to $434,999 $2,033.26 
 $435,000 to $439,999 $2,055.98 
 $440,000 to $444,999 $2,078.70 
 $445,000 to $449,999 $2,101.42 
 $450,000 to $454,999 $2,124.13 
 $460,000 to $464,999 $2,146.85 
 $465,000 to $469,999 $2,169.57 
 $470,000 to $474,999 $2,192.29 
 $475,000 to $479,999 $2,215.01 
 $480,000 to $484,999 $2,238.73 
 $485,000 to $489,999 $2,260.45 
 $490,000 to $494,999 $2,283.16 
 $495,000 to $499,999 $2,305.88 
 $500,000 to $1,000,000 $2,604.77 for the first $500,000 

valuation, plus $3.81 for each 
additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

26 

 

 $1,000,001 to Beyond $4,520.67 for the first $1,000,000 
valuation, plus $2.43 for each 

additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 
7.    Commercial Building Permit Fees Valuation Table:  
 Valuation Table  
 Total Valuation up to $800 $27.44 
 Total Valuation up to $900 $29.46 
 Total Valuation up to $1,000 $31.72 
 Total Valuation up to $1,100 $33.99 
 Total Valuation up to $1,200 $36.26 
 Total Valuation up to $1,300 $40.79 
 Total Valuation up to $1,400 $40.79 
 Total Valuation up to $1,500 $43.05 
 Total Valuation up to $3,000 $74.58 
 Total Valuation up to $4,000 $80.44 
 Total Valuation up to $5,000 $97.77 
 Total Valuation up to $6,000 $103.10 
 Total Valuation up to $7,000 $115.57 
 Total Valuation up to $8,000 $126.90 
 Total Valuation up to $9,000 $137.09 
 Total Valuation up to $10,000 $149.56 
 Total Valuation up to $11,000 $160.89 
 Total Valuation up to $12,000 $172.22 
 Total Valuation up to $13,000 $183.55 
 Total Valuation up to $14,000 $194.88 
 Total Valuation up to $15,000 $205.88 
 Total Valuation up to $16,000 $218.67 
 Total Valuation up to $17,000 $230.00 
 Total Valuation up to $18,000 $242.46 
 Total Valuation up to $19,000 $252.66 
 Total Valuation up to $20,000 $263.99 
 Total Valuation up to $21,000 $276.45 
 Total Valuation up to $22,000 $287.78 
 Total Valuation up to $23,000 $297.98 
 Total Valuation up to $24,000 $310.44 
 Total Valuation up to $30,000 $362.56 
 Total Valuation up to $31,000 $370.49 
 Total Valuation up to $32,000 $377.29 
 Total Valuation up to $33,000 $387.49 
 Total Valuation up to $34,000 $395.42 
 Total Valuation up to $35,000 $404.48 
 Total Valuation up to $36,000 $411.28 
 Total Valuation up to $37,000 $419.21 
 Total Valuation up to $38,000 $429.41 
 Total Valuation up to $39,000 $437.34 
 Total Valuation up to $40,000 $444.14 
 Total Valuation up to $41,000 $454.33 
 Total Valuation up to $42,000 $462.26 
 Total Valuation up to $43,000 $470.20 
 Total Valuation up to $44,000 $479.26 
 Total Valuation up to $45,000 $487.19 
 Total Valuation up to $46,000 $495.12 
 Total Valuation up to $47,000 $504.19 
 Total Valuation up to $48,000 $512.12 
 Total Valuation up to $49,000 $520.05 
 Total Valuation up to $50,000 $529.11 
 For total valuation between $50,001 and $100,000 $529.11 for the first $50,000 valuation, 

plus $5.55 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 For total valuation between $100,001 and $400,000 $820l.00 for the first $100,000 
valuation, plus $4.26 for each 

additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 
 For total valuation between $500,001 and $1,000,000 $2,604.77 for the first $500,000 

valuation, plus $3.81 for each 
additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 

 For total valuation of $1,000,000 and beyond $4,520.67 for the first $1,000,000 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

27 

 

valuation, plus $2.43 for each 
additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 

8. New Residential Buildings and Additions Valuation Multiples  
        i.     Dwelling Unit Valuation $85 per Sq. ft 
       ii.     Finished Basement Total Valuation $20 per Sq. ft. 
      iii.     Unfinished Basement/Wood Frame Garage $10 per Sq. Ft 
  9.    Commercial Permits Fees:  
       a.     Commercial Electrical Wiring Permit 1.5% of first $20,000 of wiring costs, 

plus 0.75% of wiring costs in excess of 
$20,000 (Wiring Costs include the total 

costs of any and all equipment, 
materials, and labor for installation 
governed by the National Electrical 

Code. 
       b.      Commercial Mechanical Permits 1.5% of the first $20,000 plus $0.75% 

of amounts over $20,000 of bid amount.  
The bid amount includes total costs of 
all equipment, materials, and labor for 

installation governed by the Uniform 
Mechanical Code. 

       c.      Commercial Plumbing Permit Fees 1.5% of first $20,000 plus 0.75% of 
amounts over $20,000 of bid amount.  
The bid amount includes total costs of 
all equipment, materials, and labor for 

installation governed by the Uniform 
Plumbing Code. 

       d.      Commercial Re-Roofing Permit Fee 1% of first $20,000 of roofing costs, 
plus .79% of the costs in excess of 

$20,000 (Maximum Fee $3,000) 
10.    Residential Permit Fees:  

 
 a.      Residential Electrical Permits $5.32 for each electrical service branch 

circuit, hot tub, spa; plus $21.52 for 
each swimming pool. 

 b.      Residential Mechanical Permit Issuance $4.64 Unit Fee per installation or 
relocation of each mechanical unit 

 c.      Residential Plumbing Permit Fees:   
  i.    Unit Fee for each Plumbing  $4.64 Unit Fee per installation or 

relocation 
  ii.   Unit Fee for each Gas Piping System $4.64 Unit Fee per installation or 

relocation of each gas piping system 
 d.      Residential Re-Roofing Permit 1% of valuation; Minimum fee of $27.44 

Maximum fee of $100 
 e.      Signs, Outline Lighting Systems or Marquees:  
  i.    Non Electric Sign $60 
  ii.   Electric Sign $90 
  iii.  Structural Review if over 30 feet $30 
  iv.  Billboard $150 
  v.   LED Message Center $150 
11.  Other Inspections and Fees (covers residential and commercial buildings, 
       plumbing, mechanical, and electrical): 

 

 a. Permit Issuance Fee (For Issuing Each Permit) $27.44 
 b. Inspections outside of normal business hours (Minimum 2 hour 
  charge) 

$70.00 per hour or hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

 c. Re-inspection Fees (Section 305.8) $70.00 per hour hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

 d. Inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated (minimum one-
  half hour charge) 

$70.00 per hour hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

 e Additional plan review required by changes, additions, or revisions 
to   plan (minimum one-half hour charge) 

$35 per hour hourly cost to City, 
whichever is greatest 

 f. Residential Combination Mechanical Electrical Plumbing (MEP) $0.08 per sq ft. total 
 g. Residential Combination Energy Code  $50 
 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

28 

 

LIBRARY 
 
1.    Overdue Fine $0.25 per day per item 
2.    Maximum Overdue Fine $5 per item 
3.    Lost Item Original retail cost or library’s 

replacement cost, whichever is less 
4.    Lost or Damaged Barcode $1 
5.    Lost or Damaged RFID Tag $1 
6.    Lost or Damaged Jacket Cover $2 
7.    Lost or Damaged DVD Out of Set $19 per DVD if able to be ordered 

separately otherwise must pay the 
cost to replace entire set 

8.    Lost or Damaged CD Out of Set $10 per CD if able to be ordered 
separately otherwise must pay the 

cost to replace entire set 
9.    Lost or Damaged Cassette Out of Set $10 per cassette if able to be ordered 

separately otherwise must pay the 
cost to replace entire set 

10.  Lost or Damaged Artwork on CD or DVD $2 
11.  Lost or Damaged Case for CD or DVD  
       a.    1 to 14 sleeves $7 
       b.    16-30 sleeves $11 
       c.     CD/DVD/VHS case single $2 
       d.     Cassette Case $3 
12.  Torn Page in Book $2 
13.  Lost or Damaged Spine Label $1 
14.  Lost Individual Booklet from an Easy Reader Set $5 
15.  Processing Fee for Lost or Damaged Items $5 
16.  Lost or Damaged Magazine Cover Price of the Magazine, no 

Processing Fee Assessed 
17.  Lost Library Card $0.50 
18.  Out of County Card Fee $62.54 
19.  Meeting Rooms:  
       a.     Bonneville County Non-Business Groups $15 first hour, $10 each hour or part 

thereof after 
       b.     All Other Groups $40 first hour, $20 each hour or part 

thereof after 
       c.     Cleaning Fee Actual cost to clean and repair the 

room (Maximum fee of $50) 
       d.     Non-Refundable Food Fee $50 
20.  Copies and Printing  
       a.     Black and White  
               i.    One sided 8.5 by 11 inch copy $0.10 per page 
               ii.   Two sided 8.5 by 11 inch copy $0.25 per page 
               iii.  One sided 8.5 by 14 inch copy $0.15 per page 
               iv.  Two sided 8.5 by 14 inch copy $0.30 per page 
               v.   One sided 11 by 14 inch copy $0.20 per page 
               vi.  Two sided 11 by 14 inch copy $0.40 per page 
       b.     Color  
               i.    One sided 8.5 by 11 inch copy $0.25 per page 
               ii.   Two sided 8.5 by 11 inch copy $0.50 per page 
               iii.  One sided 8.5 by 14 inch copy $0.30 per page 
               iv.   Two sided 8.5 by 14 inch copy $0.60 per page 
               v.    One sided 11 by 14 inch copy $0.50 per page 
               vi.   Two sided 11 by 14 inch copy $1 per page 
21.  Obituary look up on microfilm $5.00 per obituary 
 
The Police Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Rebecca Casper, Mayor 
From:  Mark McBride, Chief of Police 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

29 

 

Subject: Amendment to Public Parking Ordinance 9-4-20   
 
The Police Department respectfully requests amendment to the Public Parking Ordinance 9-4-
20. The current Unlawful Parking Ordinance 9-4-20 allows for downtown residents to obtain 
an unlimited parking permit for designated City owned parking lots.  Downtown is currently 
defined in City Ordinance 9-5-2 as the area within the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, located east 
of and including Memorial Drive, south of and including "G" Street, west of Yellowstone 
Avenue, and north of Broadway Avenue.  
 
Within the last few years residents have sought a downtown parking permit for newly built 
residential properties on the south side of Broadway Ave.  By ordinance these permits cannot 
be approved.  Therefore it is recommended to redefine the downtown area for this section only 
to allow unlimited parking permits in designated City owned parking lots to include those 
residents north of Cliff Street, and east of Capital Avenue leaving all other boundaries as 
previously defined. 
 
Director Cramer stated this ordinance would not create any issues with regard to zoning.  
 
Chief McBride stated the Parking Committee, consisting of representatives from five (5) City 
departments, recommended the amendment.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to approve the 
amendment to the Public Parking Ordinance 9-4-20 under the suspension of rules requiring 
three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. 
Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3049 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, 
SECTION 20, TO EXTEND THE AREA WHERE A TWO HOUR PARKING LIMIT PERMIT MAY 
BE OBTAINED BY A DOWNTOWN RESIDENT; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
Public Works submitted the following items for Council consideration:  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

30 

 

From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Alley Vacation - Alley between Lots 1-10 & 39-48, Block 23, Highland Park 

Addition 
 
As earlier authorized, the City Attorney has prepared the attached documents to vacate the 
alley that runs between Lots 1-10 & 39-48 of Block 23 of Highland Park.  
 
Public Works recommends approval of this vacation; and, authorization for Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Parry, to approve the 
alley vacation Ordinance for Lots 1-10 & 39-48 of Block 23 of Highland Park, under the 
suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by 
title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
     
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3043 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO, PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF A PUBLIC ALLEY LOCATED 
WITHIN THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS AND LEGALLY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT TITLE TO SAID VACATED ALLEY SHALL VEST AS 
SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3 OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE 
SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FROM AND AFTER PASSAGE, APPROVAL AND 
PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement - FY17 20 ADA Ramps, 

Idaho Falls  
 
Attached is a State/Local Cooperative Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department 
and accompanying Resolution with respect to the FY17 20 ADA Ramps, Idaho Falls project.  
 
This agreement allows the City to administer the construction contract and seek 
reimbursement for the project in the amount of $60,000.00. This agreement has been 
reviewed by the City Attorney.  



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

31 

 

Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; and, 
authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated this is a continual process to follow requirements for ADA ramp 
upgrades.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to approve the 
Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement, to adopt the Resolution, and 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
     
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION 2015-34 
 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department, hereafter called the STATE, has submitted 
an Agreement stating obligations of the STATE and the CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, hereafter 
called the CITY, for ADA improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the STATE is responsible for obtaining compliance with laws, standards and 
procedural policies in the development, construction and maintenance of improvements made 
to the Federal-aid Highway System; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and the STATE are providing funds for this project; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the Cooperative Agreement to construct ADA improvements within city limits is 
hereby approved. 
 
2. That the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on 
behalf of the CITY. 
 
3. That duly certified copies of the Resolution shall be furnished to the Idaho 
Transportation Department. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the above is a true copy of a Resolution passed at a regular called meeting 
of the City Council, City of Idaho Falls, held on December 17, 2015. 
 
       s/ Kathy Hampton  
       City Clerk 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

32 

 

 
(SEAL) 
 
Idaho Falls Power submitted the following item for Council consideration:  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
Subject: Electric Vehicle Charging Project 
 
Attached is a cost share agreement for the extension of power to a Tesla Supercharger station. 
 
 The developer of the station is in the process of locating and negotiating a charging station to 
be placed within the City. Idaho Falls Power will gain useful information of grid impacts from 
the development of this type of electric vehicle fast charging.  
 
It is the staffs' belief that this will be of value to Idaho Falls Power; therefore respectfully 
requests City Council approval of the agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
document. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt announced and congratulated Director Flowers as the newly-elected 
Chairperson of Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems (UAMPS), stating she is the first 
female to serve in this position.  
 
Director Flowers stated Tesla has identified eastern Idaho as an area of interest. She indicated 
Tesla is a leader in the electric market for superchargers and the City would benefit from the 
knowledge and technology.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Parry, to approve the 
cost share agreement for the extension of power to a Tesla Supercharger station and give 
authorization for Mayor to execute the document. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Community Development Services submitted the following items for Council consideration:  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

33 

 

Subject: Final Plat, Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards, East Bank 
Plaza Division No. 1 

 
Attached is the application for Final Plat, Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and 
Standards, East Bank Plaza Division No. 1. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
this plat at its December 2, 2014, meeting and recommended approval by a unanimous vote 
with a condition for a cross access agreement.  The conditions have been meet and staff 
concurs with this recommendation. 
 
After brief explanation by Director Cramer, it was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded 
by Councilmember Marohn, to accept the Final Plat for East Bank Plaza Division No. 1, and 
give authorization for the Mayor, City Engineer, and City Clerk to sign said Final Plat. Roll call 
as follows.  
 
Aye:  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Final Plat for East Bank Plaza 
Division No. 1, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Department 
Subject: Annexation with Initial Zoning of R-1, Annexation Agreement, Annexation 

Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and 
Standards, Ivywood Subdivision    

 
Attached is the application for Annexation with Initial Zoning of R-1, Annexation Agreement, 
Annexation Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and 
Standards, Ivywood Subdivision. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this plat at 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

34 

 

its November 3, 2015, meeting and recommended approval by a unanimous vote. Staff 
concurs with this recommendation. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff materials and presentation be 
entered into the record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following: 
 
 Slide 1: Vicinity map  
 Slide 2: Aerial photo of property under consideration  
 Slide 3: Additional aerial photo indicating surrounding land uses 

Slide 4: Additional aerial photo of image of site 
Slide 5: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 Slide 6: Photo looking west across property 
 Slide 7: Photo looking south along western property line 
 Slide 8: Photo of corner of York and Park Roads 
 Slide 9: Photo of German canal heading south 
 Slide 10: Photo of Gustafson lateral canal on western edge of property 
 Slide 11: Photo looking west across property at county subdivision 
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comment.  
 
Clint Boyle, 901 Pier View Drive, Idaho Falls, appeared.  Mr. Boyle stated there is compliance 
with the comprehensive plan and he anticipates moving forward with the first phase of 
development upon approval of the Council.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Annexation Agreement for Ivywood Subdivision, and give authorization for the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
  
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Ordinance annexing Ivywood Subdivision, under the suspension of the rules requiring three 
complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

35 

 

  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3050 
 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 79.266 ACRES DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF 
THIS ORDINANCE AS R-1 ZONE TO THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS DESCRIBING; AMENDING 
THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY WITH THE APPROPRIATE COUNTY AND STATE 
AUTHORITIES; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Lehto, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the annexation for Ivywood 
Subdivision, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Ordinance assigning a Comprehensive Plan Designation of Low Density and establishing the 
initial zoning for Ivywood Subdivision as R-1 Zone, under the suspension of the rules requiring 
three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary, 
that the Comprehensive Plan be amended to include the area annexed herewith, and that the 
City Planner be instructed to reflect said annexation, zoning, and amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan on the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps located in the Planning 
Office. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
   
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

36 

 

 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3051  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE INITIAL ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 79.266 
ACRES DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 OF THIS ORDINANCE AS R-1 ZONE; AND PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Initial Zoning of R-1 for 
Ivywood Subdivision, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Hally 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Proposed Letter from City Council and Mayor to Legislative Interim Committee for Urban 
Renewal: 
 
Mayor Casper stated the original letter was originally drafted in coordination with the Renee 
Magee, Executive Director of the Redevelopment Agency, and Director Cramer. She indicated 
the Council requested a letter be submitted which is comprehensive and communicates how 
the City has chosen to utilize the economic tool of Urban Renewal. Discussion followed with 
general comments from all Councilmembers.   
 
It was moved by Councilmember Parry, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the 
drafting and submittal of the letter to all Legislative Committees as needed. Roll call as follows: 
 
Aye:  Councilmember Smith 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Marohn 
 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Casper requested Council’s approval to share this letter with any local entities as 
needed if passed through the Legislative Committee. Council concurred.  
 



DECEMBER 17, 2015 – Unapproved 

37 

 

There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by 
Councilmember Parry, to adjourn at 8:58 p.m. which motion passed by unanimous vote. 
  
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 
 
 
 
 



DECEMBER 30, 2015 
 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting, Wednesday, 
December 30, 2015, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 
Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 5:00 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Sharon Parry (by phone) 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
 
Absent: 
 
Councilmember Michael Lehto 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Michael Kirkham, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and stated a single matter of City 
business has arisen which requires the attention and vote of the City Council. A business 
needs approval for a City liquor license prior to New Year’s Eve.  All paperwork was in order 
before the state and county and they were under the impression that they could simply 
transfer the existing city license—a paper transaction.  The business only recently learned that 
this is incorrect.  In order to open on New Year’s Eve, they cannot wait until the next Council 
meeting on the 14th of January, 2016.  Because New Year’s Eve is perhaps the busiest in 
terms of revenue for the year, the new owner says he will go bankrupt if he cannot open.  
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk summarized City Code 4-2-5, stating upon 
receipt of an application for a license under this Chapter, accompanied by the necessary 
license fee, the Clerk and Chief of Police shall investigate all information and report the results 
of the investigation to the City Council. If the Council determines that the premises are 
suitable for carrying on the intended business and that the requirements of this Chapter have 
been met, a license shall be issued.     
 
The City Clerk stated all approvals had been received by the Police Department.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve 
application for Liquor by the Drink and Beer to be Consumed on Premise for Roadhouse 
Saloon LLC. Roll call as follows:  
 
Aye:  Councilmember Marohn 
  Councilmember Ehardt 
  Councilmember Hally 
  Councilmember Parry 
  Councilmember Smith 
 



DECEMBER 30, 2015 
 

2 
 

Nay:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by 
Councilmember Hally, that the meeting adjourn at 5:05 p.m., which motion passed following a 
unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 
 
 















To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City of Idafio Pa[{s 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 50220 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405 
www. ida hofallsida ho .gov 

MEMORANDUM 
Honorable Mayor & City Council 

Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 

January 15, 2016 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT STATE/LOCAL 
AGREEMENT -INTERSECTION OF HOLMES AVENUE AND ELVA 
STREET PROJECT 

Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department 
and accompanying Resolution with respect to the Intersection of Holmes Avenue and 
Elva Street project. 

This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City 
match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the 
City Attorney. 

Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; 
and. authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 

CF:jk 

Attachment 
c: Mayor 

Council 
Canfield 

2-38-18-4-TRF-2015-42 

2016-2 

Respectfully, 

Chris H Fredericksen, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

380 Constitution Way, Idaho Falls, ID 83402- Phone: (208} 612-8250 - Fax: (208) 612-8570 



STATE/LOCAL AGREEMENT 
(PROJECT DEVELOPMENT) 

PROJECT NO. A019(694) 
INT HOLMES AVENUE & ELVA STREET, IDAHO FALLS 

BONNEVILLE COUNTY 

PARTIES 

THIS AGREEMENT is 
of 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD, 
DEPARTMENT, hereafter 
FALLS, acting by and 
called the Sponsor. 

PURPOSE 

KEY NO. 19694 

made and entered into this day 
by and between the IDAHO 

by and through the IDAHO TRANSPORTATION called the State, and the CITY OF IDAHO 
through its Mayor and Council, hereafter 

The Sponsor has requested that the State include in its Idaho Transportation Investment Program the Local Highway Safety Improvement Program (LHSIP) Project with Key No. 19694, described as safety improvements focusing on reducing potential accidents at this intersection with the addition of full pedestrian signal treatments, improved illumination and replacement of the span-wire signal system with standard signal poles and mast.: arms to improve safety for ·all users. Project development is to be performed by Sponsor's Staff. The purpose of this Agreement is to set out the terms and conditions to accomplish the project development phase of this project. 

The Sponsor acknowledges that this Agreement covers a project wherein federal aid funds will be allocated, and Sponsor will comply with the requirements of 23 U.S.C. §313, 23 CFR §635.410, and 28 CFR Part II. 

NOTE: Securing the services of a consultant for any aspect of project development must follow the process outlined in the Idaho Transportation Department Guidelines for Local Public Agency Projects. 

Since certain functions under this Agreement are to be performed by the State, requiring the expenditure of funds, and since the State can only pay for work associated with the state Highway System, the Sponsor is fully responsible for all costs incurred by the State related to the project. 

1 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



Authority for this Agreement is established by Section 40-317 of the Idaho Code. 

The Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION I. GENERAL 

1. It is necessary to develop construction plans and specifications in order that federal participation may be obtained in the construction costs of the project. Federal-aid for project development is available on this project. 

2. Federal participation in the project is at the rate of 92.66%; local participation is 7.34%. Scheduled funding for this project is listed in the approved Idaho Transportation Investment Program, and subsequent revisions. Current estimated funding is as 
follows: 

a. Project Development - $92,000 
o (PE-$2,000, PL-$10,000, PC-$80,000) 

b. Right-of-Way - $0 
c. Utilities - $0 
d. Construction Engineering - $62,000 

• (CE-$3,000, CL-$13,000, CC-$31,000, Cont.-$15,000) e. Construction - $311,000 
f. Total Estimated Project Costs $465,000 

3. The Sponsor's match for this project will be provided with cash and in-kind services up to the total of the match for the project (current estimate $34,200). Inkind services are itemized in the attached Exhibit A (ITD-2394, Request for Approval of In-Kind Work by Local Sponsor on Federal-Aid Projects) . 

4. This project shall be designed to State Standards as defined in the current version of the Idaho Transportation Department's Roadway Design Manual, or as subsequently revised. The current version of the Design Manual can be viewed at the following web site: http://itd.idaho,gov/manuals/ManualsOnline.htm. 

2 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



5. Funds owed by the Sponsor shall be remitted to the State through the ITD payment portal at: 
http.s: 1 /app.s. it d. :Ldalm. gov/PaylTD . 

6. All information, regulatory and warning signs, pavement or other markings, and traffic signals required and warranted will be developed as a part of the plans, regardless of whether the work is done as a portion of the contract or by the Sponsor's forces. 

7. If the project is terminated prior to completion, the Sponsor shall repay to the State all federal funds received for the project, and shall be liable to the State for any un-reimbursed incidental expenses as provided for in Section II, Paragraph 1 of this Agreement. 

8. Sufficient Appropriation. It is understood and agreed that the State is a governmental agency, and this Agreement shall in no way be construed so as to bind or obligate the State beyond the term of any particular appropriation of funds by the Federal Government or the State Legislature as may exist from time to time. The State reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if, in its sole judgment, the Federal Government or the legislature of the State of Idaho fails, neglects or refuses to appropriate sufficient funds as may be required for the State to continue payments. Any such termination shall take effect immediately upon notice and be otherwise effective as provided in this Agreement. 

SECTION II. That the State shall: 

1. Provide the following services incidental to the project development: 

a. Assist Sponsor in the selection of a Consulting Engineer as needed, and furnish the Agreement for Engineering Services and any supplements thereto, to be used between the Sponsor and Consultant Engineers on this project. 

b. Review Preliminary 
recommend other 
documentation. 

Environmental 
appropriate 

Evaluation and 
environmental 

3 state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



c. Furnish to the engineers copies of materials test 
reports and other data applying to the project 
and available to the State. 

d. Provide a hearing officer to conduct a formal 
public hearing as necessary. 

e. Assign State personnel or assist in hiring a 
qualified relocation agent consultant to 
determine relocation entitlements and assistance 
which might be required by the project. 

f. File with the Federal Highway Administration 
applications for exceptions to AASHTO Standards 
when appropriate and for government land 
withdrawals for rights-of-way and airport 
clearance. 

g. If requested by the Sponsor, assist in 
negotiations with public carriers and utilities 
for agreements on behalf of the Sponsor. 

h. 

i. 

Review the 
environmental 
approval. 

plans, 
studies, 

estimates, reports 
and issue notice 

and 
of 

Supply roadway summary sheets 
drawings as may be required 
plans. 

and such standard 
to supplement the 

j. Print and assemble plans, special provisions, 
specifications and contracts. 

k. Advertise for bids and let the construction 
contract. Prior to construction, the parties will 
enter into a separate agreement covering 
responsibilities of the parties relating to 
construction. 

2. Upon receipt of documentation from the Sponsor showing expenditure of funds for project development, review for eligibility. Any eligible expenses will be credited towards the Sponsor's match. 

3. Bill the Sponsor for costs incurred by the State under this Agreement for project development, if those costs exceed the amount set out in Section III, Paragraph l. 

4 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva st, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



4. Bill the Sponsor for any federal funds to be repaid by the Sponsor if the project is terminated prior to completion, and the Sponsor has been reimbursed with federal funds for preliminary engineering. 

5. Appoint the Local Highway Technical Assistance Council as the contract administrator for the State. 

SECTION III. That the Sponsor shall: 

1. Pay to the State, before the State begins the incidental services referred to in Section II, Paragraph 1, the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000), estimated to be the total expense to the State. In addition, pay to the State the cost of all incidental services provided by the State upon receipt of the billing provided for in Section II, Paragraph 3. 
2. Sponsor warrants that it will 

reimbursements on this project 
terminated prior to completion. 

repay any federal 
if the project is 

3. With its own forces, provide for design of the project. 

4. With the assistance of the State, hire a consultant for development services if needed. 

5. Provide to the State documentation of the actual expenses related to the design of the project. The Sponsor will maintain complete records and submit an itemized statement of all manpower, materials, and out-of-pocket expenses, and accomplish all recordkeeping in accordance with the following procedures: 

a. Individual time sheets will be maintained reflecting the total hours spent on the project. It is imperative that the hours be traceable to the project. 
b. Material - Costs of new material utilized on the project shall be supported by copies of invoices. c. Out-of-pocket expenses - All expenses shall be supported by copies of receipts. d. The record system will be such that all costs can be traceable from all billings through the Ledgers and the source document. 

5 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



6. Advertise for formal public hearing if required. 

7. Coordinate the relocation of utilities within the right-of-way of the project. Federal-aid utility relocations will be processed in accordance with the applicable provisions of 23 CFR and the Sponsor's utility policies and procedures. 

8. Acquire all 
provide for 
project. 

rights-of-way 
construction 

and 
and 

easements needed to 
maintenance of the 

9. Employ an approved certified general appraiser to complete all appraisals and an independent certified general appraiser to review appraisals required for the project. 

10. Review the appraisal reviewer's statement of the estimated fair market value and approve an amount to be just compensation for each parcel to be acquired. 

11. Provide a monthly right-of-way status report (ITD-2161), and forward it to the project manager. 

12. Before initiating negotiations for any real property required for right-of-way, establish, in writing, an amount considered to be just compensation, under Idaho law, Federal Regulations or any other applicable law, and make a prompt offer to acquire the property for the full amount established. 

13. Make a good faith effort, in accordance with Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, to acquire the real property by negotiation. Employ a State Approved Negotiator if necessary. 

14. Inform the property owner, in those cases where he indicates a willingness to donate a portion of his real property for rights-of-way, of all his rights including his right to full compensation in money for land and damages, if any, in accordance with Idaho Code. 

15. Provide relocation assistance and payments for any displaced person, business, farm operation, or nonprofit organization in accordance with the Uniform 

6 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970; 49 CFR 24; 23 CFR 710; the Idaho Real Property Acquisition Act of 1971; Title 40, Chapter 20; and Title 58, Chapter 11; Idaho Code, as amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder. No individual or family shall be displaced until decent, safe and sanitary replacement housing is available to the relocatees for immediate occupancy. In addition, advise the State of any relocations required by the project and upon request of the State, authorize the State to negotiate on the Sponsor' s behalf for all relocation assistance and payments, the cost of which will be assumed by the Sponsor at the time of negotiation. 

16. Ensure to the greatest extent practicable that no person lawfully occupying the real property shall be required to move from his home, farm or business without at least ninety (90) days written notice prior to advertisement of the project. 

17. Before advertisement for bids, provide a certification that all rights-of-way, easements, permits, materials sources and agreements necessary for the construction of the project have been acquired in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Provide a value of any right-of-way donations obtained, which may be credited as a matching share. 

18. Evaluate the impact the project might have on the quality of the human environment and prepare and furnish to the State an environmental evaluation that includes cultural resources and any other documentation required by the National Environmental Policy Act. 

19. At all required public hearings, furnish all necessary exhibits and provide for a representative of the Sponsor to describe the project; present information about the location and design, including alternates; discuss the tentative schedules for rights-of-way acquisitions and construction; discuss the Sponsor's relocation assistance program; discuss the economic, sociological, and environmental effects of the project; and answer all questions concerning the project. 

7 state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



20. Comply with Appendix A, Title 49 CFR, Part 21, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof. By this 
agreement Sponsor agrees to comply with and be bound 
to the Civil Rights provisions of Title VI of the 
Federal Code and to generally insert those provisions 
in all contracts that it enters into that are 
federally funded on this project. If property acquired 
for this project with Federal financial assistance is 
transferred, the recipient of the property will be 
subject to Appendix A if the property is used for the 
same purpose it was originally acquired or for another 
purpose involving similar services or benefits to the 
general public. Sponsor should contact the State 
prior to disposing of any property acquired under this 
agreement. 

21. Maintain all project records, including source 
documentation for all expenditures and in-kind 
contributions, for a period of three ( 3) years from 
the date of final acceptance. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, or audit has been started before 
expiration of the three-year period, the records shall 
be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues that arise from it. 

22. Comply with all other applicable State and Federal 
regulations. 

8 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



EXECUTION 

This Agreement is executed for the State by its Engineering 
Services Division Administrator, and executed for the Sponsor by 
the Mayor, attested to by the City Clerk, with the imprinted 
Corporate Seal of the City of Idaho Falls. 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

By regular/special meeting 
on 

Reviewed by FS: ~ 
hm:l9694 Final SLAPD.docx 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

Engineering Services 
Division Administrator 

CITY OF IDAHO FALLS 

Mayor 

9 state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department, hereafter called the STATE, has submitted an Agreement stating obligations of the STATE and the CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, hereafter called the CITY, for development of Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE is responsible for obtaining compliance with laws, standards and procedural policies in the development, construction and maintenance of improvements made to the Federal-aid Highway System when there is federal participation in the costs; and 

WHEREAS, certain functions to be performed by the STATE involve the expenditure of funds as set forth in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, The STATE can only pay for work associated with the State Highway system; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY is fully responsible for its share of project costs; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That the Agreement for Federal Aid Highway Project A019(694) is hereby approved. 

2. That the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the CITY. 

3. That duly certified copies of the Resolution shall be furnished to the Idaho Transportation Department. 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the above is a true copy of a Resolution passed at a regular, duly called special (X-out non-applicable term) meeting of the City Council, City of Idaho Falls, held on 

(Seal) 

City Clerk 

10 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva st, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19594 



Appendix A 
Non-Discrimination Agreement for Local Public Agencies 

Title VI Program 
Organization and Staffing 

Pursuant to 23 CFR 200, the Sponsor has designated a Title VI Coordinator who is responsible for monitoring practices, procedures, policies, and documents for compliance with Title VI. This individual is the designated liaison for Title VI program activities and for coordinating compliance monitoring with the Idaho Transportation Department Equal Employment Opportunity Office. 

Assurances of Non-Discrimination 
49 CFR Part 21.7 

The Sponsor hereby gives assurances: 

1. That no person shall on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity conducted by the Sponsor regardless of whether those programs and activities are Federally funded or not. The Federal-aid Highway Transportation Act of 1973 added sex to the list of prohibitive factors. Disability was added through Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Age was subsequently added in 1975 under the Age Discrimination Act. Minority populations and low-income populations were added by Presidential Executive Order 12898. Limited English proficient persons was added by Presidential Executive Order 13166. 

2. That it will promptly take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. 

3. That each program, activity, and facility (i.e. lands change to roadways, park and ride lots etc.} as defined at 49 CFR 21.23(b) and (e), and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 will be (with regard to a program or activity) conducted, or will be (with regard to a facility} operated in compliance with the nondiscriminatory requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, this agreement. 

Further assurance is given that the Sponsor will comply with all requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and Section 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Public agencies are required to have completed a self-evaluation of all their programs and services (including pedestrian facilities) by 1992. In addition, public agencies with 50 or more employees were required to develop an ADA Transition Plan describing in detail how corrections would be made. If corrections could not be made within one year (or 1993), the Plan was to include a detailed schedule of how corrections would be made (CFR 28 35.105 & 35.150). 

4. That these assurances are given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other Federal financial assistance extended 

1 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva st, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



after the date hereof to the Sponsor by the Idaho Transportation 
Department (ITD) under the Federally-Funded Program and is binding on 
it, other recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, sub-contractors, 
transferees, successors in interest and other participants. 

5. That the Sponsor shall insert the following notification in all 
solicitations for bids for work or material subject to the Regulations 
and made in connection with all Federally-Funded programs and, in 
adapted form all proposals for negotiated agreements: The (Sponsor), 
in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 
252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the 
Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs 
of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, 
hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in 
any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, 
disadvantaged business enterprises as defined at 49 CFR Part 23 will 
be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this 
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of 
race, color, national origin, sex, or disability in consideration for 
an award. 

6. That the Sponsor shall insert the clauses of Attachment 1 of this 
Agreement in every contract subject to the Act and the Regulations. 

7. That the Sponsor shall insert the clauses of Attachment 2 of this 
Agreement, as a covenant running with the land, in any deed from the 
United States effecting a transfer of real property, structures, or 
improvements thereon, or interest therein. 

8. The Sponsor agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial 
enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the Act, the 
Regulations, and this agreement. 

Implementation Procedures 
This agreement shall serve as the Sponsor's Title VI plan pursuant to 23 CFR 200 and 49 CFR 21. 

For the purpose of this agreement, "Federal Assistance" shall include: 
1. grants and loans of Federal funds, 
2. the grant or donation of Federal property and interest in property, 3. the detail of Federal personnel, 
4. the sale and lease of, and the permission to use (on other than a 

casual or transient basis) , Federal property or any interest in such 
property without consideration or at a nominal consideration, or at a 
consideration which is reduced for the purpose of assisting the 
Sponsor, or in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale or lease to the Sponsor, and 

5. any Federal agreement, arrangement, or other contract which has as one 
of its purposes, the provision of assistance. 

The Sponsor shall: 

2 state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St~ Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



1. Issue a policy statement, signed by the Sponsor's authorized 
representative, which expresses its commitment to the 
nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI. The policy statement shall be circulated throughout the Sponsor's organization and to the general public. Such information shall be published where appropriate in languages other than English. 

2. Take affirmative action to correct any deficiencies found by ITD or the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) within a reasonable time period, not to exceed 90 days, in order to implement Title VI compliance in accordance with this agreement. The Sponsor's authorized representative shall be held responsible for implementing Title VI requirements. 

3. Designate a Title VI Coordinator who has a responsible position in the organization and easy access to the Sponsor's authorized 
representative. The Title VI Coordinator shall be responsible for initiating and monitoring Title VI activities and preparing required reports. 

4. Adequately implement the civil rights requirements. 

5. Process complaints of discrimination consistent with the provisions contained in this agreement. Investigations shall be conducted by civil rights personnel trained in discrimination complaint 
investigation. Identify each complainant by race, color, national origin, sex, or disability; the nature of the complaint; the date the complaint was filed; the date the investigation was completed; the disposition; the date of the disposition; and other pertinent information. A copy of the complaint, together with a copy of the Sponsor's report of investigation, will be forwarded to ITD's EEO Office - External Programs within 10 days of the date the complaint was received by the Sponsor. 

6. Collect statistical data (race and sex) of participants in, and beneficiaries of the Transportation programs and activities conducted by the Sponsor. 

7. Conduct Title VI reviews of the Sponsor and sub-recipient contractor/consultant program areas and activities. Revise where applicable, policies, procedures and directives to include Title VI requirements. 

B. Attend training programs on Title VI and related statutes conducted by ITD's EEO Office. 

9. Participate in an annual review of the Sponsor's Title VI Program, the purpose of which is to determine to what extent the Sponsor has complied with Title VI requirements including the ADA. This review is conducted one year from the date of approval of the Non-Discrimination Agreement and then annually on the same date. The format for the Title VI review will be provided each year to the Sponsor for completion. A determination of compliance will be made by ITD's EEO Office based on 

3 State/Local Agreement (PD} 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



the information supplied in the review. This review of the Sponsor's 
Title VI Program may also include an on-site review in order to 
determine compliance. 

Discrimination Complaint Procedure 
Any person who believes that he or she, individually, as a member of any specific class, or in connection with any disadvantaged business enterprise, has been subjected to discrimination prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the American with Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987, as amended, may file a complaint with the Sponsor. A complaint may also be filed by a representative on behalf of such a 
person. All complaints will be referred to the Sponsor's Title VI 
Coordinator for review and action. 

In order to have the complaint consideration under this procedure, the complainant must file the complaint no later than 180 days after: 

a) The date of alleged act of discrimination; or 
b) Where there has been a continuing course of conduct, the date on 

which that conduct was discontinued. 

In either case, the Sponsor or his/her designee may extend the time for filing or waive the time limit in the interest of justice, specifying in writing the reason for so doing. 

Complaints shall be in writing and shall be signed by the complainant and/or the complainant's representative. Complaints shall set forth as fully as possible the facts and circumstances surrounding the claimed discrimination. In the event that a person makes a verbal complaint of discrimination to an officer or employee of the Sponsor, the person shall be interviewed by the Title VI Coordinator. If necessary, the Title VI Coordinator will assist the person in reducing the complaint to writing and submit the written version of the complaint to the person for signature. The complaint shall then be handled according to the Sponsor's investigative procedures. 

Within 10 days, the Title VI Coordinator will acknowledge receipt of the allegation, inform the complainant of action taken or proposed action to process the allegation, and advise the complainant of other avenues of redress available, such as lTD and USDOT. 

The Sponsor will advise ITD within 10 days of receipt of the allegations. Generally, the following information will be included in every notification to ITD: 

a) 
b) 
c) 
d) 
e) 
f) 
g) 
been 

Name, address, and phone number of the complainant. 
Name(s) and address(es) of alleged discriminating official(s). 
Basis of complaint (i.e., race, color, national origin or sex) Date of alleged discriminatory act(s). 
Date of complaint received by the Sponsor. 
A statement of the complaint. 
Other agencies (state, local or Federal) where the complaint has 
filed. 

4 State/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



h) An explanation of the actions the Sponsor has taken or proposed 
to resolve the issue raised in the complaint. 

Within 60 days, the Title VI Coordinator will conduct an investigation of 
the allegation and based on the information obtained, will render a 
recommendation for action in a report of findings to the Sponsor's 
authorized representative. The complaint should be resolved by informal 
means whenever possible. Such informal attempts and their results will be 
summarized in the report of findings. 

Within 90 days of receipt of the complaint, the Sponsor's authorized 
representative will notify the complainant in writing of the final decision 
reached, including the proposed disposition of the matter. The notification 
will advise the complainant of his/her appeal rights with ITD, or USDOT, if 
they are dissatisfied with the final decision rendered by the Sponsor. The 
Title VI Coordinator will also provide ITD with a copy of this decision and 
summary of findings upon completion of the investigation. 

Contacts for the different Title VI administrative jurisdictions are as 
follows: 

Idaho Transportation Department 
Equal Employment Opportunity Office - External Programs 
EEO Manager 
PO Box 7129 
Boise, ID 83707-1129 
208-334-8852 

Federal Highway Administration 
Idaho Division Office 
3050 Lakeharbor Lane, Suite 126 
Boise, ID 83703 
208-334-9180 

Sanctions 
In the event the Sponsor fails or refuses to comply with the terms of this 
agreement, the ITD may take any or all of the following actions: 

1. Cancel, terminate, or suspend this agreement in whole or in part; 
2. Refrain from extending any further assistance to the Sponsor under the 

program from which the failure or refusal occurred until satisfactory 
assurance of future compliance has been received from the Sponsor. 

3. Take such other action that may be deemed appropriate under the 
circumstances, until compliance or remedial action has been 
accomplished by the Sponsor; 

4. Refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal 
proceedings. 

Distribution: EEO Office 
Appendix A revised: 03-09, 08-10 

s state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key NO. 19694 



Attachment 1 

This Attachment is to be inserted in every contract subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and associated Regulations. 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor/consultant, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations 
The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted programs of United States Department of Transportation (USDOT), Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, {hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Non-discrimination 
The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sexr or national origin in the selection and retention of sub-contractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3 ~ Solicitations for Sub-contracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment 
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the contractor for work to be performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-contractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin. 

4. Information and Reports 
The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the contracting agency or the appropriate federal agency to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to ITD or the USDOT as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. sanctions for Non-compliance 
In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the contracting agency shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 
• Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or; 
• Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part 

Incorporation of Provisions 
The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) in every sub-contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The 

6 state/Local Agreement (PD) 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



contractor shall take such action with respect to any sub-contractor or procurement as the contracting agency or USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance. 

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened withr litigation with a sub-contractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request ITD enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the state and, in addition, the contractor may request the USDOT enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

7 State/Local Agreement (PDJ 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St, Idaho Falls 

Key No. 19694 



Attachment 2 

The following clauses shall be included in any and all deeds affecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures or improvements thereon, or interest therein from the United States. 

GRANTING CLAUSE 
NOW THEREFORE, Department of Transportation, as authorized by law, and upon the condition that the state of Idaho will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon, in accordance with Title 23, united States Code, the Regulations for the Administration of Federal Aid for Highways and the policies and procedures prescribed by the United States Department of Transportation and 1 also in accordance with and in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation ITD (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations) pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1064 (78 Stat. 252: 42 USC 2000d to 2000d -4) does hereby remise, release, quitclaim, and convey unto the state of Idaho all the right, title, and interest of the Department of Transportation in and to said land described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part thereof. 

HABENDUM CLAUSE 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the state of Idaho, and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are used for a purpose for which the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provisions of similar services or benefits and shall be binding on the state of Idaho, its successors, and assigns. 

The state of Idaho, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1} no person shall on the grounds of race, color, sex or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed (,)(and)* (2) that the state of Idaho, shall use the lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, part 21, Non-discrimination of federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended (,) and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above mentioned nondiscrimination conditions, the department shall have a right to reenter said lands and facilities on said land, and the above described land and facilities shall thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction. 1 

1 Reverter Clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to effectuate the purpose ofTitle VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 



Key Number Project Number 
19694 A019(694) 
Local Agency Name 

Request for Approval of In-Kind Work 
By local Sponsor on Federal-Aid Projects 

Project Name 
Int. Holmes Ave & Elva St. 

IZI Engineer Services During Project Development 

lTD 2394 (Rev. 06-14) 
itd.idaho.gov 

City of Idaho Falls 1Z1 Construction Engineering and Inspection, Sampling, and Testing Nature of Work to be Performed by Local Agency 
Design, Survey, and Construction Management and Inspection Services 

Total Estimated Cost Note: Costs for these services that exceed the match required on the project are not eligible for reimbursement 
Up to $34,200.00 for services {see attached) anticipated match is understood to be up to $34,200.00 

List the employees who will be providing services. List employees' qualifications, certifications, and experience for the work to be performed. Attach additional pages if necessary. 

Name Qualifications and Certifications Experience (If listing specific project experience, 
Estimated Cost* indicate if the project was federallY funded) 

PE License# 10551 & WAQTC # 
7 years at ITO, 8 years as a consultant and 1.5 

see attached Exhibits Chris canfield, P.E. 
20098 years at the City administering Federal funded 

A&B I projects (design and construction). See attached 
Kent Fugal, P.E. PE license# WAQTC # 22115 

5.5 yrs with Cities & 20 years with consultant see attached Exhibits 
working on the design of Federal aid projects. A&B 
Consultant surveyor for 9 years and then 13 years 

see attached Exhibits Kenny Roberts, PLS PLS licence # 9755 as City surveyor on federal aid projects. (see 
A&B attached)_ 

Chief Inspector for City 2 years, 10 years 
see attached Exhibits Gary Olson WAQTC # 43665 inspection as consultant on federal aid projects. 
A&B See attahced 

Robert Cox WAQTC#20018 See attached sheets see attached Exhibits 
A&B See attached sheets for additional See attached sheets for additional 

See attached sheets for additional personnel. 
see attached Exhibits I personnel. I personnel. A&B 

*Provide separate page with details- see the attached exhibits for examples and for documentation requirements upon completion of work 

Reviewed By- Project Manager's Printed Name 
Chris Canfield, P.E. 

Project Manager's Signature{ .JC 
~ ()' · ~lVI. v In-Kind Work Approved** ~gr9val Authority 6ngineer'j PnytedN~ En!iJLneer's'Signature 

~Yes 0No \"' l ( li\C(l!{(( illl" CLtl. , /'--
•• Approval Authority: 

Local Projects Administered by LHTAC- Contract Services Engineer 
Local Projects Administered by the District - District Engineer 

Date 
11/16/15 

_/- 1 Date 

l tLr~ ~~-f;, I \ I -

I 

Exhibit A 



Documentation Requirements for Completed In-Kind Work 
If this request is approved, the following will be required upon completion of the work. 

The Sponsor must provide documentation of the actual expenses related to the services provided by the 
Sponsor. The Sponsor shall maintain complete records and submit an itemized statement of all manpower, 
materials, and out-of-pocket expenses, and accomplish all record-keeping in accordance with the following 
procedures: 

a. Individual time sheets will be maintained reflecting the total hours spent on the project. It is imperative 
that the hours be traceable to the project. 

b. Material- Cost of new material utilized on the project shall be supported by copies of invoices. 

c. Out-of-pocket expenses- All expenses shall be supported by copies of receipts. 

d. The record system must be able to trace all costs from all billings through the ledgers and the source 
document. 



Professional Registrations 

ID PE #10551 

Education 

MS, Environmental Engineering 
Idaho Stare University, 1998 

DS, Civil Engineering· 
Emphasis in 
Stmctures and Geotcchnics 
Idaho State University, 1996 

Professional Certifications 

ITD Inspector Qualifications 
C. &S. (2001·2012) 
C.A (2003·2013} 
E. &B. (2002-2012) 

• E. Wetlands (2005-2010) 
TO. (2002-20 13) 
S.1: &P.P. (2002·2012) 

Work History 

Assistant Public Works 
Dir~'Ctor; City ofldaho Falls 
Mny2013- PRESENT 

Project Engincct· 
J·U-B ENGINEERS, Inc. 
May 2005-present May 2013 

EITIJ'rojcct Enginecrffraffic 
Engineer; Idaho Transportution 
Department 1998- May 2005 

Christopher D. Canfield, PE 

Mr. Canfield joined the City of Idaho Falls In May 2013 
and aids in the design and Construction of City local 
federal aid projects. He worked as a consultant lor S 
years fi·om in May of2005to 2013 manage a 
Constl\lction Ellginccring & Inspection Group 
administering Fcdcml Aid projects across the state. I-I is 
1>rior CXI>cricncc includes seven years at the Idnho 
Transportation Dc;nn·tmcnt (lTD) where he was chnrgccl 
with providing engineering suppol't on numerous 
highway construction projects, as well as managing an 
I nspcction und mainlcnnncc crew. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 124721'anchcri Bridge over the East Lateral 
Canal (2013/2014) 

• 13133 ADA Pedestrian Rmnps & Copncrctc 
lmpmvemcn:s Citywide (20 14) 

• 11686 Pancheri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(20 14/20 15) 

• 12473 17'" St Holmes to Snake Riwr Bl'idge 
(2013) 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City 
of Idaho Falls: 

Sec nttnchcd sheet. 



T 

. 
~!U~ . 

i ' • . . . 
R.e~oltslt.uc.Yo!t 

' 
• • 
'· 

.• 
! 

! 

• 

& slc im,tni.Cmtta~y 
Aug.ZOIO~Otc 2\110 

;~~~q~-~tJ:t}D!O 
l$tP!?;O!J; .1!>'719!1 
.~~~1 
!'IC!i! 
Jl¥.:9f!~l._ 
~~!!!!~IJ:Q~~~~ 
l-Mr.W!:P!~.t 
:~~~l.l·!'fC.~!f 
~2~1~1.1 
!29104Qit. 
:Nov~IJ·.~teil_!ll 

!. -· '.llnNIO·QW-tw',W_I .• . !...J. • ... !. . ----- ·-· -·-·· 



Professional Registrations 

• Idaho PE 9247 (1999) 

• Ut:m PE 177864 (1994) 

Education 

BS (1989), Gvil 
Engineering, Brigham 
Young University 

• MS (1990), a,;] 
Engineering, Brigham 
Young University 

Professional Certifications 

PTOE (2000) 

Work History 

• 9/2011- Present, Gtyof 
Idaho Falls 

• 4/2004- 9/2011, Project 
Engineering Consultants 

7/2C'C1- 4/2004,]-U-B 
En,cineers 

• 4/2CC1- 7/2CC1, Gtyof 
Glendale, Arizona 

11/1997- 4/2001, MK 
Centennial/Washington 
Group 

• 4/1995- 11/1997, Pleasant 
Grove Gty, lJtah 

4/1988- 4/1995,Horrocks 
Engineers 

Kent J. Fugal, P.E., PTOE 

Nlr. Kem Fugal joined the Gtyof Idaho Fails in 2011 and 
aids in the design and Construction of Gty local federal aid 
projects. He works as the Gty Engineer. Priorto that, he 
worked as a consultant for over 19 years md in local 
govemment for three years. He served as the project 
manager, deputy project manager, tl'affic discipline 
manager, or project engineer for many federal aid projects 
as a consultant. In his local government cxpetience, he has 
setved as the agreement administrator, managing the work 
of constdtants on federal aid projects. He has a broad , 
background in traffic engineering and the design of 
roadways, drninage systems, utilities, trnffic signals and 
ro~dab?uts, as well as genet:tl civil and municipal 
engmeenng. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 11155 John Adams Pkwy Bridge over the Idaho 
c,na] (construction 2012/2013) 

• 11247 Garfield St Bridge overthe Idaho Canal 
{construction 2011/2012) 

• 12472 Pancheri Bridge over the East Laternl C1nal 
{design 2011-201:1, construction 2013/2014) 

• 13133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Concrete 
Improvements Gtywide (2014) 

• 11686 Pancheri Dr.; Bellin Rd to Skyline Dr 
{design 2011·2014) 

• 12473 17"• Street Rehabilitation Pancheri Bridge to 
Holmes Ave {2013) 

• 14052 1>< St &Holmes Ave Trnffic Signal 
Reconstruction (design 20 14·) 

• 13132 Grandview Dr Skyline Dr to Saturn Ave 
{design 2013·) 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City 
of Idaho Falls: 

• Greenhurst Rd/S Powerliue Rd and Greenhum 
Rd/Southside Blvd Signals, Nampa {2004·2006) 

• Sand Creek Byway, Sandpoint (trafficlpt<:·design 
suppott 2000·2001) 



• WYE Interchange, Stage 2, 
Boise (constmction phasing 
& worl<: zone traffic control 
1999-2001) 

• SH-75 - Alturas to Timber 
Way, Blaine County (traffic 
signal, signing & striping, 
work zone traffic control 
1999-2001) 

• US-93 Twin Falls Alternate 
Route, Twin Falls 
(intersection and signing & 
pavement marking design 
200-2001) 

• US-95 Copeland NE -
O:midor Study, Botmdaty 
County(corridor 
development and 
management plan 2000-
2001) 

• I-84 Corridor Study, Ada 
and Canyon Counties (1999-
2000} 

• 10600 South- 1300 East to 
1750 East, Sandy, Utah 
(design2010-2011) 

• I-80 Climbing Lanes, Salt 
Lake and Summit Counties, 
Utah (design 2010-2011) 

• 12300 South "Thru-Tum" 
Intersection, Draper, Utah 
(design 2010-2011) 

Pll-271 Juno 2011 

KentJ. Fugal, P.E., PTOE j Design and Construction Support I Page- 2 

• JOih/31" Streets and Wall Avenue, Ogden, Utah 
(design 1997-1999) 

• Signal and Roadway Upgrades at SR-30 and 600 
West, Logan, Utah (design 1997-1998) 

• Signals and Roadway Upgrades at Three Locations; 
SR-48, SR-154, and SR-172, Salt Lalre Cotmty, 
Utah(design 1998-1999) 

• Signals and Roadway Upgrades at Three Locations 
on US-89; I -84 Eastbound, I-84 Westbound, and 
Nicholls Road, Weber County, Utah (design 1997) 

• Signals and Roadway Upgrades in Brigham Qry 
and Slaterville, Box Elder and Weber Counties, 
Utah (design 1997-1998) 

• Cache Valley Corridor Study, Cache Cotmty, Utah 
(design 1998-1999) 

• University Avenue Interchange, Provo, Utah 
(design and environmental studies/ documentation 
1993-1995) 

• Union Pacific Railroad Qossing Oosuresl 
Consolidations, Utah County, Utah (design and 
environmental studies/ documentation 1994) 

• 1100 West, Weber Cotmty, Utah (environmental 
studies/ documentation 1994-1995) 

• Hastings Road, Gmnd County, Utah 
(environmental sn.dies/ doctunentation 1994) 

J·U-B ENGINEERS, Inc.. 



Gary Olson 

Ml'. Gmy Olson joined the City of Idaho Falls in 2013 liS the City Chief Inspector on City nnd 
local federal aid pmjccls. Helms over I 0 years of experience in Inspection support on Fcdcrnl 
aid pmjccts as n Consultant prior to his tic with tim City ol' Idaho !'nils. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with Idaho Falls: 
• 12472 l'anchcl'i Bridge over the East Lateral Cnnal (20 13/2014) 
• 12<;73 17'" St. Holmes to the Snake Rive•· Bridge (2013) 
• 11155 John Adams Parkway Bridge overthc Idaho Canal (20 13) 
o 13133 ADA Pcdcstrinn Ramps & Concrete lmprol'cmcnts Citywide (20 14) 
o I 1(>86 l'anchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline (2014/201 5) 

Professional Certifications 

WAQTC#43665 

Gnt-y Olson {Ouaflficanon Number: 43,665) 

ITO Inspector Qualifications 

C, & S. (Origlnnl Qunlificntlon: No'12013 Expires: l-..1-ov 2018} 

C.A. (Orlglnnt QunllflctlUon: Oet2013 Expiros: Ocl20f8) 

E. & B. (Orlginill Quallficnlion: Ocl2013 Expires: Oc!2018J 

S~ T.& P .P. (Orlglntll Quallfic:ntlon: Nov 2013 Expires: N0>1 2018) 

TCI (Orlglnlll QuallflcaUon: Ocl2013 Explros: Ocl2018) 

WAQTC Sampler/Tester Qualifications 

ACI~CFT (Orlglnnl Qunllficallon: Sep 2010 Expiros: Scp 2015) 

AgTT (Original Ounllflcnllon: Feb2009 Explros~ Mar ?.019} 

As TT (Original Qunllficnllon: Feb 2011 Expires: Feb 20Hl) 

AsTT II (Ollglnnl Qunllffcullon:fo'eb 2011 Explros: Feb 2016) 

CLTT (Original Ounllficnllon: Jnn 2012 Explros: JM 2017) 

OTT (Original Qunllficntlon: Apr 2C: 12 ExpirGs: Apr 2017) 

EBTT (Original Qunllflcatlon: M<tr 2012 Explrcts: Mar 2017) 



Michael Carlile 

Mr. Michael A. Carlile joined the City oflduho Fulls in 2008 and aids in the design tllld inspection of City local federal aid projects. He wm·ks us a Design Tech in GIS & Inspector with the City. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with Idaho Falls: 
• 12472 l'unchcri Bridge over the Ens! Lateral Canal (20 13/20 14) 
• 13133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Concrete hnprovcmcllls Citywide (2014) 
• 11686 J>anchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline (20 14/20 I 5) 

Education 
BS in Geography from Utnh 
State University, with a Minor in 
Geogmphic 1 nfonnation Science 

Professional Certifications 
WAQTC#23205 

l\'Iichacl Cm·liJc (OuaHOcolicn Numbm. 23,2051 

ITO Inspector Qualifications 

C. & S. (Original Qualifleollon: Nov 2013 Expires: Nov 2018) 

C.A. (Original Quai!Rcntion: Nov 2013 Expires: Nov2018) 

TCI (Original Quallllcaliuu: NC1V 2013 EXJJftiJli:: Nuv 2013} 
WAQTC Sampler/Tester Qualifications 

ACJ .. CFT (Orlglnnl QuoliflcaUon: Oct2013 E:.cplrcs: Oei2013} 

AgTT (Original Quallficntlon: Ap· 2014 Expires: Apt 2019) 



Education 

High School Graduate 
Courses at EITC 

Professional Certifications 
Forklift Safety & Certification, 
lifting & Ergonomics, Fire Safety, 
Fall Protection, OSHA, Ha~Woper 
40 hr., GERT, Confined Spaces, 
Adult CPR and Workplace First 
Aid 

Work History 

• 20lo-20l3 Ba!l'cock St!tvices. fnc., 
Office Admlr.istrator 

• 2003·2C09 CH2M HILt, lr.c. and 
SubsiCiaries1 Office Admin./ PtnjP.<1 
Assist./ communications Specialist/ 
Comr.1unity Advocacy I Mark~ting 
Coordi:tator. 

• 1993·2003 tdaho Materla~ HandUng, 
Inc., Oiflce: Manager I Administrator 

• 1992·1993 Daton Payrol! Services, 
Payroll Custome:" Service Rep./ 
Payroll Supervisor 

• 1990·1992JI,..tartin Marietta, Payroll/ 
Accounting Clerk 

• 1989·1990 ferrin·Manuel and 
Associates, Accounting Clerk I Office 
Manager 

• l9SS·l9S9 CGX,Inc.l Full Charee 
Bcokkeep:er 

• 1937-19SS Action A!r, Inc .• 
Rec-eptionlst'Acecunting Cler);; 

... ,,.n 
Tami N. Nichols, City of Idaho Falls 

Ms. Tam! Nichols joined the City of Idaho Falls In 
May of 2013 and aids in the design and Construction 
of City local federal aid projects. She works as an 
Administrative Support/Document Controls with the 
City. Prior to that, she worked as a consultant for 10 
years from 2003 to 2013 as a Project Assistant 
administering Federal Aid projects. Her prior 
experience includes o years at the idaho 
Transportation Department (lTD). 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

o 12472 Pancheri Bridge over the East Lateral 
Canal (2013/2014) 

o 13133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Copncrete 
Improvements Citywide (2014) 

o 11686 Pancheri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(2014/2015) 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City of Idaho Falls: 
Babcock Services, Inc. Office Administrator 
Subcontractor to CHN working transition on the 
Advanced Mixed Waste Treatment Plant at the Idaho National Lab. Assisted in locating professionals for 
DOE contractors RFI', negotiate terms of employment and reply with complete proposals. Coordinate new 
hire pre-employment screening and paper work. 
CH2M Hill and Subsidiaries, Project Assistant 
Provided document controls and project accounting. 
Coordinate logistic efforts for transition on the INL, 
ICP contract. Develop and maintain a small business data base to determine work relationships for 
business opportunities. Support area projects In safe, effective cleanup. Supply important internal 
communications to more than 2400 employees and 
subcontractors dally. Research, interview, and write 
articles for the company newsletters. Coordinate 
release of news to external media in Idaho, DOE 
Idaho, and DOE-HQ In Washington, DC. 



Education 

One }1!ar college 

Professional Certifications 

WAQTC If 20018 

• Inspector Qualifications -
C.&S., C. A., T. C.!. 
WAQTC- AC!-CPT, J\g'IT 

Work History 

Worked from fall of 1992 to 
2000 inspecting road and 
bridge projects for the Idaho 
Transportation Dept. Joined the 
City ofldnho Falls in 2000 ami 
have designed and inspected 
several projects for the City 
which have included Federal 
Aid l>rojects. 

Robert Cox 

Mr. Robert Cox joined the City of Idaho Falls in 2000 and 
aids in the design ond Construction of City local federal 
aid projects. He wot'ks as an lnspcctor/Right·ol~wny 
Agent wilh the City. His prior experience includes 7.5 
ycnrs at the Idaho Tnmsportation Department (lTD) 
where he wns charged with inspecting road pmjccts as a 
Principal Inspector. 

Relevant Federal Ald Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

o 12472 Panchcri Bridge over the Enst Latcml 
Canal (20 13/20 14) 

• !3133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Col)llCt'CIC 
Improvements Citywide (20 14) 

o 11686 Panchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(2014/2015) 

• Key #79'/9 Sunnyside Rd. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City 
of Idaho Falls: 

• Scveml Interst<tte and State Highway projects 



Yvona Gunderson 

Yvona Gunderson joined the City of Idaho Falls In 1990 
and aids in the design and construction of City local 
Federal Aid projects. She works as a Design 
Technician Supervisor in the Engineering Department. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

o 12472 Pnnchcri Bridge over the East Lateral 
Cmml (20 13i2014) 

• 13133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & C011crctc 
Improvements Citywide (20 14) 

• II 686 Panchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(2014/2015) 

o 12473 17th Street Rehabilitation Pmtchcri Bridge 
to Holmes A vc 

• 14052 1st St & Holme' Av Tmmc Signal 
Reconstruction 



Education 

Associates irom Idaho Stare 
Unh·ersityin Design Dmfting 

Work History 

:Vlountain River Engin\!~ring 
2006·201 I 

Grant Campbell 

Mr Grant Campbell joined the City of Idaho Falls in 
2011 and aids in the design and Construction of City 
local federal aid projects. He works as a Designer with 
the City. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 

• 

• 

13133 ADA Pt'<lcstrian Ramps & Concrete 
lmpmvcmcnts Citywide (2014) 

11686 Pancheri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(20 14/20 15) 

14052 I" & Holmes Tmflic Rcconsh1!Ction 
(2016) 



Professional Registrations 

Idaho Licensed Land Surveyor 
I'LS 9755 

Education 

AAS Qvil Engineering Tech 

Work History 

• 2001-Currcnl City of 
Idaho Falls 

• 2000-2001 A&E 
Engineering 

• 1998-2000 Snake River 
Lnnd Surveying-Rocky 
Mountain Engineering 

• 1996-1998 Gordon 
Sorensen Engineering 

• 1993-1996 JUB 
Engineering 

• 1992 USFS Caribou 
Notional Forest Survey 

l<enneth Baldwin Roberts, PLS 

Mr. Kenneth Roberts joined the City of Idaho Falls in 
2001 and aids in the design and Construction of City 
local federal aid projects. He works as the City Surveyor 
within the City. Prior to that he worked as a consultant 
for 9 years from 1992 to 2001 as a Survey Crew Chief. 
His prior experience includes Surveying and Mapping, 
Property Boundary, Road and Bridge Staking, Industrial 
Surveying, and Disaster Road Reconstruction. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 14052- 1st St & Holmes Av Traffic Signal 
Reconstruction (Current) 

• 13585 -17th Street Rehabilitation Holmes Ave to 
Austin Ave 

• 13132 Grandview Drive Reconstruction Skyline 
Dr. to Saturn Ave. 

• 12472 Pancheri Bridge over the East Lateral 
Canal (2013/2014) 

• 12473 -17th Street Rehabilitation Pancheri 
Bridge to Holmes Ave 

• 11686 Pancheri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(2014/2015)2001-Current 

• 09616 Old Butte Rd. at us 20 

• 7979 Sunnyside Road Construction 2007 

• 7708 Hitt Road and Sunnyside Construction 2005 
• Greenbelt Path- Pancheri Dr. to So. Tourist Park 

• University Place Pathway - Freeman Park to 
UPRR Bridge 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City 
of Idaho Falls: 

• Interstate 15 from Exit 69 to Exit 71 widening. 
(1999•/-) 

• Interstate 84 at Milepost 124 (1993+/-) 



Education 

High School/ some Tech collage 

Worl< History 

Mountain River inc. 1999-20 II 

Skidmore inc. 1995-1999 

Neal Cunningham 

Mr. Neal Cunningham joined the City of Idaho Falls in 
May 2011 and aids In the design and Construction of City 
local federal aid projects. He works as a Survey Tech 
with the City. Prior to that he worked as a construction 
Slii'VCYO!'IhriO years n·om in 1999 to 2011 sm·veying 
administering Federal Aid projects 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

o 12472 l'anehcri Bridge over the East Lateral 
Canal (20 13/20 14) 

o 13133 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Concrete 
Improvements Citywide {20 14) 

• I I 686 Panchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(20 14/20 15) 



Education 

High School Gt~td/Sonl<' Tech 
College 

Work History 

• 20 13-CUI'l'Cnt City of 
Idaho Falls Survey 
Tech 

• 2008-2013 INIJSub 
C011tractcd Surveyor 

• 2005-2008 Schiess and 
Associates 

Brandon Mecham 

Mr. Brandon Mecham joined the City of Idaho Falls in 
March 2013 and aids in the design and Construction of 
City local federal aid projects. He works as a Survey 
Tech with the City. J>l'ior to that he worked as a 
constmction surveyor lor 8 years !i·om 2005 to 2013. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 12472 Punchcl'i 13ridgc over the East Lntcrul 
Cannl (2013/2014) 

• 13!33 ADA Pedestrian Ramps & Copncrcte 
lmpmvcmcnts Citywide (20!4) 

• 11686 Punched Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(20 14/20 15) 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City 
of Idaho Falls: 

• INL Waste Treatment Plant. lnstnnncnt Man 

• INL, 10 mile Road toconnccl MFC to INTEC. 
Crew Chief 



Education 

Some College 

1996 High School Diploma 

Professional Certifications 
Nuclear Testing 
Forklift unified 

• 40hr Iia?Jllat unified 

Work History 

2011-Current City of Idaho 
Fulls 

2003-2011 Schiess nnd 
Associates 

2002-2003 Forsgreen 
Associates 

2001-2002 Operators Union nt 
the INL 

1999-200 l Benton Engineering 

NATHAN ANDERSON 

Mr Nathan Anderson joined the City of idaho Falls in 
September 2011 ond aids In the design and Construction 
of City local federal aid projects. lli works us an_Survcy 
Tech with the City. Prior to that he worked as a 
Consll'uction Surveyor lbr ll years from 1999 to 201 0 
sul'\·cying federal Aid projects. His pri<ll' cxpcl'iencc 
includes II years ut dill'crcntlocul engineering 
companies where he was charged with duties such us 
smvcying lTD funded bridges with Global Positioning 
Systems (GI'S), Total Stations, und different types of 
levels includinB Oigitnl L~vcls. 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Supported with 
Idaho Falls: 

• 12472 Panchcri Bridge over the East Latcml 
Canal (20 1312014) 

• 13133 ADA Pcd~st.-ian Ramps & (',opncrctc 
Improvements Citywide (2014} 

• 11686 Pnnchcri Rd.; Bellin Rd to Skyline 
(201412015) 

Relevant Federal Aid Projects Prior to the City of Idaho Falls: 

Firth Bridge over the Snake River 

Targhee Creek Bridge in Island Park just North of 
Henry's lake 

Yellowstone Highway Bridge South of Shelley, 
Idaho 

Advanced Mixed Waste Treatment Plant at the INL 



(19694) Jnt Holmes & Elva Signal 
Project Development Services (not including Environmental) 
LJ:ITAC 
10/29/2015 

Exhibit A 

LABOR DAY ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

SUMMARY Total Proj Manager 
L-Hours 

lcity·LaborHours 246.oo I 47.oo I 
SALARY COSTS 

A. Summarv of Man-Day Costs 

1 Project Manager 47.00 
2 Designer 60.00 
3 Tech 114.00 
4 Office Manager 9.00 
5 Survey Crew • 16.00 

B. Payroll Burden & Fringe Benefit Costs 

1 ITO Office OH Rate 1.1100 
2 Fee 0.0000 
3 ITO Ap roved FCCM with office OH rate only) 0.0000 

C. Out-of-Pocket Costs -!See delnil sheet) 

1) City Direct Expenses 

* Survey hours are crew hours (2-man crew). 

Designer 
L~Hours 

Go.oo I 

L-Hours X 
l-Hours X 
L-Hours X 
L-Hours X 
L-Hours X 

Tech 
L-Hours 

n4.oo I 

$46.57 
$32.55 
$27.48 
$16.34 
$47.76 

OfficeM. 
L~Hours 

9.oo I 

Fully Loaded 
Hourly Rate 

$9827 
$68.67 
$57.98 
$34.48 

$100.76 

TOTAL DIRECT PAYROLL 

2.1100 
2.1100 
2.1100 

TOTAL PAYROLL, BURDEN, FRINGE & FEE 

41.6251 = 

TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE 

SUI'VCY 

L-Homs 
l6.oo I 

/hour= 
/hour= 
/hour= 
/hour= 
/hour= 

$ 4,618.74 
$ 4,120.41 
$ 6,610.04 
$ 310.30 
$ 1,612.21 

I$ 11,211.1o I 

17,271.70 1 

41.63f 

I s 17,313.321 



(19694) lnt Holmes & Elva Signal 

CONCEPT REPORT/Environmental Total 

L Hours -
1.1 Concept Report/Environmental 
1.1 Concept Design 
1.2 Prepare Concept Report 
1.3 Address Review Comments 

I TOTAL FOR CONCEPT RPT. 

2 Survey 

12 !Reference Su"'.cyMonumcnts!Topo_ 

II 2 !TOTAL FOR SURVEY 

-
10.00 
14.00 
6.00 

30.00 

18.00 I 

18.00J 

PM 

LHours -

2.00 
2.00 
1.00 

s.oo 

PM 
L-Hours 

2.00 I 

2.00 I 

Idaho Falls 

Designer 

L-Hours 

8.00 
8.00 

16.00 

Designer 
L-Hours 

I 

I 

Tech 

L Hours -

4.00 
4.00 

8.00 

Office M. 

L Hours -

1.00 

1.00 

Survey 

L~Hours 

-

Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours Crcw-Hrs 

I 1 16.00 I 

J. 16.00 I 



3 

3.1 
3.2 
3.3 
3.4 

3 

Final Design 

PfCl)t'J.re Plan Sheets 
Prcnnre Soccitications 
Pn:nnrc Schedule 
Final Design Review and Comments 
TOTAL FOR FINAL DESIGN 

Total 
L-Hours 

PM 
L Hours -

88.00 12.00 
12.00 8.00 
2.00 2.00 

14.00 2.00 
116.00 24.00 

Idaho Falls 

Designer 
L Hours -

16.00 
4.00 

4.00 
24.00 

Tech 
L-Hours 

60.00 

8.00 
68.00 

Office M. 
L-Hours 

-

Survey* 
Crew-Hrs 

-



Idaho Falls 

4 PS&E Total PM Designer Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours t-Hours L-Hours Crew-Hrs 

14.1 IPS & E SUBMIITAL so.oo I 8.00 I 12.00 I 30.00 L I -' 4.2 IADVIRTISMENT REVIEW/SUPPORT 24.00 1 4.00 I 8.00 i 8.00 I 4.00 I 

II 4 !TOTAL FOR PROJECT PS & E 74.00 I 12.00 20.00J 38.00 I 4.00 I - J 

5 Monthly Invoices Total PM Designer Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours Crew-Hrs Is IMonrhly Invoices s.ou 1 4.00 4.00 

jTotal 246.00 47 !!lll 6~.00 114.00 9.00 16.00 



(19694) Jut Holmes & Elva Signal 
Project Development Services (not including Environmental) 
LHTAC 

10/29/2015 Exhibit A 

Wages PM Designer Tech 

Chrts Canfield 45.08 

Kent Fugal 48.07 

Kenny Roberts 

Neal Cunningham 

Yvona Gunderson 34.16 

Nathan Anderson 

Brandon Mecham 

Gary Olson 31.00 
Michael Carlile 27.48 
Robert Cox 32.48 
Tam! Nichols 

Average 46.57 I 32.55 II 27.48 

Office Man Survey 

34.17 

25.59 

19.4 

16.35 

16.34 

II 16.34 I 47.76 



(19694) Int Holmes & Elva Signal 
Project Development Services (not including Environmental) 
LHTAC 

Exhibit A 
DIRECT EXPENSES 

Total 
Number of Trips (engr 1 x per month) 5 
Average Miles per Trip (engr) 5 
Nukmber of Trips (designer) 10 
Average miles per trip (designer) 5 

Total Miles 

Cost per Mile $ 0.5550 
Total Mileage Cosr 

Total Direct Cost 

Trips 

Mi 25 I Ml I 

50 Mi I 
75 

IMI 

$ 41.63 

$41.63 



(19694) 91nt Holmes & Elva Signal 
Construction Engineering & Inspection 
10/29/2015 

SUMMARY Total 
L-Hours 

\city-Labor Hours 222.oo I 
SALARY COSTS 

A. Summary of Man.Day Costs 

1 Project Manager 62.00 
2 Chief lnsoector 47.00 
3 Trans Technician 57.00 
4 Office Manager 48.00 
5 Survey "' 8.00 

8. Pavroll Burden & Frlnae Benefit Costs 

1l1TD Office OH Rate 

1)City Direct Expenses 

* Survey requires a 2-man crew. 

EXHIBITB 
ExhibitB 

LABOR DAY ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

Proj Manager Chief Inspector 
t..-Hours 

62.oo I 47.oo I 

L-Hours X 
L-Hours X 
L·Hours X 
L-Hours X 
L-Hours X 

Tech 
L~Hours 

s1.oo I 

$45.78 
$31.74 
$27.48 
$15.87 
$47.76 

TOTAL DIRECT PAYROLL 

1.11oo I 2.11ool 

OfficcM. 
L~Hours 

48.oo I 

Fully Loaded 
Hourly Rate 

$96.60 
$66.97 
$57.98 
$33.49 

$100.76 

TOTAL PAYROLL, BURDEN, FRINGE & FEE 

I $ 2,o38.85o I = 

TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE 

Survey 
L-Hours 

8.oo I 

/hour;: 
/hour= 
Jhour= 
Jhour= 
/hour= 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

5,988.94 
3,147.66 
3,305.02 
1,607.31 

806.10 

14,855.031 

14,855.031 

2,038.85) 

16,893.881 



CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

1.1 Ocneral Contract Administration 
1.1 Submittal Lo2 & Min. Testimz: Reauircments 
1.2 Pte~Cortstruction Conference 
1.3 L'lbor Compliance 
1.4 Civil R.ie:hts Compliance 
1.5 Filing & Records Verification 
1.6 Pro.~rrcss Estimates 
1.7 Materials Certifications 
1.7.1 MTR 
1.7.2 Source Aoorovals 
1.7.3 Mix Desif!ll Reviews 
1.8 Contract Chan•es 
1.9 Weeklv Progress Meetinu:.; 
1.10 Pavroll Submittals 
1.11 Chan•e Orders 
1.12 Submittal Reviews 
1.13 Claims 

1 TOTAL FOR CONTRACT ADMIN. 

2 Survey Control 

2 Surve Verification 

2 TOTAL FOR SURVEY CONTROL 

Total 

L Hours -

Total 
L~Hours 

-
1.00 
3.00 

14.00 
8.00 
8.00 
8.00 

12.00 
8.00 
8.00 
2.00 
2.00 

12.00 
6.00 
4.00 

16.00 
-

112.00 

12.00 

12.00 

EXHIBITS 

PM 

L Hours -
1.00 
1.00 
2.00 

4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
2.00 
2.00 
2.00 
4.00 
2.00 
2.00 
8.00 
0.00 

38.00 

PM 
L-Hours 

4.00 

4.00 

Idaho Falls 

Cl 

L Hours -

1.00 

4.00 
4.00 
4.00 

4.00 

8.00 
0.00 

25.00 

Cl 
L-Hours 

Tech 

L-Hours 

1.00 
8.00 
4.00 

13.00 

Tech 
L-Hours 

OfficcM. 

L-Hours 

4.00 
4.00 
8.00 
4.00 
4.00 

2.00 

4.00 
4.00 
2.00 

36.00 

Office M. 
L-Hours 

Survey 

L Hours -

-

Survey* 
L-Hours 

8.00 

8.00 



3 PROJECT INSPECTION 

3.1 On Site Inspection/Diaries 
3.2 Deficiencv rcoorth;g & Rccommer~dations 
3.3 Pav Documents 
3.4 Environmental and Erosion Control Monitorin9; 

II 3 !TOTAL FOR PROJECT INSPECTION 

Total 
LH . ours 

42.00 
4.00 

16.00 
6.00 

68.00 I 

EXHIBITS 

Idaho Falls 

PM 
LHo . urs 

4.00 
2.00 
4.00 
2.00 

12.00 I 

CI 
LH . ours 

8.00 
2.00 
4.00 
4.00 

18.00 

Tech 
LH . ours 

30.00 

8.00 

38.00 I 

Office M. 
L H urs • 0 

. 

Survey* 
C e H s r w- r 

. 



(19694) lnt Holmes & Elva Signal 

CONCEPT REPORT/Environmental Total 

L Hours -
1.1 Concept Report/Environmental 
1.1 Concept Design 
1.2 Prepare Concept Report 
1.3 Address Review Comments 

I TOTAL FOR CONCEPT RPT. 

2 Survey 

12 !Reference Su"'.cyMonumcnts!Topo_ 

II 2 !TOTAL FOR SURVEY 

-
10.00 
14.00 
6.00 

30.00 

18.00 I 

18.00J 

PM 

LHours -

2.00 
2.00 
1.00 

s.oo 

PM 
L-Hours 

2.00 I 

2.00 I 

Idaho Falls 

Designer 

L-Hours 

8.00 
8.00 

16.00 

Designer 
L-Hours 

I 

I 

Tech 

L Hours -

4.00 
4.00 

8.00 

Office M. 

L Hours -

1.00 

1.00 

Survey 

L~Hours 

-

Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours Crcw-Hrs 

I 1 16.00 I 

J. 16.00 I 



3 

3.1 
3.2 
3.3 
3.4 

3 

Final Design 

PfCl)t'J.re Plan Sheets 
Prcnnre Soccitications 
Pn:nnrc Schedule 
Final Design Review and Comments 
TOTAL FOR FINAL DESIGN 

Total 
L-Hours 

PM 
L Hours -

88.00 12.00 
12.00 8.00 
2.00 2.00 

14.00 2.00 
116.00 24.00 

Idaho Falls 

Designer 
L Hours -

16.00 
4.00 

4.00 
24.00 

Tech 
L-Hours 

60.00 

8.00 
68.00 

Office M. 
L-Hours 

-

Survey* 
Crew-Hrs 

-



Idaho Falls 

4 PS&E Total PM Designer Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours t-Hours L-Hours Crew-Hrs 

14.1 IPS & E SUBMIITAL so.oo I 8.00 I 12.00 I 30.00 L I -' 4.2 IADVIRTISMENT REVIEW/SUPPORT 24.00 1 4.00 I 8.00 i 8.00 I 4.00 I 

II 4 !TOTAL FOR PROJECT PS & E 74.00 I 12.00 20.00J 38.00 I 4.00 I - J 

5 Monthly Invoices Total PM Designer Tech Office M. Survey* 
L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours L-Hours Crew-Hrs Is IMonrhly Invoices s.ou 1 4.00 4.00 

jTotal 246.00 47 !!lll 6~.00 114.00 9.00 16.00 



CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

1.1 Ocneral Contract Administration 
1.1 Submittal Lo2 & Min. Testimz: Reauircments 
1.2 Pte~Cortstruction Conference 
1.3 L'lbor Compliance 
1.4 Civil R.ie:hts Compliance 
1.5 Filing & Records Verification 
1.6 Pro.~rrcss Estimates 
1.7 Materials Certifications 
1.7.1 MTR 
1.7.2 Source Aoorovals 
1.7.3 Mix Desif!ll Reviews 
1.8 Contract Chan•es 
1.9 Weeklv Progress Meetinu:.; 
1.10 Pavroll Submittals 
1.11 Chan•e Orders 
1.12 Submittal Reviews 
1.13 Claims 

1 TOTAL FOR CONTRACT ADMIN. 

2 Survey Control 

2 Surve Verification 

2 TOTAL FOR SURVEY CONTROL 

Total 

L Hours -

Total 
L~Hours 

-
1.00 
3.00 

14.00 
8.00 
8.00 
8.00 

12.00 
8.00 
8.00 
2.00 
2.00 

12.00 
6.00 
4.00 

16.00 
-

112.00 

12.00 

12.00 

EXHIBITS 

PM 

L Hours -
1.00 
1.00 
2.00 

4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
2.00 
2.00 
2.00 
4.00 
2.00 
2.00 
8.00 
0.00 

38.00 

PM 
L-Hours 

4.00 

4.00 

Idaho Falls 

Cl 

L Hours -

1.00 

4.00 
4.00 
4.00 

4.00 

8.00 
0.00 

25.00 

Cl 
L-Hours 

Tech 

L-Hours 

1.00 
8.00 
4.00 

13.00 

Tech 
L-Hours 

OfficcM. 

L-Hours 

4.00 
4.00 
8.00 
4.00 
4.00 

2.00 

4.00 
4.00 
2.00 

36.00 

Office M. 
L-Hours 

Survey 

L Hours -

-

Survey* 
L-Hours 

8.00 

8.00 



3 PROJECT INSPECTION 

3.1 On Site Inspection/Diaries 
3.2 Deficiencv rcoorth;g & Rccommer~dations 
3.3 Pav Documents 
3.4 Environmental and Erosion Control Monitorin9; 

II 3 !TOTAL FOR PROJECT INSPECTION 

Total 
LH . ours 

42.00 
4.00 

16.00 
6.00 

68.00 I 

EXHIBITS 

Idaho Falls 

PM 
LHo . urs 

4.00 
2.00 
4.00 
2.00 

12.00 I 

CI 
LH . ours 

8.00 
2.00 
4.00 
4.00 

18.00 

Tech 
LH . ours 

30.00 

8.00 

38.00 I 

Office M. 
L H urs • 0 

. 

Survey* 
C e H s r w- r 

. 



4 PROJECT CLOSE OUT Toto! 
LH - ours 

4.1 Document Review 
4.2 Final Pavmcnt Certifications 
4.3 Substantial Completion Inspection 
4.4 Final I nsocction 

II 4 TOTAL FOR PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

5 Monthly Invoices Total 
L-Hours 

Is IMonthl~ Invoices 

jTotal 

5.00 
4.00 

12.00 
5.00 

26.00 I 

4.oo 1 

222.0q 

EXHffi!TB 

PM 
LH - ours 

3.00 
3.00 

6.00 

PM 
L-Hours 

2.00 

62.00 

ldoho Falls 

Cl 
L-H oun; 

2.00 
2.00 

4.00 

Cl 
L~Hours 

47.00 

Tech 
I H .- ours 

6.00 

6.00 I 

Tech 
L-Hours 

57.00 

Office M. 
L-H ours 

5.00 
4.00 
1.00 

10.00 

OfficeM. 
L-Hours 

2.00 

48.00 

Survey* 
C H rew- "' 

-

Survey* 
Crew-Hrs 

8.00 



(19694) 9Int Holmes & Elva Signal 
Consttuction Engineering & Inspection 

10/29/2015 

Wages PM 

Chris Canfield 45.78 

Kenny Roberts 

Neal Cunningham 

Nathan Anderson 

Brandon Mecham 

Gary Olson 

Michael Carilla 

Robert Cox 
Taml Nichols 

Average I 45.78 II 

EXHIBITB 

Cl Tech Office Man Survey 

34.17 

25.59 

19.4 

16.35 

31.00 

27.48 

32.48 

15.87 

31.74 II 27.48 II 15.87 I 47.76 



(19694) 91ntHolmes & Elva Signal 
Construction Engineering & Inspection 

DIRECT EXPENSES 

Number ofTrips (engr 1 x per week) 
Average Miles per Trip (engr) 

Number ofTrips (observer) 
Average miles per trip (observer) 

Total Miles 

Cost per Mile 

Total Mileage Cost• 

Testing (Compaction) 

Total Direct Cost 

EXHIBITB 

Total 

4 

5 

25 

2 

$ 0.5550 

Trips 

Ml 20 Mi I 

50 Mi I 
70 

/Mi 

$ 38.85 

$2,000.00 

$2,038.85 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City of Idalio Pa[[s 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 50220 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405 
www.idahofallsidaho.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
Honorable Mayor & City Council 

Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 

January 15, 2016 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT STATE/LOCAL 
AGREEMENT- grH ST; SE BONNEVILLE TO ST. CLAIR ROAD 
PROJECT 

Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department 
and accompanying Resolution with respect to the gth Street; SE Bonneville to St. Clair 
Road project. 

This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City 
match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the 
City Attorney. 

Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; 
and, authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 

CF:jk 

Attachment 
c: Mayor 

Council 
Canfield 

2-38-20-4-STR-2014-21 

2016-3 

Chris H Frederickse , P.E. 
Public Works Director 

380 Constitution Way, Idaho Fa lls, ID 83402- Phone: (208) 612-8250- Fax: (208) 612-8570 





















































































To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City of Icfafio Pa{[s 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 50220 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405 

www.idahofallsidaho.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
Honorable Mayor & City Council 

Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 

January 15, 2016 

FRANCHISE ORDINANCE WITH INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY 

The existing Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company will expire on 
March 6, 2016. Therefore, attached for consideration is a Franchise Ordinance prepared 
by the City Attorney. The proposed Franchise Ordinance, if approved, would be for a 15-
year period and provides the City access to Intermountain Gas mapping in formats 
compatible with our Geographic Information System. 

Public Works recommends approval of this ordinance; and, authorization for Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 

Respectfully, 

Chris H Frederic n, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

CF:jk 

Attachment 
c: Mayor 

Council 

2016-4 

380 Constitution Way, Idaho Falls, ID 83402- Phone: (208} 612-8250- Fax: (208) 612-8570 



ORDINANCE NO. 1820 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, 
IDAHO, GRANTING TO INTERMOUNTAIN GAS 
COMPANY A THIRTY (30) YEAR FRANCHISE TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE A GAS 
TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTING SYSTEM; 
PROVIDING FOR THE USE OF STREETS AND 
ALLEYS, AND RULES GOVERNING THE SAME; 
SUBJECTING THE GRANTEE TO ALL POWERS OF 
THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE RULES 
GOVERNING REPAIRS AND RECONSTRUCTION OF 
THE STREETS; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM OF THE 
FRANCHISE AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RIGHT OF INSPECTION BY THE CITY OF 
GRANTEE’S PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; 
REQUIRING GRANTEE TO FURNISH CERTAIN 
MAPS; SETTING FORTH THE ANNUAL PAYMENT TO 
THE CITY, AND THE FILING OF ANNUAL REPORTS 
WITH THE CITY; REQUIRING GRANTEE TO 
INDEMNIFY CITY, AND FILE EVIDENCE OF 
INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH 
SAFETY REGULATIONS; SETTING FORTH AN 
AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, RESERVING 
POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN; PROVIDING FOR 
SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE; GRANTING RIGHT TO 
SALVAGE; REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONSENT TO SALE, ASSIGNMENT 
OR LEASE; SETTING FORTH CITY’S RIGHT TO 
ADDITIONAL PAYMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT 
OF PUBLICATION COST; SETTING FORTH 
PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, SEPARABILITY 
AND REPEAL; PROVIDING WHEN THE ORDINANCE 
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE. 
 

  BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
IDAHO FALLS: 
 
  Section 1. GRANT OF AUTHORITY.  There is hereby granted to 
Intermountain Gas Company, a corporation, its successors and assigns (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “Grantee”) a thirty (30) year franchise to construct, install, maintain 
and operate a gas transmission and distribution system, including mains, pipes, conduits, 
services and other necessary structures and appliances appertaining in, under, upon, over, 
across and along the streets, alleys, bridges and public places within the present and future 
corporate limits of the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as “City”) for the 
furnishing, transmission, distribution and sale of gas, whether artificial, natural, mixed or 
otherwise, for hearing, domestic, industrial and other purposes and for transmitting gas into, 
through and beyond said City.  The term of this franchise shall commence upon the effective 
date hereof after acceptance by Grantee pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of this 
Ordinance. 
 
  Section 2. USE OF STREETS AND RULES GOVERNING SAME.  Grantee 
shall secure a permit for any opening it shall make in the streets, alleys and public places in 
the City and shall be subject to all applicable ordinances, but no fee shall be required of 
Grantee for any such permit.  Whenever the City shall pave or repave any street or shall 
change the grade or line of any street or public place or shall construct or reconstruct any 



conduit, water main, sewer or water connection or other City public works or City utility, it 
shall be the duty of the Grantee when so ordered by the City to change its mains, services 
and other property in the streets or public places at its own expense so as to conform to the 
established grade or line or such street or public place and so as not to interfere with the 
conduits, sewers and other mains of the City as constructed or reconstructed; however, the 
Grantee shall not be required to relocate pipes, mains and appurtenances when the street, 
alley or public ground in which they are located is vacated for the convenience of abutting 
property owners and not as an incident to the public improvement, unless the reasonable 
cost of such relocation and the loss and expenses resulting therefrom is first paid to Grantee.  
Whenever the City grants a permit to any other person for any excavation in a street, alley or 
other public property, a copy of said permit shall be made available to Grantee upon request,  
and Grantee shall coordinate with such person or persons with respect to the location or 
relocation of Grantee’s mains, pipes or other structures or facilities. 
 
  Section 3. GRANTEE SUBJECT TO ALL POWERS OF CITY RULES 
GOVERNING REPAIR AND RECONSTRUCTION OF STREETS.  The exercise of privileges 
herein granted shall be subject at all times to all of the powers of the City and all regulatory 
ordinances adopted pursuant thereto.  Grantee shall not unnecessarily or unreasonably 
obstruct the use of or damage any street or alley, and shall within a reasonable time and as 
early as practicable upon completion of any construction or repair work, restore all City 
streets and alleys to the same order and condition as they were before the excavation was 
made insofar as reasonably possible.  Grantee shall maintain, repair and keep in good 
condition all portions of street and alleys disturbed by it or its agents for a period of one year 
or such other period established by any ordinance generally adopted and applicable to all 
person or entities working within the public right-of-way, whichever is longer.  Grantee shall 
be responsible for any obstruction in any street, alley or other public place caused by it in 
the operation and maintenance of its properties occurring at any time and shall promptly 
remove such obstruction.  Any such obstruction which, after proper notice to Grantee 
demanding removal, is not promptly removed by the Grantee may be removed by the City 
and the costs thereof shall be charged against Grantee and may be enforced as a lien upon 
any of its properties or assets. 
 
  Section 4. TERM OF FRANCHISE AND GRANT.  The right,  authority and 
grant herein and hereby made to said Grantee, its successor or assigns, is granted for, and 
limited in time to, a period of thirty (30) years from the effective date hereof. 
 
  Section 5. CITY RIGHT TO INSPECTION OF GRANTEE’S PLANS, ACCOUNTS 
AND BOOKS – GRANTEE TO FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS.  The City shall have access at all 
reasonable hours to all of the Grantee’s plans, contracts and engineering, accounts, finance, 
statistical, customer and service records relating to the property and operation of Grantee 
within the City.  The Grantee shall furnish, upon request, the City with a complete set of 
maps, plans and profiles of the distribution system of the Grantee and any future extensions. 
 
  Section 6. PAYMENT TO CITY AND FILING OF ANNUAL WRITTEN REPORT 
WITH THE CITY.  As consideration for this franchise and grant, Grantee, its successors and 
assigns, during the franchise period, shall pay to the City three percent (3%) of the gross 
annual receipts received from all sales of gas within the corporate limits of the City through 
use, operation or possession of this franchise and grant.  Such annual payment shall be in 
lieu of any and all other fees, charges, licenses or taxes (other than ad valorem taxes) which 
the City may impose for the rights and privileges herein granted or for the privilege of doing 
business within the City.  The Grantee shall file on March 31 of each year with the City a 
report for the preceding calendar year, verified by the affidavit of the general manager, 
auditor, treasurer, or assistant treasurer of said Grantee, which report shall contain a 
statement in such form and detail as such from time to time be prescribed by the City, of all 
the gross receipts arising from all sales of gas by said Grantee within the City for the 
calendar year preceding such report, and at the same time the Grantee shall pay to the City 



the agreed percentage of the gross annual receipts due for the year for which said report is 
made and filed. 
 
  Section 7. GRANTEE LIABILITY – INDEMNIFICATION.  Grantee shall defend 
and save the City harmless from all loss sustained by the City on account of any suit, 
judgment, execution, claim or demand whatsoever, resulting from the construction, 
operation or maintenance by Grantee of its gas system in the City.  The City shall notify the 
Grantee’s representative in the City within a reasonable time after the presentation of any 
claim or demand, either by suit or otherwise, against the City on account of this franchise. 
 
  Section 8. INSURANCE.  Upon acceptance of this franchise by Grantee and 
before Grantee shall have any rights hereunder, Grantee shall file with the City Clerk a 
certificate evidencing the insurance of the Grantee against property damage in an amount 
not less than $500,000 and bodily injury with limits of not less than $500,000 per person 
and $1,000,000 total for each occurrence; provided, however, the minimum limits of 
insurance set forth herein shall be automatically increased at any time the liability limits of 
the City are increased pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code Section 6-901 et 
seq.) or any similar legislation, in excess of said amounts. 
 
  Section 9. SAFETY REGULATION COMPLIANCE.  Grantee shall promptly 
comply with and conform to all safety regulations promulgated by the City or any regulatory 
body having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
  Section 10. AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE – RESERVE TO CITY POWER OF 
EMINENT DOMAIN.  In consideration of Grantee’s undertaking hereunder, the City agrees 
not to engage in the business of distributing or selling natural gas during the life of this 
franchise or any extension thereof in competition with the Grantee, its successor and 
assigns; but nothing herein contained shall be construed or deemed to prevent the City from 
exercising at any time any power of eminent domain granted to it under the laws of the State 
of Idaho. 
 
  Section 11. SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE.  In the event natural gas at any 
time shall cease to be available to Grantee for the distribution and sale hereunder, Grantee 
reserves the right to surrender this franchise and in the event of such surrender prior to any 
expiration or termination of this franchise, or in any of such events, Grantee reserves the 
right to salvage all of its plant, works and facilities, and will restore City’s streets and alleys 
damaged by such salvage operation. 
 
  Section 12. WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE.  The Grantee shall within thirty (30) 
days after the passage and publication of this Ordinance, file with the City Clerk its 
acceptance of this franchise in writing signed by its proper officers and attested by its 
corporate seal. 
 
  Section 13. SALE, ASSIGNMENT OR LEASE OF FRANCHISE.  No sale, 
assignment or lease of this franchise shall be effective until it is approved by the City, 
provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed as to require consent or 
to prevent the Grantee of this franchise and grant from including it in the mortgage or trust 
deed executed for this purpose of obtaining money for corporate objects. 
 
  Section 14. RIGHT TO ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO CITY.  In the event that 
Grantee shall in conjunction with any other similar franchise agreement, pay any other city 
within the State of Idaho any percentage or other consideration greater than hereinbefore 
provided, then and in such event, the City shall be entitled to collect from Grantee such 
higher percentage of gross annual sales, or other consideration, based upon Grantee’s gross 
annual sales within the city for the same period of time for which such other city is entitled 
to receive such higher percentage or consideration. 



 
  Section 15. PUBLICATION COSTS.  Grantee shall pay all costs of publication 
of this Ordinance as required by law, which costs shall be due and payable within thirty (30) 
days after submission of a statement therefore to Grantee. 
 
  Section 16. FORFEITURE.  Any violation by the Grantee, its vendee, lessee or 
successors of the provisions of this Ordinance, franchise and grant or any material portion 
thereof or the failure promptly to perform any of the provisions thereof shall be cause for the 
forfeiture of this franchise and grant and all rights hereunder by the City after sixty (60) days 
written notice to the Grantee and the continuance of such violation, failure or default; 
however, this provision shall not prevent the Grantee from submitting such question of 
forfeiture to proper court determination. 
 
  Section 17. SEPARABILITY.  If any part or parts of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity 
of any other part or parts hereof which can be given effect without the part or parts adjudged 
to be unconstitutional or invalid.  The City declares that it would have passed the remaining 
parts of this Ordinance in any event if it had been known that such other part or parts 
thereof would be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
  Section 18. REPEAL.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances of City in conflict 
herewith shall be, and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
  Section 19. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
its passage, approval and publication in the manner provided by law. 
 
  PASSED BY THE COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR  this 6th day of 
March, 1986. 
 
        s/ Thomas Campbell 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
s/ Velma Chandler 
City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 
  INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY, as the franchise, accepts the franchise set 
forth in the above Ordinance and agrees to abide by the terms and conditions thereof. 
 
  DATED this 25th day of April, 1986. 
 
        INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY 
 
        By:  s/ N. Charles Hedemark 
        Executive Vice President 
 



STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    : ss. 
County of Bonneville ) 
 
  I, VELMA CHANDLER, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 
  That the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Ordinance 
entitled:  “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, GRANTING TO 
INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY A THIRTY (30) YEAR FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN AND OPERATE A GAS TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTING SYSTEM; 
PROVIDING FOR THE USE OF STREETS AND ALLEYS, AND RULES GOVERNING THE 
SAME; SUBJECTING THE GRANTEE TO ALL POWERS OF THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE 
RULES GOVERNING REPAIRS AND RECONSTRUCTION OF THE STREETS; PROVIDING FOR 
THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHT OF 
INSPECTION BY THE CITY OF GRANTEE’S PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; REQUIRING 
GRANTEE TO FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS; SETTING FORTH THE ANNUAL PAYMENT TO THE 
CITY, AND THE FILING OF ANNUAL REPORTS WITH THE CITY; REQUIRING GRANTEE TO 
INDEMNIFY CITY, AND FILE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH 
SAFETY REGULATIONS; SETTING FORTH AN AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, 
RESERVING POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN; PROVIDING FOR SURRENDER OF 
FRANCHISE; GRANTING RIGHT TO SALVAGE; REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONSENT TO SALE, ASSIGNMENT OR LEASE; SETTING FORTH CITY’S 
RIGHT TO ADDITIONAL PAYMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF PUBLICATION COST; 
SETTING FORTH PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, SEPARABILITY AND REPEAL; 
PROVIDING WHEN THE ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE.” 
 
          s/ Velma Chandler 
          City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 1 OF 7 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, GRANTING TO 
INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY A FIFTEEN (15) YEAR FRANCHISE TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE A GAS TRANSMISSION AND 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR THE USE OF STREETS AND ALLEYS, AND 
RULES GOVERNING THE SAME, SUBJECTING THE FRANCHISE AND FRANCHISEE 
TO ALL POWERS OF THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE RULES OF THE FRANCHISE 
AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHT OF INSPECTION BY THE CITY OF 
FRANCHISEE’S PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; REQUIRING FRANCHISEE TO 
FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS; SETTING FORTH THE QUARTERLY PAYMENT TO THE 
CITY, AND THE FILING OF QUARTERLY REPORTS WITH THE CITY; RIGHT TO 
ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO CITY; REQUIRING  FRANCHISEE TO INDEMNIFY CITY, 
AND FILE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH SAFETY 
REGULATIONS; SETTING FORTH AN AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, RESERVING 
POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN; PROVIDING FOR SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE; 
GRANTING RIGHT TO SALVAGE; REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR CONSENT TO SALE OR ASSIGNMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF 
PUBLICATION COSTS; SETTING FORTH PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, 
SEVERABILITY, AND REPEAL.  

 
WHEREAS, the City is a municipal corporation of the State of Idaho; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has authority granted to it by Idaho Code § 50-301; and 
 
WHEREAS, in addition to general municipal corporation powers of the State of Idaho, the City 
has specific authority to enter into franchise agreements with franchisees for, among other 
things, natural gas, transmission and distribution; and 
 
WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 50-329 and Idaho Code § 50-329A grant to cities the ability to enter 
into said franchise agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Intermountain Gas Company is a financially stable and established company 
that constructs, installs, maintains, and operates a gas transmission and distribution system; and 
 
WHEREAS, such gas transmission and distribution system is recognized as a public utility and 
regulated under Idaho Code Title 61, Chapter 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City currently has a franchise agreement with the Intermountain Gas Company 
that expires April 25, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Intermountain Gas Company wish to enter into a franchise to transmit 
and distribute natural gas and other gasses through its currently owned and maintained 
distribution system within City limits; and  
 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 2 OF 7 
 

WHEREAS, in exchange for the franchise, the Intermountain Gas Company will pay to the City 
a franchise fee of three percent (3%) of all its gross annual receipts from sale of gas within the 
corporate City limit, pursuant to Idaho law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Code requires the franchise agreement to be entered into by Ordinance 
and legally adopted by the Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council and Intermountain Gas Company to enter into 
such an agreement through Ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  GRANT OF AUTHORITY 

 
There is hereby granted to Intermountain Gas Company, a corporation, its successors and 

assigns (hereinafter collectively referred to as “FRANCHISEE”) a  fifteen (15) year right and 
authority to construct, install, maintain and operate a gas transmission and distribution system, 
(including mains, pipes, conduits, services and other necessary structures and appliances) 
appertaining in, under, upon, over, across and along the streets, alleys, bridges and public places 
within the present and future corporate limits of the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Idaho, (hereinafter referred to as “CITY”) for the furnishing, 
transmission, distribution and sale of gas, whether artificial, natural, mixed or otherwise, for 
heating, domestic, industrial and other purposes and for transmitting gas into, through and 
beyond said CITY. CITY represents that it has the sole power and authority to make this grant of 
authority pursuant to the laws of the State of Idaho and agrees to notify FRANCHISEE in 
writing if CITY should cease to have this power. 
 
SECTION 2.  USE OF STREETS ALLEY, AND PUBLIC PLACES AND RULES 
GOVERNING SAME 

 
FRANCHISEE shall secure a permit for any opening it shall make in the streets, alleys, 

and public places in CITY and shall be subject to all applicable ordinances, but no fee shall be 
required of FRANCHISEE for any such permit. The location or relocation of all FRANCHISEE 
facilities shall be made under the supervision and with the approval of such representative as the 
governing body of CITY may designate for such purpose, but not so as unreasonably to interfere 
with the proper operating of FRANCHISEE’s facilities and service.  Whenever CITY shall pave 
or repave any street or shall change the grade or line of any street, alley, or public place or shall 
construct or reconstruct any conduit, water main, sewer or water connection or other public work 
or CITY utility, it shall be the duty of FRANCHISEE when so ordered by CITY to change its 
mains, services and other property in the streets or public places at its own expense so as to 
conform to the established grade or line of such street or public place and so as not to interfere 
with the conduits, sewers, and other mains of the CITY as constructed or reconstructed; 
however, the FRANCHISEE shall not be required to relocate pipes, mains, and appurtenances 
when the street, alley, or public place in which they are located is vacated for the convenience of 
abutting property owners and not as an incident to the public improvement, unless the reasonable 
cost of such relocation and the loss and expenses resulting there from is first paid to 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

FRANCHISEE. CITY will avoid the need for such moving or changing whenever possible.  
Where Federal, State, or other non-CITY funds have been provided to CITY for utility relocating 
purposes, FRANCHISEE will be reimbursed for relocation by FRANCHISEE to the extent 
allowed by such funds.  Whenever CITY grants a permit for an excavation in a street or alley or 
other public place and the work contemplated by the permit may expose gas pipes, mains, and 
appurtenances of FRANCHISEE, CITY will use its best efforts to notify FRANCHISEE and 
make available a copy of the permit to FRANCHISEE not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior 
to commencement of such work.  Granting FRANCHISEE access to CITY right of way permits 
through CITY’s on-line permitting system and FRANCHISEE’s access to DIGLINE information 
shall be considered sufficient availability for purposes of this Section.   

 
SECTION 3. FRANCHISEE SUBJECT TO ALL POWERS OF CITY; RULES 
GOVERNING REPAIR AND RECONSTRUCTION OF STREETS 

 
The exercise of privileges herein granted shall be subject at all times to all of the powers 

of CITY and all regulatory ordinances adopted pursuant thereto. FRANCHISEE shall not 
unnecessarily or unreasonably obstruct the use of or damage any street, alley, or public property 
place and shall within a reasonable time and as early as practicable upon completion of any 
construction or repair work, restore all CITY streets, alleys, and public property place to the 
same order and condition as they were before the excavation was made insofar as reasonably 
possible. FRANCHISEE shall maintain, repair, and keep in good condition for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of acceptance by CITY, all portions of streets, alleys, and public property 
place disturbed by it or its agents.   FRANCHISEE shall be responsible for any obstruction in 
any street, alley, or other public place caused by it in the operation and maintenance of 
FRANCHISEE’s properties occurring at anytime and shall promptly remove such obstruction.  
Any such obstruction which, after proper notice to FRANCHISEE demanding removal is not 
promptly removed by FRANCHISEE may be taken care of by CITY and the costs thereof shall 
be charged against FRANCHISEE and may be enforced as a lien upon any of its properties or 
assets. 
 
SECTION 4. TERM OF FRANCHISE AND GRANT  

 
The right, authority and grant herein and hereby made to FRANCHISEE, its successor 

and assigns, is granted for, and limited in time to, a period of fifteen (15) years beginning at 
midnight local time on March 5, 2016, until midnight local time March 4, 2031. 

 
SECTION 5.  CITY RIGHT TO INSPECTION OF FRANCHISEE’S PLANS, 
ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS – FRANCHISEE TO FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS 

 
A.        Upon reasonable advance notice, CITY shall have the right to inspect and audit 

the records of FRANCHISEE necessary for the enforcement of the Franchise and verification 
of the accuracy of Franchise fee payments at any time during the normal business hours, 
provided that CITY shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the confidentiality of any 
trade secrets or other proprietary information in the possession of FRANCHISEE, where such 
confidentiality is allowed by the Idaho Public Records Act (especially Idaho Code Section 74-
107). Such r e c o r d s  a v a i l a b l e  f o r  i n s p e c t i o n  a n d  a u d i t  b y  C I T Y  shall 
be  limited specifically to records necessary for the calculation of Franchise payments to CITY.   



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

 
B.        Upon request, FRANCHISEE shall furnish the CITY with a complete set of maps, 

including plans and profile of the gas system of FRANCHISEE and any known future extensions 
within the CITY.  FRANCHISEE shall use reasonable efforts to provide such maps to CITY in a 
format that is useful to CITY, such as geographic informational system (GIS) mapping in ESRI 
format, provided that FRANCHISEE shall have no obligation to generate maps in a format that 
are not then currently available and being utilized by FRANCHISEE.  CITY shall make every 
reasonable effort to maintain the confidentiality of any trade secrets or other proprietary 
information (such as proprietary maps and other GIS mapping information) provided by 
FRANCHISEE to CITY pursuant to this Section (where such confidentiality is allowed by the 
Idaho Public Records Act, especially Idaho Code Section 74-107). Maps supplied shall not be 
used for locating gas facilities with the intent of excavating. 
 
SECTION 6.  FRANCHISEE PAYMENT TO CITY AND FILING OF QUARTERLY 
WRITTEN REPORT  

 
As consideration for this Franchise and grant, FRANCHISEE, its successors and assigns, 

during the Franchise term period, shall pay to CITY three percent (3%) of the gross quarterly 
receipts received from all sales of gas by FRANCHISEE within the corporate limits of CITY 
through use, operation or possession of this Franchise and grant. Such quarterly payments shall 
be in lieu of taxes, fees or charges (other than ad valorem taxes) related to easements, franchises, 
rights-of-way, utility lines, and equipment installation, maintenance and removal during the term 
of the public service provider’s Franchise with CITY, which CITY may otherwise impose for the 
rights and privileges herein granted or for the privilege of doing business within CITY. 

 
The FRANCHISEE shall file within thirty (30) days following the end of each calendar 

quarter with CITY, a report for the preceding calendar quarter, verified by affidavit of the 
general manager, auditor, treasurer, or assistant treasurer of said FRANCHISEE, which report 
shall contain a statement in such form and detail as shall from time to time be prescribed by 
CITY, of all the gross receipts arising from all sales of gas by said FRANCHISEE within CITY 
for the calendar quarter preceding such report, and at the same time, FRANCHISEE shall pay to 
CITY the stipulated percentage of the gross quarterly receipts due for the calendar quarter which 
said report is made and filed. 
 
SECTION 7.  RIGHT TO ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO CITY 

 
In the event that FRANCHISEE shall, in conjunction with any other similar franchise 

agreement, pay any other city within the State of Idaho any percentage greater than herein 
provided, then and in such event, CITY shall be entitled to collect from FRANCHISEE such 
higher percentage of gross annual sales, based upon FRANCHISEE’s gross annual sales within 
CITY for the same period of time for which FRANCHISEE has agreed to pay such other city, 
within the State of Idaho such higher percentage of gross annual sales.   
 
SECTION 8. FRANCHISEE LIABILITY – INDEMNIFICATION 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed by and between FRANCHISEE and CITY that the 

FRANCHISEE shall save CITY harmless from all loss sustained by CITY on account of any 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

suit, judgment, execution, claim, or demand whatsoever, resulting from negligence on the part of 
the FRANCHISEE in the construction, operation, or maintenance of its gas system in CITY. 
CITY shall notify the FRANCHISEE’s representative in CITY within ten (10) business days 
following the presentation of any claim or demand, either by suit or otherwise, made against 
CITY on account of any negligence as aforesaid on the part of FRANCHISEE. 

 
SECTION 9. INSURANCE 

 
Upon acceptance of this Franchise by FRANCHISEE and before FRANCHISEE shall 

have any rights hereunder, FRANCHISEE shall file with City Clerk a certificate evidencing the 
insurance of the FRANCHISEE against property damage in an amount not less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000.00) and bodily injury with limits of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per person and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) total for each occurrence.  
Provided, however, the minimum limits of insurance as set forth herein shall be automatically 
increased at any time the liability limits of CITY are increased pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims 
Act (Idaho Code Section 6-901 et seq.) or any similar legislation. 

 
SECTION 10. SAFETY REGULATION COMPLIANCE 

 
FRANCHISEE shall comply with and conform to all safety regulations promulgated by the 
United States, State of Idaho, or CITY of Idaho Falls, or any regulatory body having jurisdiction 
thereof.  
 
SECTION 11. AGREEMENT BY CITY NOT TO COMPETE WITH FRANCHISEE; 
RESERVE TO CITY POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN 

 
In consideration of FRANCHISEE’s undertaking of this Franchise as evidenced by 

FRANCHISEE’s acceptance of this Franchise, CITY agrees not to engage in the business of 
distributing and selling gas during the term of this Franchise or any extension thereof in 
competition with the FRANCHISEE, its successor and assigns; however, nothing contained in 
this Ordinance shall be construed or deemed to prevent CITY from exercising, at any time, any 
power of eminent domain granted to it under the laws of the State of Idaho. 

 
SECTION 12. SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE 

 
In the event natural gas at any time shall cease to be available to FRANCHISEE for the 

distribution and sale hereunder, FRANCHISEE reserves the right to surrender this Franchise and 
in the event of such surrender prior to any expiration or termination of this Franchise, or in any 
of such events, FRANCHISEE reserves the right to salvage all of its plant, works, and facilities, 
and shall restore CITY’s streets, alleys, and public property place damaged by such salvage 
operation. 

 
SECTION 13. FRANCHISEE WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE 

 
FRANCHISEE shall within thirty (30) days after the passage and publication of this 

Ordinance, file with City Clerk its acceptance of this Franchise in writing signed by its proper 
officers and attested by its corporate seal. 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

 
SECTION 14. SALE OR ASSIGNMENT OF FRANCHISE 

 
No sale or assignment of this Franchise shall be effective until it is approved by CITY, 

provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed as to require consent or to 
prevent FRANCHISEE of this Franchise and grant from including it in a mortgage or trust deed 
executed for the purpose of obtaining money for lawful corporate objects. 
 
SECTION 15. PUBLICATION COSTS 

 
FRANCHISEE shall assume the cost of publication of this Franchise as such publication 

is required by law. 
 

SECTION 16. FORFEITURE 
 

Any violation by the FRANCHISEE, its vendee, lessee, or successors of the provisions of 
this Ordinance, Franchise, and grant or any material portions thereof or the failure promptly to 
perform any of the provisions thereof shall be cause for the forfeiture of this Franchise and grant 
and all rights hereunder by CITY after sixty (60) days written notice to FRANCHISEE and the 
continuance of such violation, failure, or default; however, this provision shall not prevent 
FRANCHISEE from submitting such question of forfeiture to a proper court for determination. 
 
SECTION 17.  SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 
The provisions and parts of this Ordinance are intended to be severable.  If any section, sentence, 
clause, or phrase of this Ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 18. CODIFICATION CLAUSE 
 
The City Clerk is instructed to immediately forward this Ordinance to the codifier of the official 
municipal code for proper revision of the Code. 
 
SECTION 19. PUBLICATION 
 
This Ordinance, or a summary thereof in compliance with Idaho Code, shall be published once in 
the official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect immediately upon its passage, approval, 
and publication. 
 
SECTION 20. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 
publication; following acceptance by FRANCHISEE; and on March 6, 2016. 
 

 



INTERMOUNTAIN GAS EXTENSION ORDINANCE                                                                                                                        PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Idaho Falls, 
Idaho, this _____ day of _______________, 2016. 

 
      CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 
 
 
                                                                        ____________________________________ 

REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK  
 

 
  

  
STATE OF IDAHO  )  
    )  ss: 
County of Bonneville  ) 
 
I, KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO,  
DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Ordinance entitled, 
“AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, GRANTING TO 
INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY A FIFTEEN (15) YEAR FRANCHISE TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE A GAS TRANSMISSION AND 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR THE USE OF STREETS AND ALLEYS, AND 
RULES GOVERNING THE SAME, SUBJECTING THE FRANCHISE AND FRANCHISEE 
TO ALL POWERS OF THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE RULES OF THE FRANCHISE 
AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHT OF INSPECTION BY THE CITY 
OFFRANCHISEE’S PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; REQUIRING FRANCHISEE TO 
FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS; SETTING FORTH THE QUARTERLY PAYMENT TO THE 
CITY, AND THE FILING OF QUARTERLY REPORTS WITH THE CITY; RIGHT TO 
ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO CITY; REQUIRING  FRANCHISEE TO INDEMNIFY CITY, 
AND FILE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH SAFETY 
REGULATIONS; SETTING FORTH AN AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, RESERVING 
POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN; PROVIDING FOR SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE; 
GRANTING RIGHT TO SALVAGE; REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR CONSENT TO SALE OR ASSIGNMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF 
PUBLICATION COSTS; SETTING FORTH PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, 
SEVERABILITY, AND REPEAL.” 

 
 
      _______________________________________ 
 (SEAL)    KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City of I cfa/io P a[{s 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 50220 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405 
www.idahofallsidaho.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor & City Council 

Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 

January 20, 2016 

BID AWARD- WELL 8 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

On January 19, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Well 8 Electrical 
Upgrade project. A tabulation of bid results is attached. 

Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder, Mountain West Electric, Inc., in an amount of 
$91 ,500.00 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract documents. 

CF:jk 

Attachment 

c: Mayor 
Council 
Fugal 

2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-35 

2016-5 

Chris H Fredericksen, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

380 Constitution Way, Idaho Falls, ID 83402- Phone: (208) 612-8250- Fax: (208) 612-8570 



City of Idaho Falls
Engineering Department

Bid Tabulation

Project..... Well 8 Electrical Upgrade Number...... 2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-35

Submitted Kent J. Gugal, P.E., PTOE Date.......... January 19, 2016

Engineer's Estimate Mountain West Electric, 
Inc. Wheeler Electric, Inc. CR Clark Construction, 

LLC
Rivers West Construction, 

Inc. Arco Electric Idaho, Inc. DL Beck, Inc.

Item 
Number Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
SP - 1 Well 8 Electrical Upgrade 1 LS $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $91,500.00 $91,500.00 $97,050.00 $97,050.00 $98,454.00 $98,454.00 $98,670.00 $98,670.00 $102,915.00 $102,915.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00
TOTAL $150,000.00 $91,500.00 $97,050.00 $98,454.00 $98,670.00 $102,915.00 $180,000.00

WTR-2015-35 Engr Est.xlsx
Bid_Tabulation Page 1 of 1

1/20/2016
YG/tnn



IDAHO FAUB 
0 

WELL 8 
PROJECT 

ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
# 2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-35 

MAYOR 
REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER 

CITY COUNCIL 
BARBARA DEE EHARDT 
THOMAS HALLY 
MICHAEL A. LEHTO 

ED MAROHN 
SHARON D. PARRY 
DAVID M. SMITH 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
CHRIS H FREDERICKSEN, P.E. 

2015 

CITY ENGINEER 
KENT J. FUGAL, P.E. , PTOE 

REVIEWED BY: WATER DIVISION 

DATE: _____ _ 

REVIEWED BY: CITY ENGINEER 

DATE: _____ _ 

WELL 8 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORLIN DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNEVILLE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNEVILLE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION AVE  LINDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUSANNE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATHRYN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERRETT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOWER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINONA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFSTROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSSET ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENDOY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OXFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAUL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELBERT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTERGARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOSTER AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUSTIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTURAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODRUFF AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAURELWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
9th

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEAKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALLUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORAN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIFFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELBOURNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEPPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEND OREILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEPPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO FALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT # 2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL 8 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRIS H FREDERICKSEN, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT J. FUGAL, P.E., PTOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COUNCIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS HALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBARA DEE EHARDT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHARON D. PARRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ED MAROHN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL A. LEHTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID M. SMITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSG BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO FALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE SHOWN IS FOR SHEET 11 x 17 ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL 8 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.J.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-35

AutoCAD SHX Text
WTR-2015-35 TITLEPGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City of Idalio Pa{{s 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 50220 
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405 
www. ida hofa llsida ho .gov 

MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor & City Council 

Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 

January 19, 2016 

BID AWARD- WELL 9 & 10 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

On January 19, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Well 9 & 10 Electrical 
Upgrade project. A tabulation of bid results is attached. 

Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder, CR Clark Construction, LLC, in an amount of 
$ 514,572.00 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract documents. 

CF:jk 

Attachment 

c: Mayor 
Council 
Fugal 

2-38-20-1-WTR-2015-45 

2016-6 

Respectfully, 

&~'I/; 
Chris H Fredericksen, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

380 Constitution Way, Idaho Falls, ID 83402- Phone: (208) 612-8250- Fax: (208) 612-8570 



City of Idaho Falls
Engineering Department

Bid Tabulation

Project..... Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade Number...... 2-38-20-3-WTR-2015-45

Submitted Kent J. Gugal, P.E., PTOE Date.......... January 19, 2016

Engineer's Estimate * Wheeler Electric, Inc. CR Clark Construction, 
LLC

Mountain West Electric, 
Inc.

Rivers West Construction, 
Inc. Arco Electric Idaho, Inc. DL Beck, Inc.

Item 
Number Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
SP - 1 Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade 1 LS $525,000.00 $525,000.00 $403,100.00 $403,100.00 $514,572.00 $514,572.00 $534,500.00 $534,500.00 $546,300.00 $546,300.00 $546,595.00 $546,595.00 $819,000.00 $819,000.00

$525,000.00 $403,100.00 $514,572.00 $534,500.00 $546,300.00 $546,595.00 $819,000.00

* Lowest bidder withdrew their bid.

WTR-2015-45 Engr Est.xlsx
Bid_Tabulation Page 1 of 1

1/20/2016
Y.G./t.n.



WELL 9 & 
PROJECT 

10 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 
# 2-38-20-3-WTR-2015-45 

IDAHO FAUB 
0 

MAYOR 
REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER 

CITY COUNCIL 
BARBARA DEE EHARDT 
THOMAS HALLY 
MICHAEL A. LEHTO 

ED MAROHN 
SHARON D. PARRY 
DAVID M. SMITH 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
CHRIS H FREDERICKSEN, P.E. 

2015 

CITY ENGINEER 
KENT J. FUGAL, P.E. , PTOE 

REVIEWED BY: WATER DIVISION 

DATE: _____ _ 

REVIEWED BY: CITY ENGINEER 

DATE: _____ _ 

WELL 9 &: 10 
ELECTRICAL UPGRADE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST CLAIR AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORLIN DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNEVILLE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNEVILLE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION AVE  LINDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRATT   AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE    AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRANMER    AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAYLOR AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLMES AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 15th

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 16th

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMARIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIFFANY DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JENNIE LEE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
16th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
17th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
15th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE    AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKINZIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AZALEA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQUOIA DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PONDEROSA

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNIPER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
S EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUSANNE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATHRYN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNKER LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 16th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICKS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEPPSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERRETT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOWER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
10th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO FALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT # 2-38-20-3-WTR-2015-45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL 9 & 10 ELECTRICAL UPGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRIS H FREDERICKSEN, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT J. FUGAL, P.E., PTOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COUNCIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS HALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBARA DEE EHARDT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHARON D. PARRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ED MAROHN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL A. LEHTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID M. SMITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSG BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO FALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE SHOWN IS FOR SHEET 11 x 17 ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL 9 & 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL UPGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.J.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-38-20-3-WTR-2015-45

AutoCAD SHX Text
WTR-2015-45 TITLEPGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER



IDAHO FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 
     Office of the Chief of Police 
            Chief Mark McBride 

(208) 612-8660 

 

Memorandum 

 

Date: 21 January 2016 
To: Rebecca Casper, Mayor 

From: Mark McBride, Chief of Police  

RE:   Council Agenda Item/Purchase Requisition Approval  
          

The Police Department respectfully requests that the requisition to reimburse the Bonneville 
County Sheriff’s Office for the consolidated Records Management System be placed on the 
Council Agenda for 26 January 2016.     

During the FY 2016 budget process an amount of $331,502 was approved by City Council as the 
police department’s share of the expenses for replacing the current consolidated Records 
Management System and Computer Aided Dispatch.  Work has been ongoing to complete this 
project, and the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office has paid for the project to date.  The Sheriff’s 
Office has submitted an invoice to the Idaho Falls Police Department for $291,206.73.  The 
remaining amount will be billed as project goals are completed.   

ACTION:  The Idaho Falls Police Department respectfully request that the City Council to approve 
paying the bill to the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $291,206.73.  

 

C:  Municipal Service Department, Pam Alexander   

 
 
 

P.O. Box 50220, Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405-0220 
       605 N. Capital, Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Phone Numbers: Animal Shelter (208)612-8670 Detective Division (208)612-8631 Records Division (208)612-8600 
      www.idahofallspolice.com 





     RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, FISCAL 
YEAR 2016 CDBG ANNUAL ACTION PLAN AND FISCAL YEARS 
2016-2020 CDBG FIVE-YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls has been designated as an entitlement city by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development; 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, has prepared a One-Year CDBG Annual 
Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2016 as part of the requirements of entitlement status;  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, has prepared a Five-Year CDBG 
Consolidated Plan for Fiscal Years 2016-2020 as part of the requirements of entitlement status;  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, has prepared an Analysis of Impediments to 
Fair Housing to be submitted as part of the Five-Year CDBG Consolidated Plan for Fiscal Years 
2016-2020 as part of the requirements of entitlement status;  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, held a public hearing on the Annual Action 
Plan FY2016 AND the Consolidated Plan FY2016-2020 on December 10, 2015; 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, had a thirty day comment period until and 
through January 11, 2016; 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, has considered comments received during the 
thirty day comment period; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Idaho 
Falls, Idaho, as follows: 
 

1. The Annual Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2016 and the Consolidated  
Plan for Fiscal Years 2016-2020, as prepared by the Community Development 
Services Department, Planning Division, a copy of which is attached hereto and 
by this reference made a part of hereof, is hereby approved. 
 

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the document(s) for  
Federal assistance. 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Rebecca L. Noah Casper, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ Date __________________________________ 

Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
































































































































































	1-26-2016 Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	12-7-2015 Work Session
	12-10-2015 Council Meeting
	12-10-2015 Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting
	12-11-2015 Council Training Orientation
	12-14-2015 Work Session
	12-17-2015 Council Meeting
	12-30-2015 Special Meeting
	Regular Agenda
	6.A.1) Idaho Falls Power-Master Confirmation Agreement
	6.B.1) Public Works-ITD Intersection of Holmes Ave and Elva St Project
	6.B.2) Public Works-ITD 9th St; SE Bonneville to St. Clair Road Project
	6.B.3) Public Works-Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Co
	6.B.4) Public Works-Bid Award - Well 8 Electrical Upgrade
	6.B.5) Public Works-Bid Award - Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade
	6.C.1) Police-Purchase Requisition
	6.D.1) CDSD-CDBG Resolution
	6.D.2) CDSD-Rezone
	6.D.3) CDSD-City Cody Ordinance modification



